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if no longer
subject to
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Form 4 or
Form 5
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF
SECURITIES

Filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
Section 17(a) of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 or Section

30(h) of the Investment Company Act of 1940

OMB APPROVAL

OMB
Number: 3235-0287

Expires: January 31,
2005

Estimated average
burden hours per
response... 0.5

(Print or Type Responses)

1. Name and Address of Reporting Person *

Edenbrook Capital, LLC
2. Issuer Name and Ticker or Trading

Symbol
FREQUENCY ELECTRONICS INC
[FEIM]

5. Relationship of Reporting Person(s) to
Issuer

(Check all applicable)

__X__ Director __X__ 10% Owner
_____ Officer (give title
below)

_____ Other (specify
below)

(Last) (First) (Middle)

2 DEPOT PLAZA, 

3. Date of Earliest Transaction
(Month/Day/Year)
12/27/2018

(Street)

BEDFORD HILLS, NY 10507

4. If Amendment, Date Original
Filed(Month/Day/Year)

6. Individual or Joint/Group Filing(Check
Applicable Line)
___ Form filed by One Reporting Person
_X_ Form filed by More than One Reporting
Person

(City) (State) (Zip) Table I - Non-Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned

1.Title of
Security
(Instr. 3)

2. Transaction Date
(Month/Day/Year)

2A. Deemed
Execution Date, if
any
(Month/Day/Year)

3.
Transaction
Code
(Instr. 8)

4. Securities Acquired
(A) or Disposed of
(D)
(Instr. 3, 4 and 5)

5. Amount of
Securities
Beneficially
Owned
Following
Reported
Transaction(s)
(Instr. 3 and 4)

6.
Ownership
Form: Direct
(D) or
Indirect (I)
(Instr. 4)

7. Nature of
Indirect
Beneficial
Ownership
(Instr. 4)

Code V Amount

(A)
or
(D) Price

Common
Stock, $1.00
par value
("Common
Stock")

12/27/2018 P 3,000 A $
9.69 1,167,766 I

See
footnotes
(1) (3)

Common
Stock 271,504 I

See
footnotes
(2) (3)

Reminder: Report on a separate line for each class of securities beneficially owned directly or indirectly.

Persons who respond to the collection of
information contained in this form are not
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required to respond unless the form
displays a currently valid OMB control
number.

Table II - Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned
(e.g., puts, calls, warrants, options, convertible securities)

1. Title of
Derivative
Security
(Instr. 3)

2.
Conversion
or Exercise
Price of
Derivative
Security

3. Transaction Date
(Month/Day/Year)

3A. Deemed
Execution Date, if
any
(Month/Day/Year)

4.
Transaction
Code
(Instr. 8)

5.
Number
of
Derivative
Securities
Acquired
(A) or
Disposed
of (D)
(Instr. 3,
4, and 5)

6. Date Exercisable and
Expiration Date
(Month/Day/Year)

7. Title and
Amount of
Underlying
Securities
(Instr. 3 and 4)

8. Price of
Derivative
Security
(Instr. 5)

9. Number of
Derivative
Securities
Beneficially
Owned
Following
Reported
Transaction(s)
(Instr. 4)

10.
Ownership
Form of
Derivative
Security:
Direct (D)
or Indirect
(I)
(Instr. 4)

11. Nature
of Indirect
Beneficial
Ownership
(Instr. 4)

Code V (A) (D)

Date
Exercisable

Expiration
Date Title

Amount
or
Number
of
Shares

Reporting Owners

Reporting Owner Name / Address
Relationships

Director 10% Owner Officer Other

Edenbrook Capital, LLC
2 DEPOT PLAZA
BEDFORD HILLS, NY 10507

  X   X

Brolin Jonathan
2 DEPOT PLAZA
4TH FLOOR
BEDFORD HILLS, NY 10507

  X   X

EDENBROOK LONG ONLY VALUE FUND, LP
EDENBROOK CAPITAL, LLC
2 DEPOT PLAZA, 4TH FLOOR
BEDFORD HILLS, NY 10507

  X   X

Signatures
 Edenbrook Capital, LLC; By: /s/ Jonathan Brolin, Managing Member   12/28/2018

**Signature of Reporting Person Date

 /s/ Jonathan Brolin   12/28/2018
**Signature of Reporting Person Date

 Edenbrook Long Only Value Fund, LP, By: /s/ Jonathan Brolin, Managing Member of
Edenbrook Capital Partners, LLC   12/28/2018

**Signature of Reporting Person Date
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Explanation of Responses:
* If the form is filed by more than one reporting person, see Instruction 4(b)(v).

** Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute Federal Criminal Violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 15 U.S.C. 78ff(a).

(1)

These securities are held by Edenbrook Long Only Value Fund, LP, a private fund managed by Edenbrook Capital, LLC and may be
deemed to be beneficially owned by Edenbrook Capital, LLC by virtue of its role as the investment manager of such private fund. In
addition, Jonathan Brolin may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of such securities by virtue of his role as managing member of
Edenbrook Capital, LLC.

(2)
These securities are held in the account of a private fund managed by Edenbrook Capital, LLC and may be deemed to be beneficially
owned by Edenbrook Capital, LLC by virtue of its role as the investment manager of such private funds. In addition, Jonathan Brolin may
be deemed to be a beneficial owner of such securities by virtue of his role as managing member of Edenbrook Capital, LLC.

(3)
Each Reporting Person disclaims beneficial ownership in the securities reported on this Form 4 except to the extent of its or his pecuniary
interest, if any, therein, and this report shall not be deemed to be an admission that such Reporting Person is the beneficial owner of such
securities for purposes of Section 16 or for any other purpose.

Note: File three copies of this Form, one of which must be manually signed. If space is insufficient, see Instruction 6 for procedure.
Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays
a currently valid OMB number. bottom:3px double #000000; min-width:21pt; text-align:right;
white-space:nowrap;">545​​​​$579​​​​$505​​​​$376​​​​$—​​​​$2,005​​Loans:​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​​
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment
​​​$58​​​​$577​​​​$—​​​​$98​​​​$—​​​​$733​​
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment
​​​$84,714​​​​$206,218​​​​$76,476​​​​$11,372​​​​$—​​​​$378,780​​​
F-16

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Loans
As of and for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2017

​ ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Unallocated ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Allowance for loan
losses: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​

Balance, April 1, 2017 ​​​$ 498 ​​​​$ 793 ​​​​$ 583 ​​​​$ 162 ​​​​$ 297 ​​​​$ 2,333 ​​
Provision charged to
expense ​​​​ 33 ​​​​​ 56 ​​​​​ (137) ​​​​​ 193 ​​​​​ (120) ​​​​​ 25 ​​

Losses charged off ​​​​ — ​​​​​ (5) ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ (77) ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ (82) ​​
Recoveries ​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 13 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 16 ​​
Balance, June 30, 2017 ​​​$ 532 ​​​​$ 845 ​​​​$ 447 ​​​​$ 291 ​​​​$ 177 ​​​​$ 2,292 ​​
Balance, January 1, 2017 ​​​$ 495 ​​​​$ 804 ​​​​$ 591 ​​​​$ 107 ​​​​$ 344 ​​​​$ 2,341 ​​
Provision charged to
expense ​​​​ 36 ​​​​​ 44 ​​​​​ (150) ​​​​​ 287 ​​​​​ (167) ​​​​​ 50 ​​

Losses charged off ​​​​ — ​​​​​ (5) ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ (127) ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ (132) ​​
Recoveries ​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 2 ​​​​​ 6 ​​​​​ 24 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 33 ​​
Balance, June 30, 2017 ​​​$ 532 ​​​​$ 845 ​​​​$ 447 ​​​​$ 291 ​​​​$ 177 ​​​​$ 2,292 ​​
Loans: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 129 ​​​​$ 841 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 462 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 1,432 ​​
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Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 51,732 ​​​​$ 216,508 ​​​​$ 75,158 ​​​​$ 12,739 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 356,137 ​​

​
Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Loans
As of December 31, 2017

​ ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Unallocated​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Allowance for loan losses: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ — ​​​​$ 73 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 73 ​​

Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 537 ​​​​$ 770 ​​​​$ 436 ​​​​$ 218 ​​​​$ 88 ​​​​$ 2,049 ​​

Loans: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 619 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 306 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 1,008 ​​

Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 81,244 ​​​​$ 198,317 ​​​​$ 75,853 ​​​​$ 12,167 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 367,581 ​​

​
F-17
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The following tables show the portfolio quality indicators.
​ ​​June 30, 2018 ​

Loan Class ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Pass Grade ​​​$ 84,701 ​​​​$ 203,010 ​​​​$ 76,476 ​​​​$ 11,371 ​​​​$ 375,558 ​​
Special Mention ​​​​ — ​​​​​ 2,943 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 2,943 ​​
Substandard ​​​​ 71 ​​​​​ 842 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 99 ​​​​​ 1,012 ​​
Doubtful ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​​$ 84,772 ​​​​$ 206,795 ​​​​$ 76,476 ​​​​$ 11,470 ​​​​$ 379,513 ​​
​
​ ​​December 31, 2017 ​

Loan Class ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Pass Grade ​​​$ 78,652 ​​​​$ 195,063 ​​​​$ 75,853 ​​​​$ 12,167 ​​​​$ 361,735 ​​
Special Mention ​​​​ 20 ​​​​​ 3,066 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 3,086 ​​
Substandard ​​​​ 2,655 ​​​​​ 807 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ 3,768 ​​
Doubtful ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​​$ 81,327 ​​​​$ 198,936 ​​​​$ 75,853 ​​​​$ 12,473 ​​​​$ 368,589 ​​
​
To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality within the loan portfolio, and for purposes of analyzing historical loss
rates used in the determination of the ALLL, the Company utilizes the following categories of credit grades: pass,
special mention, substandard, and doubtful. The four categories, which are derived from standard regulatory rating
definitions, are assigned upon initial approval of credit to borrowers and updated periodically thereafter. Pass ratings,
which are assigned to those borrowers that do not have identified potential or well defined weaknesses and for which
there is a high likelihood of orderly repayment, are updated periodically based on the size and credit characteristics of
the borrower. All other categories are updated on at least a quarterly basis.
The Company assigns a special mention rating to loans that have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s
close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may, at some future date, result in the deterioration of
the repayment prospects for the loan or the Company’s credit position.
The Company assigns a substandard rating to loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and
paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged. Substandard loans have well defined weaknesses or
weaknesses that could jeopardize the orderly repayment of the debt. Loans and leases in this grade also are
characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies noted are not
addressed and corrected.
The Company assigns a doubtful rating to loans that have all the attributes of a substandard rating with the added
characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. The possibility of loss is extremely high, but because of
certain important and reasonable specific pending factors that may work to the advantage of and strengthen the credit
quality of the loan or lease, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its more exact status may be
determined. Pending factors may include a proposed merger or acquisition, liquidation proceeding, capital injection,
perfecting liens on additional collateral or refinancing plans.
F-18
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The Company evaluates the loan risk grading system definitions and allowance for loan losses methodology on an
ongoing basis. No significant changes were made to either during the current and past year to date periods presented.
Loan Portfolio Aging Analysis
As of June 30, 2018

​ ​​

30 – 59
Days
Past Due
and
Accruing

​​

60 – 89 Days
Past Due
and
Accruing

​​

Greater
Than
90 Days
and
Accruing

​​NonAccrual ​​

Total
Past Due
and
Non
Accrual

​​Current ​​Total LoansReceivable ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ 35 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 57 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 92 ​​​​$ 84,680 ​​​​$ 84,772 ​​
Commercial real
estate ​​​​ 997 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 486 ​​​​​ 1,483 ​​​​​ 205,312 ​​​​​ 206,795 ​​

Residential ​​​​ 611 ​​​​​ 18 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 659 ​​​​​ 1,288 ​​​​​ 75,188 ​​​​​ 76,476 ​​
Installment ​​​​ 13 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 59 ​​​​​ 72 ​​​​​ 11,398 ​​​​​ 11,470 ​​
Total ​​​$ 1,656 ​​​​$ 18 ​​​​$ 57 ​​​​$ 1,204 ​​​​$ 2,935 ​​​​$ 376,578 ​​​​$ 379,513 ​​
​
Loan Portfolio Aging Analysis
As of December 31, 2017

​ ​​

30 – 59
Days
Past
Due
and
Accruing

​​

60 – 89 Days
Past Due
and
Accruing

​​

Greater
Than
90 Days
and
Accruing

​​NonAccrual ​​

Total Past
Due and
Non
Accrual

​​Current ​​Total LoansReceivable ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ 56 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ —​​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 139 ​​​​$ 81,188 ​​​​$ 81,327 ​​
Commercial real
estate ​​​​ 262 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ —​​​​​ 500 ​​​​​ 762 ​​​​​ 198,174 ​​​​​ 198,936 ​​

Residential ​​​​ 559 ​​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ —​​​​​ 760 ​​​​​ 1,625 ​​​​​ 74,228 ​​​​​ 75,853 ​​
Installment ​​​​ 61 ​​​​​ 40 ​​​​​ —​​​​​ 52 ​​​​​ 153 ​​​​​ 12,320 ​​​​​ 12,473 ​​
Total ​​​$ 938 ​​​​$ 346 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ 1,395 ​​​​$ 2,679 ​​​​$ 365,910 ​​​​$ 368,589 ​​
​
A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (ASC 310-10-35-16), when
based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the
borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include nonperforming commercial
loans but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings where concessions have been granted to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the
loan, payment extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions intended to maximize collection.
F-19
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Impaired Loans

​ ​​As of June 30, 2018 ​​
For the three months
ended
June 30, 2018

​​
For the six months
ended
June 30, 2018

​

​ ​​RecordedBalance ​​
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

​​SpecificAllowance​​

Average
Investment
in
Impaired
Loans

​​
Interest
Income
Recognized

​​

Average
Investment
in
Impaired
Loans

​​
Interest
Income
Recognized

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Loans without a specific
valuation allowance: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​

Commercial ​​​$ 58 ​​​​$ 58 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 59 ​​​​$ 2 ​​​​$ 60 ​​​​$ 2 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 168 ​​​​​ 168 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 583 ​​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 582 ​​​​​ 5 ​​
Residential ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Installment ​​​​ 98 ​​​​​ 98 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 99 ​​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 100 ​​​​​ 2 ​​
​ ​​​​ 324 ​​​​​ 324 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 741 ​​​​​ 4 ​​​​​ 742 ​​​​​ 9 ​​
Loans with a specific
valuation allowance: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​

Commercial ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 409 ​​​​​ 409 ​​​​​ 75 ​​​​​ 421 ​​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 422 ​​​​​ 1 ​​
Residential ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Installment ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​​​ 409 ​​​​​ 409 ​​​​​ 75 ​​​​​ 421 ​​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 422 ​​​​​ 1 ​​
Total: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Commercial ​​​$ 58 ​​​​$ 58 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 59 ​​​​$ 2 ​​​​$ 60 ​​​​$ 2 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​$ 577 ​​​​$ 577 ​​​​$ 75 ​​​​$ 1,004 ​​​​$ 2 ​​​​$ 1,004 ​​​​$ 6 ​​
Residential ​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​
Installment ​​​$ 98 ​​​​$ 98 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 99 ​​​​$ 1 ​​​​$ 100 ​​​​$ 2 ​​
​
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Impaired Loans

​ ​​As of December 31, 2017 ​​
For the three months
ended
June 30, 2017

​​
For the six months
ended
June 30, 2017

​

​ ​​RecordedBalance ​​
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

​​SpecificAllowance​​

Average
Investment
in
Impaired
Loans

​​
Interest
Income
Recognized

​​

Average
Investment
in
Impaired
Loans

​​
Interest
Income
Recognized

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Loans without a specific
valuation allowance: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​

Commercial ​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 131 ​​​​$ 1 ​​​​$ 128 ​​​​$ 2 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 209 ​​​​​ 317 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 808 ​​​​​ 3 ​​​​​ 825 ​​​​​ 5 ​​
Residential ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Installment ​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 463 ​​​​​ 3 ​​​​​ 477 ​​​​​ 3 ​​
​ ​​​​ 598 ​​​​​ 706 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 1,402 ​​​​​ 7 ​​​​​ 1,430 ​​​​​ 10 ​​
Loans with a specific
valuation allowance: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​

Commercial ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 3 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 73 ​​​​​ 489 ​​​​​ 6 ​​​​​ 498 ​​​​​ 12 ​​
Residential ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Installment ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 73 ​​​​​ 489 ​​​​​ 6 ​​​​​ 498 ​​​​​ 15 ​​
Total: ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Commercial ​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 73 ​​​​$ 131 ​​​​$ 1 ​​​​$ 128 ​​​​$ 5 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​$ 619 ​​​​$ 727 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 1,297 ​​​​$ 9 ​​​​$ 1,323 ​​​​$ 17 ​​
Residential ​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​
Installment ​​​$ 306 ​​​​$ 306 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 463 ​​​​$ 3 ​​​​$ 477 ​​​​$ 3 ​​
​
Interest income recognized on a cash basis was not materiality different than interest income recognized.
For the TDRs noted in the tables below, the Company extended the maturity dates and granted interest rate
concessions as part of each of those loan restructurings. The loans included in the tables are considered impaired and
specific loss calculations are performed on the individual loans. In conjunction with the restructuring there were no
amounts charged-off.
​ ​​Three months ended June 30, 2018 ​

​ ​​
Number
of
Contracts

​​

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​​

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​​—​​​​ $ —​ ​​​ $ —​ ​
Commercial real estate ​​​​—​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
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Residential ​​​​—​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Installment ​​​​—​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
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​ ​​Three months Ended June 30, 2018 ​

​ ​​InterestOnly​​Term ​​Combination ​​TotalModification ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​ $ —​ ​​​ $ —​ ​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ —​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Residential ​​​​ —​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Consumer ​​​​ —​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
​ ​​Six months ended June 30, 2018 ​

​ ​​
Number
of
Contracts

​​

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​​

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​​—​​​​ $ —​ ​​​ $ —​ ​
Commercial real estate ​​​​—​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Residential ​​​​—​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Installment ​​​​—​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
​ ​​Six months Ended June 30, 2018 ​

​ ​​InterestOnly​​Term ​​Combination ​​TotalModification ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​ $ —​ ​​​ $ —​ ​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ —​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Residential ​​​​ —​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
Consumer ​​​​ —​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​ ​ —​ ​
​ ​​Three months ended June 30, 2017 ​

​ ​​
Number
of
Contracts

​​

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​​

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​​—​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​2 ​​​​​ 127 ​​​​​ 103 ​​
Residential ​​​​—​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Installment ​​​​—​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​Three months Ended June 30, 2017 ​

​ ​​InterestOnly​​Term ​​Combination ​​TotalModification ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ —​​​​$ — ​​​​ $ —​ ​​​$ — ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ —​​​​​ 103 ​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​​ 103 ​​
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Residential ​​​​ —​​​​​ — ​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​​ — ​​
Consumer ​​​​ —​​​​​ — ​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​​ — ​​
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​ ​​Six months ended June 30, 2017 ​

​ ​​
Number
of
Contracts

​​

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​​

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​​—​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​2 ​​​​​ 127 ​​​​​ 103 ​​
Residential ​​​​—​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
Installment ​​​​—​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​Six months Ended June 30, 2017 ​

​ ​​InterestOnly​​Term ​​Combination ​​TotalModification ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ —​​​​$ — ​​​​ $ —​ ​​​$ — ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ —​​​​​ 103 ​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​​ 103 ​​
Residential ​​​​ —​​​​​ — ​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​​ — ​​
Consumer ​​​​ —​​​​​ — ​​​​ ​ —​ ​​​​ — ​​
During the six months ended June 30, 2018 troubled debt restructurings did not have an impact on the allowance for
loan losses. During the six months ended June 30, 2017 troubled debt restructurings described above increased the
allowance for loan losses by 24,000. At June 30, 2018 and 2017 and for three and six month periods then ended, there
were no material defaults of any troubled debt restructurings that were modified in the last 12 months. The Company
generally considers TDR’s that become 90 days or more past due under the modified terms as subsequently defaulted.
Note 4:   Benefit Plans
Pension expense includes the following:

​ ​​Three months endedJune 30, ​​Six months endedJune 30, ​

​ ​​2018 ​​2017 ​​2018 ​​2017 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Service cost ​​​$ 76 ​​​​$ 68 ​​​​$ 152 ​​​​$ 136 ​​
Interest cost ​​​​ 55 ​​​​​ 50 ​​​​​ 110 ​​​​​ 100 ​​
Expected return on assets ​​​​ (111) ​​​​​ (90) ​​​​​ (222) ​​​​​ (180) ​​
Amortization of prior service cost and net loss ​​​​ (10) ​​​​​ (6) ​​​​​ (20) ​​​​​ (12) ​​
Pension expense ​​​$ 10 ​​​​$ 22 ​​​​$ 20 ​​​​$ 44 ​​
​
Note 5:   Off-balance-sheet Activities
Some financial instruments, such as loan commitments, credit lines, letters of credit and overdraft protection, are
issued to meet customer financing needs. These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others, as
long as conditions established in the contracts are met, and usually have expiration dates. Commitments may expire
without being used. Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments, although
material losses are not anticipated. The same credit policies are used to make such commitments as are used for loans,
including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment.
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A summary of the notional or contractual amounts of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk at the indicated
dates is as follows:

​ ​​June 30,2018 ​​
December
31,
2017

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial loans unused lines of credit ​​​$ 27,089 ​​​​$ 25,814 ​​
Commitment to originate loans ​​​​ 15,909 ​​​​​ 15,350 ​​
Consumer open end lines of credit ​​​​ 37,971 ​​​​​ 36,938 ​​
Standby lines of credit ​​​​ 46 ​​​​​ — ​​
Note 6:   Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, included in stockholders’ equity, are as follows:

​ ​​June 30,2018 ​​
December
31,
2017

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Net unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale ​​​$ (405) ​​​​$ (290) ​​
Net unrealized loss for unfunded status of defined benefit plan liability ​​​​ (242) ​​​​​ (289) ​​
​ ​​​​ (647) ​​​​​ (579) ​​
Tax effect ​​​​ 136 ​​​​​ 159 ​​
Net-of-tax amount ​​​$ (511) ​​​​$ (420) ​​
​
Note 7:   Fair Value Measurements
The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company also utilizes a fair value
hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair
value:
Level 1
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date
​
Level 2
Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities
​
Level 3
Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
assets or liabilities
​
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Available-for-sale Securities
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using quoted prices of securities
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with similar characteristics or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are
market-based or independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates,
volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such securities are classified in Level 2
of the valuation hierarchy.
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The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair
value measurements fall at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:
​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​Fair Value ​​

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
June 30, 2018 ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​ ​​​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 44,581 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ 44,581 ​​​​ $ —​ ​
State and political subdivisions ​​​​ 41,631 ​​​​​ —​​​​​ 41,631 ​​​​ ​ —​ ​
December 31, 2017 ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​ ​​​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 44,959 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ 44,959 ​​​​ $ —​ ​
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such
assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. For assets classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the process
used to develop the reported fair value is described below.
Impaired Loans (Collateral Dependent)
Collateral dependent impaired loans consisted primarily of loans secured by nonresidential real estate. Management
has determined fair value measurements on impaired loans primarily through evaluations of appraisals performed.
Due to the nature of the valuation inputs, impaired loans are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.
The Company considers the appraisal or evaluation as the starting point for determining fair value and then considers
other factors and events in the environment that may affect the fair value. Appraisals of the collateral underlying
collateral-dependent loans are obtained when the loan is determined to be collateral-dependent and subsequently as
deemed necessary by the Company’s Chief Lender. Appraisals are reviewed for accuracy and consistency by the
Company’s Chief Lender. Appraisers are selected from the list of approved appraisers maintained by management. The
appraised values are reduced by discounts to consider lack of marketability and estimated cost to sell if repayment or
satisfaction of the loan is dependent on the sale of the collateral. These discounts and estimates are developed by the
Company’s Chief Lender by comparison to historical results.
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value (based
on current appraised value) at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure,
valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell. Management has determined fair value measurements on other real estate owned primarily
through evaluations of appraisals performed, and current and past offers. Due to the nature of the valuation inputs,
foreclosed assets held for sale are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.
Appraisals of foreclosed assets held for sale are obtained when the real estate is acquired and subsequently as deemed
necessary by the Company’s Chief lender. Appraisals are reviewed for accuracy and consistency by the Company’s
Chief Lender and are selected from the list of approved appraisers maintained by management.
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The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the
fair value measurements fall at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.
​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​FairValue ​​

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
June 30, 2018 ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​​​​​ ​ ​ ​ ​​​​ ​ ​​
Collateral dependent impaired loans ​​​$ 334 ​​​​$ —​​​​ $ —​ ​​​$ 334 ​​
Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​​ 250 ​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​​​​​ 250 ​​
December 31, 2017 ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​​​​​ ​ ​ ​ ​​​​ ​ ​​
Collateral dependent impaired loans ​​​$ 336 ​​​​$ —​​​​ $ —​ ​​​$ 336 ​​
Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​​ 34 ​​​​​ —​​​​ ​ —​​​​​ 34 ​​
Unobservable (Level 3) Inputs
The following table presents quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in recurring and nonrecurring
Level 3 fair value measurements.

​ ​​Fair Value at6/30/18 ​​Valuation Technique ​​Unobservable Inputs ​​Range ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​

Collateral-dependent impaired loans ​​$334 ​​Market comparableproperties ​​Marketabilitydiscount ​​10% – 25%​

Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​$250 ​​Market comparableproperties ​​Selling costs ​​10% – 35%​

​ ​​Fair Value at12/31/17 ​​Valuation Technique ​​Unobservable Inputs ​​Range ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​

Collateral-dependent impaired loans ​​$336 ​​Market comparableproperties ​​Marketabilitydiscount ​​10% – 25%​

Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​$34 ​​Market comparableproperties ​​Selling costs ​​10% – 35%​

There were no significant changes in the valuation techniques used during 2018 and 2017.
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The following table presents estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments. The fair values of certain of
these instruments were calculated by discounting expected cash flows, which involves significant judgments by
management and uncertainties. Because no market exists for certain of these financial instruments and because
management does not intend to sell these financial instruments, the Company does not know whether the fair values
shown below represent values at which the respective financial instruments could be sold individually or in the
aggregate.
​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​CarryingAmount ​​

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
June 30, 2018 ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Financial assets ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Cash and cash equivalents ​​​$ 16,308 ​​​​$ 16,308 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​
Loans, net of allowance ​​​​ 377,433 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 373,437 ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ — ​​
Accrued interest receivable ​​​​ 1,275 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 1,275 ​​​​​ — ​​
Financial liabilities ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Deposits ​​​​ 415,634 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 354,553 ​​​​​ — ​​
Short term borrowings ​​​​ 12,346 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 12,346 ​​​​​ — ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances ​​​​ 33,768 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 33,762 ​​​​​ — ​​
Subordinated debentures ​​​​ 4,124 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 3,733 ​​​​​ — ​​
Interest payable ​​​​ 122 ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ 122 ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​CarryingAmount ​​

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
December 31, 2017 ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Financial assets ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Cash and cash equivalents ​​​$ 14,315 ​​​​$ 14,315 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​
Loans, net of allowance ​​​​ 366,467 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 368,033 ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ — ​​
Accrued interest receivable ​​​​ 993 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 993 ​​​​​ — ​​
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Financial liabilities ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​ ​​
Deposits ​​​​ 385,966 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 358,722 ​​​​​ — ​​
Short term borrowings ​​​​ 11,085 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 11,085 ​​​​​ — ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances ​​​​ 10,022 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 10,012 ​​​​​ — ​​
Subordinated debentures ​​​​ 4,124 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 3,590 ​​​​​ — ​​
Interest payable ​​​​ 70 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 70 ​​​​​ — ​​
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments.
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accrued Interest Receivable and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
The carrying amounts approximate fair value.
Loans
For June 30, 2018, fair values of loans and leases are estimated on an exit price basis incorporating discounts for
credit, liquidity and marketability factors. This is not comparable with the fair values disclosed for December 31,
2017, which were based on an entrance price basis. For that date, fair values of variable rate loans and leases that
reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk were based on carrying values. The fair values of other
loans and leases as of that date were estimated using discounted cash flow analyses which used interest rates then
being offered for loans and leases with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.
The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans
would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. Loans with similar
characteristics were aggregated for purposes of the calculations.
Deposits
Deposits include demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts and certain money market deposits. The carrying
amount approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits is estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.
Interest Payable
The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Short-term Borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Subordinated Debentures
Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate the
fair value of existing debt.
Commitments to Originate Loans, Letters of Credit and Lines of Credit
The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the
counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of
interest rates and the committed rates. The fair values of letters of credit and lines of credit are based on fees currently
charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate or otherwise settle the obligations with the
counterparties at the reporting date. Fair values of commitments were not material at June 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017.
Note 8:   Repurchase Agreements
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (“repurchase agreements”) with customers represent funds deposited by
customers, generally on an overnight basis that are collateralized by investment securities owned by the Company.
At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, repurchase agreement borrowings totaled $12,346,000 and $11,085,000,
respectively and are included in short-term borrowings on the consolidated condensed balance sheets. All repurchase
agreements are subject to term and conditions of repurchase/security agreements between the Company and the
customer and are accounted for as secured borrowings. The Company’s repurchase agreements reflected in short-term
borrowings, consist of customer accounts and securities which are pledged on an individual security basis.
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The following table presents the Company’s repurchase agreements accounted for as secured borrowings:
Remaining Contractual Maturity of the Agreement
(In thousands)

June 30, 2018 ​​Overnight andContinuous ​​
Up to
30
Days

​​30 – 90Days ​​
Greater
than
90 Days

​​Total ​

Repurchase Agreements ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​ ​​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 12,346 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ 12,346 ​​
Total ​​​$ 12,346 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ 12,346 ​​
​

December 31, 2017 ​​Overnight andContinuous ​​
Up to
30
Days

​​30 – 90Days ​​
Greater
than
90 Days

​​Total ​

Repurchase Agreements ​​​​ ​ ​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​ ​​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 11,085 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ 11,085 ​​
Total ​​​$ 11,085 ​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ —​​​​$ 11,085 ​​
​
These borrowings were collateralized with U.S. government and agency securities with a carrying value of  $18.2
million at June 30, 2018 and $18.4 million at December 31, 2017. Declines in the fair value would require the
Company to pledge additional securities.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Audit Committee
United Bancorp, Inc.
Martins Ferry, Ohio
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of United Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2007.
Cincinnati, Ohio
March 20, 2018

F-30

Edgar Filing: Edenbrook Capital, LLC - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 21



TABLE OF CONTENTS​
United Bancorp, Inc.
 
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(In thousands, except share data)
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Assets ​​ ​
Cash and due from banks ​​​$ 4,662 ​​​​$ 4,233 ​​
Interest-bearing demand deposits ​​​​ 9,653 ​​​​​ 7,308 ​​
Cash and cash equivalents ​​​​ 14,315 ​​​​​ 11,541 ​​
Available-for-sale securities ​​​​ 44,959 ​​​​​ 39,766 ​​
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of  $2,122 and $2,341 at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively ​​​​ 366,467 ​​​​​ 354,380 ​​

Premises and equipment ​​​​ 11,740 ​​​​​ 11,884 ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ 4,164 ​​
Foreclosed assets held for sale, net ​​​​ 397 ​​​​​ 335 ​​
Accrued interest receivable ​​​​ 993 ​​​​​ 840 ​​
Deferred federal income taxes ​​​​ 349 ​​​​​ 850 ​​
Bank-owned life insurance ​​​​ 12,114 ​​​​​ 11,822 ​​
Other assets ​​​​ 3,834 ​​​​​ 2,436 ​​
Total assets ​​​$ 459,332 ​​​​$ 438,018 ​​
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ​​ ​
Liabilities ​​ ​
Deposits ​​ ​
Demand ​​​$ 237,980 ​​​​$ 203,745 ​​
Savings ​​​​ 82,169 ​​​​​ 81,825 ​​
Time ​​​​ 65,817 ​​​​​ 53,233 ​​
Total deposits ​​​​ 385,966 ​​​​​ 338,803 ​​
Securities sold under repurchase agreements ​​​​ 11,085 ​​​​​ 9,393 ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ​​​​ 10,022 ​​​​​ 39,855 ​​
Subordinated debentures ​​​​ 4,124 ​​​​​ 4,124 ​​
Interest payable and other liabilities ​​​​ 4,240 ​​​​​ 3,202 ​​
Total liabilities ​​​​ 415,437 ​​​​​ 395,377 ​​
Stockholders’ Equity ​​ ​
Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 2,000,000 shares; no shares
issued ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​

Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 10,000,000 shares; issued
2017 – 5,435,304 shares, 2016 – 5,425,304 shares; outstanding
2017 – 5,244,105, 2016 – 5,208,015

​​​​ 5,435 ​​​​​ 5,425 ​​

Additional paid-in capital ​​​​ 18,020 ​​​​​ 18,024 ​​
Retained earnings ​​​​ 23,260 ​​​​​ 22,483 ​​

​​​​ (1,671) ​​​​​ (1,880) ​​
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Stock held by deferred compensation plan; 2017 – 185,355 shares,
2016 – 211,509 shares
Unearned ESOP compensation ​​​​ (683) ​​​​​ (911) ​​
Accumulated other comprehensive income loss ​​​​ (420) ​​​​​ (454) ​​
Treasury stock, at cost
2017 – 5,744 shares, 2016 – 5,744 shares ​​​​ (46) ​​​​​ (46) ​​

Total stockholders’ equity ​​​​ 43,895 ​​​​​ 42,641 ​​
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ​​​$ 459,332 ​​​​$ 438,018 ​​
​
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United Bancorp, Inc.
 
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(In thousands except per share data)
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Interest and Dividend Income ​​ ​
Loans ​​​$ 16,803 ​​​​$ 16,018 ​​
Securities ​​ ​
Taxable ​​​​ 481 ​​​​​ 325 ​​
Tax-exempt ​​​​ 7 ​​​​​ 81 ​​
Federal funds sold ​​​​ 151 ​​​​​ 36 ​​
Dividends on Federal Home Loan Bank and other stock ​​​​ 209 ​​​​​ 175 ​​
Total interest and dividend income ​​​​ 17,651 ​​​​​ 16,635 ​​
Interest Expense ​​ ​
Deposits ​​​​ 1,219 ​​​​​ 765 ​​
Borrowings ​​​​ 545 ​​​​​ 1,019 ​​
Total interest expense ​​​​ 1,764 ​​​​​ 1,784 ​​
Net Interest Income ​​​​ 15,887 ​​​​​ 14,851 ​​
Provision for Loan Losses ​​​​ 100 ​​​​​ 301 ​​
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses ​​​​ 15,787 ​​​​​ 14,550 ​​
Noninterest Income ​​ ​
Customer service fees ​​​​ 2,502 ​​​​​ 2,594 ​​
Net gains on loan sales ​​​​ 98 ​​​​​ 97 ​​
Earnings on bank-owned life insurance ​​​​ 471 ​​​​​ 463 ​​
Other ​​​​ 381 ​​​​​ 527 ​​
Total noninterest income ​​​​ 3,452 ​​​​​ 3,681 ​​
Noninterest Expense ​​ ​
Salaries and employee benefits ​​​​ 7,210 ​​​​​ 7,021 ​​
Net occupancy and equipment expense ​​​​ 2,071 ​​​​​ 1,897 ​​
Provision for losses on foreclosed real estate ​​​​ 20 ​​​​​ 6 ​​
Professional fees ​​​​ 825 ​​​​​ 720 ​​
Insurance ​​​​ 346 ​​​​​ 225 ​​
Deposit insurance premiums ​​​​ 185 ​​​​​ 198 ​​
Franchise and other taxes ​​​​ 347 ​​​​​ 325 ​​
Marketing expense ​​​​ 426 ​​​​​ 324 ​​
Printing and office supplies ​​​​ 112 ​​​​​ 117 ​​
Other ​​​​ 2,107 ​​​​​ 2,238 ​​
Total noninterest expense ​​​​ 13,649 ​​​​​ 13,071 ​​
Income Before Federal Income Taxes ​​​​ 5,590 ​​​​​ 5,160 ​​
Provision for Federal Income Taxes ​​​​ 2,044 ​​​​​ 1,580 ​​
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Net Income ​​​$ 3,546 ​​​​$ 3,580 ​​
Basic Earnings Per Share ​​​$ 0.72 ​​​​$ 0.72 ​​
Diluted Earnings Per Share ​​​$ 0.71 ​​​​$ 0.71 ​​
​
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United Bancorp, Inc.
 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(In thousands)
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Net income ​​​$ 3,546 ​​​​$ 3,580 ​​
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ​​ ​
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities during the period, net of
taxes (benefits) of  $24 and $(159) for each respective period ​​​​ 89 ​​​​​ (310) ​​

Change in funded status of defined benefit plan, net of  (benefits) $(20) and taxes of  $22 for
each respective period ​​​​ (40) ​​​​​ 42 ​​

Amortization of prior service included in net periodic pension expense, (benefits) of  $(30)
and $(30) for each respective period ​​​​ (59) ​​​​​ (59) ​​

Amortization of net loss included in net periodic pension cost, net of tax of $21 and $27 for
each respective period ​​​​ 44 ​​​​​ 54 ​​

Comprehensive income ​​​$ 3,580 ​​​​$ 3,307 ​​
​
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United Bancorp, Inc.
 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(In thousands except per share data)

​ ​​CommonStock ​​
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

​​

Treasury
Stock and
Deferred
Compensation

​​

Shares
Acquired
By
ESOP

​​RetainedEarnings ​​

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

​​Total ​

Balance,
January 1, 2016 ​​​$ 5,385 ​​​​$ 18,245 ​​​​$ (2,125) ​​​​$ (1,271) ​​​​$ 21,443 ​​​​$ (181) ​​​​$ 41,496 ​​

Net income ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,580 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,580 ​​
Other
comprehensive
loss

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (273) ​​​​​ (273) ​​

Cash
dividends – $0.47
per share

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (2,540) ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (2,540) ​​

Shares
purchased for
deferred
compensation
plan

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (199) ​​​​​ 199 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​

Expense related
to share-based
compensation
plans

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 147 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 147 ​​

Restricted stock
activity ​​​​ 40 ​​​​​ (40) ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ — ​​

Amortization of
ESOP ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (129) ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 360 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 231 ​​

Balance,
December 31,
2016

​​​​ 5,425 ​​​​​ 18,024 ​​​​​ (1,926) ​​​​​ (911) ​​​​​ 22,483 ​​​​​ (454) ​​​​​ 42,641 ​​

Net income ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,546 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,546 ​​
Other
comprehensive
income

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 34 ​​​​​ 34 ​​

Cash
dividends – $0.51
per share

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (2,769) ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (2,769) ​​

Shares
purchased for
deferred
compensation
plan

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (209) ​​​​​ 209 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
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Expense related
to share-based
compensation
plans

​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 163 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 163 ​​

Restricted stock
activity ​​​​ 10 ​​​​​ (10) ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​

Amortization of
ESOP ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 52 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 228 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 280 ​​

Balance,
December 31,
2017

​​​$ 5,435 ​​​​$ 18,020 ​​​​$ (1,717) ​​​​$ (683) ​​​​$ 23,260 ​​​​$ (420) ​​​​$ 43,895 ​​

​
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United Bancorp, Inc.
 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(In thousands)
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Operating Activities ​​ ​
Net income ​​​$ 3,546 ​​​​$ 3,580 ​​
Items not requiring (providing) cash ​​ ​
Depreciation and amortization ​​​​ 918 ​​​​​ 819 ​​
Provision for loan losses ​​​​ 100 ​​​​​ 301 ​​
Provision for losses on foreclosed real estate ​​​​ 20 ​​​​​ 6 ​​
Amortization of premiums and discounts on securities-net ​​​​ (1) ​​​​​ (1) ​​
Realized gains on sale of Great Lake Bankers Bank stock ​​​​ — ​​​​​ (162) ​​
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights ​​​​ 6 ​​​​​ 12 ​​
Deferred income taxes ​​​​ 545 ​​​​​ 82 ​​
Originations of loans held for sale ​​​​ (4,424) ​​​​​ (4,451) ​​
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale ​​​​ 4,522 ​​​​​ 4,548 ​​
Net gains on sales of loans ​​​​ (98) ​​​​​ (97) ​​
Amortization of ESOP ​​​​ 280 ​​​​​ 231 ​​
Expense related to share-based compensation plans ​​​​ 163 ​​​​​ 147 ​​
Loss on sale of real estate and other repossessed assets ​​​​ 24 ​​​​​ 4 ​​
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance ​​​​ (292) ​​​​​ (313) ​​
Changes in ​​ ​
Accrued interest receivable ​​​​ (153) ​​​​​ (37) ​​
Other assets ​​​​ (1,627) ​​​​​ (34) ​​
Interest payable and other liabilities ​​​​ 1,038 ​​​​​ (458) ​​
Net cash provided by operating activities ​​​​ 4,567 ​​​​​ 4,177 ​​
Investing Activities ​​ ​
Purchases of available-for-sale securities ​​​​ (12,248) ​​​​​ (42,000) ​​
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale securities ​​​​ 7,249 ​​​​​ 36,389 ​​
Net change in loans ​​​​ (12,336) ​​​​​ (27,468) ​​
Proceeds from sale of Great Lake Bankers Bank stock ​​​​ — ​​​​​ 208 ​​
Purchases of premises and equipment ​​​​ (782) ​​​​​ (2,257) ​​
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets ​​​​ 71 ​​​​​ 124 ​​
Net cash used in investing activities ​​​​ (18,046) ​​​​​ (35,004) ​​
Financing Activities ​​ ​
Net increase in deposits ​​​​ 47,163 ​​​​​ 15,181 ​​
Proceeds of Federal Home Loan Bank advances ​​​​ 11,000 ​​​​​ 19,500 ​​
Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances ​​​​ (40,833) ​​​​​ (6,175) ​​
Net change in securities sold under repurchase agreements ​​​​ 1,692 ​​​​​ 3,701 ​​
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Cash dividends paid ​​​​ (2,769) ​​​​​ (2,540) ​​
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ​​​​ 16,253 ​​​​​ 29,667 ​​
Increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ​​​​ 2,774 ​​​​​ (1,160) ​​
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year ​​​​ 11,541 ​​​​​ 12,701 ​​
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year ​​​$ 14,315 ​​​​$ 11,541 ​​
Supplemental Cash Flows Information ​​ ​
Interest paid on deposits and borrowings ​​​$ 1,807 ​​​​$ 1,796 ​​
Federal income taxes paid ​​​$ 1,575 ​​​​$ 1,133 ​​
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Investing Activities ​​ ​
Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​$ 149 ​​​​$ 111 ​​
​
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Note 1:
Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
​
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of United Bancorp, Inc. (“United” or “the Company”) and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Unified Bank of Martins Ferry, Ohio (“the Bank” or “Unified”). All intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
Nature of Operations
The Company’s revenues, operating income and assets are almost exclusively derived from banking. Accordingly, all
of the Company’s banking operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating
segment. Customers are mainly located in Athens, Belmont, Carroll, Fairfield, Harrison, Jefferson and Tuscarawas
Counties and the surrounding localities in northeastern, east-central and southeastern Ohio and include a wide range of
individuals, businesses and other organizations. Unified Bank conducts its business through its main office in Martins
Ferry, Ohio and branches in Amesville, Bridgeport, Colerain, Dellroy, Dillonvale, Dover, Glouster, Jewett, Lancaster
Downtown, Lancaster East, Nelsonville, New Philadelphia, St. Clairsville East, St. Clairsville West, Sherrodsville,
Strasburg and Tiltonsville, Ohio. The Bank also operates a Loan Production Office in Wheeling, West Virginia.
The Company’s primary deposit products are checking, savings and term certificate accounts and its primary lending
products are residential mortgage, commercial and installment loans. Substantially all loans are secured by specific
items of collateral including business assets, consumer assets and real estate. Commercial loans are expected to be
repaid from cash flow from operations of businesses. Real estate loans are secured by both residential and commercial
real estate. Net interest income is affected by the relative amount of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities and the interest received or paid on these balances. The level of interest rates paid or received by the
Company can be significantly influenced by a number of environmental factors, such as governmental monetary
policy, that are outside of management’s control.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance
for loan losses and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In
connection with the determination of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of foreclosed assets held for sale,
management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties.
Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, cash equivalents consisted primarily of due from accounts with the Federal Reserve
and other correspondent Banks.
Currently, the FDIC’s insurance limits are $250,000. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, none of the Company’s cash
accounts exceeded the federally insured limit of  $250,000.
Securities
Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as “held to
maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to maturity, including equity securities with
readily determinable fair values, are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other
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comprehensive income. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method
over the terms of the securities. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are
determined using the specific identification method.
For debt securities with fair value below amortized cost, when the Company does not intend to sell a debt security,
and it is more likely than not the Company will not have to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis, it
recognizes the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment of a debt security in earnings and the
remaining portion in other comprehensive income. For held-to-maturity debt securities, the amount of an
other-than-temporary impairment recorded in other comprehensive income for the noncredit portion of a previous
other-than-temporary impairment is amortized prospectively over the remaining life of the security on the basis of the
timing of future estimated cash flows of the security.
Loans Held for Sale
Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or fair value
in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company did not have any loans held for sale.
Loans
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoffs are
reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for unearned income, charge-offs, the allowance for loan
losses, any unamortized deferred fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on
purchased loans.
For loans amortized at cost, interest income is accrued based on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees,
net of certain direct origination costs, as well as premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized as a level yield
adjustment over the respective term of the loan.
For all loan classes, the accrual of interest is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due unless the credit is
well-secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. For all loan classes,
the entire balance of the loan is considered past due if the minimum payment contractually required to be paid is not
received by the contractual due date. For all loan classes, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier
date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.
Management’s general practice is to proactively charge down loans individually evaluated for impairment to the fair
value of the underlying collateral. Consistent with regulatory guidance, charge-offs on all loan segments are taken
when specific loans, or portions thereof, are considered uncollectible. The Company’s policy is to promptly charge
these loans off in the period the uncollectible loss is reasonably determined.
For all loan portfolio segments except residential and consumer loans, the Company promptly charges-off loans, or
portions thereof, when available information confirms that specific loans are uncollectible based on information that
includes, but is not limited to, (1) the deteriorating financial condition of the borrower, (2) declining collateral values,
and/or (3) legal action, including bankruptcy, that impairs the borrower’s ability to adequately meet its obligations. For
impaired loans that are considered to be solely collateral dependent, a partial charge-off is recorded when a loss has
been confirmed by an updated appraisal or other appropriate valuation of the collateral.
The Company charges-off residential and consumer loans when the Company reasonably determines the amount of
the loss. The Company adheres to timeframes established by applicable regulatory guidance which provides for the
charge-down of 1-4 family first and junior lien mortgages to the net realizable value less costs to sell when the loan is
120 days past due, charge-off of unsecured open-end loans when the loan is 120 days past due, and charge down to the
net realizable value when other secured loans are 120 days past due. Loans at these respective delinquency thresholds
for which the Company can clearly document that the loan is both well-secured and in the process of collection, such
that collection will occur regardless of delinquency status, need not be charged off.
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For all classes, all interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off are reversed
against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until
qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured. Nonaccrual loans are returned to
accrual status when, in the opinion of management, the financial position of the borrower indicates there is no longer
any reasonable doubt as to the timely collection of interest or principal. The Company requires a period of satisfactory
performance of not less than six months before returning a nonaccrual loan to accrual status.
When cash payments are received on impaired loans in each loan class, the Company records the payment as interest
income unless collection of the remaining recorded principal amount is doubtful, at which time payments are used to
reduce the principal balance of the loan. Troubled debt restructured loans recognize interest income on an accrual
basis at the renegotiated rate if the loan is in compliance with the modified terms, no principal reduction has been
granted and the loan has demonstrated the ability to perform in accordance with the renegotiated terms for a period of
at least six months.
Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to income. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.
The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a monthly basis by Bank management and is based upon management’s
periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying
collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are
susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.
The allowance consists of allocated and general components. The allocated component relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted
cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that
loan. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical charge-off experience by segment.
The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced
by the Company over the prior five years. Management believes the five year historical loss experience methodology
is appropriate in the current economic environment. Other adjustments (qualitative/environmental considerations) for
each segment may be added to the allowance for each loan segment after an assessment of internal or external
influences on credit quality that are not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data.
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the
loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral
value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due based on the loan’s current
payment status and the borrower’s financial condition including available sources of cash flows. Loans that experience
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines
the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.
Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for non-homogenous type loans such as commercial, non-owner
residential and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. For impaired loans where the Company utilizes the discounted cash flows to determine the level of
impairment, the Company includes the entire change in the present value of cash flows as bad debt expense.
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The fair values of collateral dependent impaired loans are based on independent appraisals of the collateral. In general,
the Company acquires an updated appraisal upon identification of impairment and annually thereafter for commercial,
commercial real estate and multi-family loans. If the most recent appraisal is over a year old, and a new appraisal is
not performed, due to lack of comparable values or other reasons, the existing appraisal is utilized and discounted
generally 10% -35% based on the age of the appraisal, condition of the subject property, and overall economic
conditions. After determining the collateral value as described, the fair value is calculated based on the determined
collateral value less selling expenses. The potential for outdated appraisal values is considered in our determination of
the allowance for loan losses through our analysis of various trends and conditions including the local economy,
trends in charge-offs and delinquencies, etc. and the related qualitative adjustments assigned by the Company.
Segments of loans with similar risk characteristics are collectively evaluated for impairment based on the segment’s
historical loss experience adjusted for changes in trends, conditions and other relevant factors that affect repayment of
the loans. Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment measurements, unless such loans are the subject of a restructuring agreement due to financial difficulties
of the borrower.
In the course of working with borrowers, the Company may choose to restructure the contractual terms of certain
loans. In this scenario, the Company attempts to work-out an alternative payment schedule with the borrower in order
to optimize collectability of the loan. Any loans that are modified are reviewed by the Company to identify if a
troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) has occurred, which is when, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s
financial difficulties, the Company grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider. Terms
may be modified to fit the ability of the borrower to repay in line with its current financial status and the restructuring
of the loan may include the transfer of assets from the borrower to satisfy the debt, a modification of loan terms, or a
combination of the two. If such efforts by the Company do not result in a satisfactory arrangement, the loan is referred
to legal counsel, at which time foreclosure proceedings are initiated. At any time prior to a sale of the property at
foreclosure, the Company may terminate foreclosure proceedings if the borrower is able to work-out a satisfactory
payment plan.
It is the Company’s policy to have any restructured loans which are on nonaccrual status prior to being restructured
remain on nonaccrual status until six months of satisfactory borrower performance at which time management would
consider its return to accrual status. If a loan was accruing at the time of restructuring, the Company reviews the loan
to determine if it is appropriate to continue the accrual of interest on the restructured loan.
With regard to determination of the amount of the allowance for credit losses, trouble debt restructured loans are
considered to be impaired. As a result, the determination of the amount of impaired loans for each portfolio segment
within troubled debt restructurings is the same as detailed previously.
Premises and Equipment
Depreciable assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to expense using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. An accelerated method is used for tax purposes.
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Federal Home Loan Bank stock is a required investment for institutions that are members of the Federal Home Loan
Bank system. The required investment in the common stock is based on a predetermined formula, carried at cost and
evaluated for impairment.
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value, less
costs to sell, at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are
periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less
cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in net income
or expense from foreclosed assets.
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Bank-Owned Life Insurance
The Company and the Bank have purchased life insurance policies on certain key executives. Company and
bank-owned life insurance is recorded at its cash surrender value, or the amount that can be realized.
Treasury Stock
Common shares repurchased are recorded at cost. Cost of shares retired or reissued is determined using the weighted
average cost.
Restricted Stock Awards
The Company has a share-based employee compensation plan, which is described more fully in Note 14.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance (ASC 740, Income
Taxes). The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense: current and deferred.
Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of
the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred
income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is
based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted
changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur.
Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if based on the weight of evidence available it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Uncertain tax positions are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position
will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely than not means a likelihood of more than
50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently
measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon
settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or
not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances and
information available at the reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment. At December 31, 2017, the
Company had no uncertain tax positions. On December 22, 2017, the U.S. government enacted comprehensive tax
legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”). The Company’s impact of this Tax Act
resulted in a charge against net income of approximately $216,000. This is primarily due to the write down of its
deferred tax assets as a result of the Tax Act’s reduction in the base corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of income tax expense.
The Company files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiary. With a few exceptions, the Company is no
longer subject to the examination by tax authorities for years before 2014.
Deferred Compensation Plan
Directors have the option to defer all or a portion of fees for their services into a deferred stock compensation plan that
invests in common shares of the Company. Officers of the Company have the option to defer up to 50% of their
annual incentive award into this plan. The plan does not permit diversification and must be settled by the delivery of a
fixed number of shares of the Company stock. The stock held in the plan is included in equity as deferred shares and is
accounted for in a manner similar to
F-40

Edgar Filing: Edenbrook Capital, LLC - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 35



TABLE OF CONTENTS
treasury stock. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the Company’s stock are not recognized. The deferred
compensation obligation is also classified as an equity instrument and changes in the fair value of the amount owed to
the participant are not recognized.
Stockholders’ Equity and Dividend Restrictions
The Bank is subject to certain restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare without prior regulatory
approval. Generally, the Bank’s payment of dividends is limited to net income for the current year plus the two
preceding calendar years, less capital distributions paid over the comparable time period. Dividend payments to the
stockholders may be legally paid from additional paid-in capital or retained earnings.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional potential
common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any
adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the
Company relate to outstanding stock options and restricted stock awards and are determined using the treasury stock
method.
Treasury stock shares, deferred compensation shares and unearned ESOP shares are not deemed outstanding for
earnings per share calculations.
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes.
Other comprehensive income includes unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on available-for-sale securities and
changes in the funded status of the defined benefit pension plan.
Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Note 2:
Restriction on Cash and Due From Banks
​
The Company is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. The
reserve required at December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $3.5 million and $2.8 million, respectively.
Note 3:
Securities
​
The amortized cost and approximate fair values, together with gross unrealized gains and losses of securities are as
follows:

​ ​​AmortizedCost ​​
Gross
Unrealized
Gains

​​
Gross
Unrealized
Losses

​​ApproximateFair Value ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Available-for-sale Securities: ​​ ​ ​ ​
December 31, 2017: ​​ ​ ​ ​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 45,249 ​​​​$    — ​​​​$ (290) ​​​​$ 44,959 ​​
​ ​​​$ 45,249 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ (290) ​​​​$ 44,959 ​​
Available-for-sale Securities: ​​ ​ ​ ​
December 31, 2016: ​​ ​ ​ ​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 39,000 ​​​​$    — ​​​​$ (486) ​​​​$ 38,514 ​​
State and political subdivisions ​​​​ 1,249 ​​​​​ 3 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 1,252 ​​
​ ​​​$ 40,249 ​​​​$ 3 ​​​​$ (486) ​​​​$ 39,766 ​​
​
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The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2017, by contractual maturity, are
shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Maturities for mortgage-backed securities are
presented in the table below based on their projected maturities.
​ ​​Available-for-sale ​

​ ​​AmortizedCost ​​Fair Value ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
One to five years ​​​$ 45,249 ​​​​$ 44,959 ​​
Totals ​​​$ 45,249 ​​​​$ 44,959 ​​
​
The carrying value of securities pledged as collateral, to secure public deposits and for other purposes, was
$41.5 million and $27.9 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Certain investments in debt securities are reported in the financial statements at an amount less than their historical
cost. The total fair value of these investments at December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $44.9 million and $38.5 million,
which represented approximately 100% and 96.8%, respectively, of the Company’s available-for-sale investment
portfolio.
Based on evaluation of available evidence, including recent changes in market interest rates, credit rating information
and information obtained from regulatory filings, management believes the declines in fair value for these securities
are temporary.
The following tables show the Company’s investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at
December 31, 2017 and 2016:
​ ​​December 31, 2017 ​
​ ​​Less than 12 Months ​​12 Months or More ​​Total ​

Description of Securities ​​FairValue ​​UnrealizedLosses ​​FairValue ​​UnrealizedLosses ​​FairValue ​​UnrealizedLosses ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
US Government agencies ​​​$ 12,190 ​​​​$ (59) ​​​​$ 32,769 ​​​​$ (231) ​​​​$ 44,959 ​​​​$ (290) ​​
Total temporarily impaired
securities ​​​$ 12,190 ​​​​$ (59) ​​​​$ 32,769 ​​​​$ (231) ​​​​$ 44,959 ​​​​$ (290) ​​

​
​ ​​December 31, 2016 ​
​ ​​Less than 12 Months ​​12 Months or More ​​Total ​

Description of Securities ​​FairValue ​​UnrealizedLosses ​​FairValue ​​
Unrealized
Losses ​​FairValue ​​UnrealizedLosses ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
US Government agencies ​​​$ 38,514 ​​​​$ (486) ​​​​$    —​​​​$    — ​​​​$ 38,514 ​​​​$ (486) ​​
Total temporarily impaired
securities ​​​$ 38,514 ​​​​$ (486) ​​​​$ —​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 38,514 ​​​​$ (486) ​​

​
U.S. Government Agencies
The unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in direct obligations of U.S. Government agencies were caused
by interest rate increases. The contractual terms of those investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at
a price less than the amortized cost bases of the investments. Because the Company does not intend to sell the
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investments and it is not more likely than not the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of
their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2017.
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Note 4:
Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses
​
Categories of loans at December 31, include:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial loans ​​​$ 81,327 ​​​​$ 74,514 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 198,936 ​​​​​ 191,686 ​​
Residential real estate ​​​​ 75,853 ​​​​​ 76,154 ​​
Installment loans ​​​​ 12,473 ​​​​​ 14,367 ​​
Total gross loans ​​​​ 368,589 ​​​​​ 356,721 ​​
Less allowance for loan losses ​​​​ (2,122) ​​​​​ (2,341) ​​
Total loans ​​​$ 366,467 ​​​​$ 354,380 ​​
​
The risk characteristics of each loan portfolio segment are as follows:
Commercial
Commercial loans are primarily based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying
collateral provided by the borrower. The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as expected and the collateral
securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Most commercial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other
business assets, such as accounts receivable or inventory, and may include a personal guarantee. Short-term loans may
be made on an unsecured basis. In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the
repayment of these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its
customers.
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial real estate loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate.
Commercial real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of these loans is
generally dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted on the
property securing the loan. Commercial real estate loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real
estate markets or in the general economy. The characteristics of properties securing the Company’s commercial real
estate portfolio are diverse, but with geographic location almost entirely in the Company’s market area. Management
monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans based on collateral, geography and risk grade criteria. In general,
the Company avoids financing single purpose projects unless other underwriting factors are present to help mitigate
risk. In addition, management tracks the level of owner-occupied commercial real estate versus nonowner-occupied
loans.
Residential and Consumer
Residential and consumer loans consist of two segments — residential mortgage loans and personal loans. For residential
mortgage loans that are secured by 1-4 family residences and are generally owner-occupied, the Company generally
establishes a maximum loan-to-value ratio and requires private mortgage insurance if that ratio is exceeded. Home
equity loans are typically secured by a subordinate interest in 1-4 family residences, and consumer personal loans are
secured by consumer personal assets, such as automobiles or recreational vehicles. Some consumer personal loans are
unsecured, such as small installment loans and certain lines of credit. Repayment of these loans is primarily dependent
on the personal income of the borrowers, which can be impacted by economic conditions in their market areas, such as
unemployment levels. Repayment can also be impacted by changes in property values on residential properties. Risk
is mitigated by the fact that the loans are of smaller individual amounts and spread over a large number of borrowers.
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The following tables present the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans based
on portfolio segment and impairment method as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
​ ​​2017 ​

​ ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Unallocated ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Allowance for loan
losses: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​

Balance, beginning of
year ​​​$ 495 ​​​​$ 804 ​​​​$ 591 ​​​​$ 107 ​​​​$ 344 ​​​​$ 2,341 ​​

Provision charged to
expense ​​​​ 39 ​​​​​ 118 ​​​​​ (97) ​​​​​ 296 ​​​​​ (256) ​​​​​ 100 ​​

Losses charged off ​​​​ (49) ​​​​​ (81) ​​​​​ (78) ​​​​​ (230) ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (438) ​​
Recoveries ​​​​ 52 ​​​​​ 2 ​​​​​ 20 ​​​​​ 45 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 119 ​​
Balance, end of year ​​​$ 537 ​​​​$ 843 ​​​​$ 436 ​​​​$ 218 ​​​​$ 88 ​​​​$ 2,122 ​​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ — ​​​​$ 73 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 73 ​​

Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 537 ​​​​$ 770 ​​​​$ 436 ​​​​$ 218 ​​​​$ 88 ​​​​$ 2,049 ​​

Loans: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 619 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 306 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 1,008 ​​

Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 75,205 ​​​​$ 195,108 ​​​​$ 76,501 ​​​​$ 12,567 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 359,381 ​​

​
​ ​​2016 ​

​ ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Unallocated ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Allowance for loan
losses: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​

Balance, beginning of
year ​​​$ 184 ​​​​$ 597 ​​​​$ 170 ​​​​$ 113 ​​​​$ 1,373 ​​​​$ 2,437 ​​

Provision charged to
expense ​​​​ 235 ​​​​​ 213 ​​​​​ 542 ​​​​​ 340 ​​​​​ (1,029) ​​​​​ 301 ​​

Losses charged off ​​​​ (2) ​​​​​ (108) ​​​​​ (143) ​​​​​ (417) ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ (670) ​​
Recoveries ​​​​ 78 ​​​​​ 102 ​​​​​ 22 ​​​​​ 71 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 273 ​​
Balance, end of year ​​​$ 495 ​​​​$ 804 ​​​​$ 591 ​​​​$ 107 ​​​​$ 344 ​​​​$ 2,341 ​​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated

​​​$ 11 ​​​​$ 108 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 119 ​​
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for impairment
Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 484 ​​​​$ 696 ​​​​$ 591 ​​​​$ 107 ​​​​$ 344 ​​​​$ 2,222 ​​

Loans: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Ending balance:
individually evaluated
for impairment

​​​$ 3,148 ​​​​$ 1,178 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 326 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 4,652 ​​

Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment

​​​$ 71,366 ​​​​$ 190,508 ​​​​$ 76,154 ​​​​$ 14,041 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 352,069 ​​

​
To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality within the loan portfolio, and for purposes of analyzing historical loss
rates used in the determination of the allowance for loan loss estimate, the Company utilizes the following categories
of credit grades: pass, special mention, substandard, and doubtful. The four categories, which are derived from
standard regulatory rating definitions, are assigned upon initial approval of credit to borrowers and updated
periodically thereafter. Pass ratings, which are assigned to those
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borrowers that do not have identified potential or well defined weaknesses and for which there is a high likelihood of
orderly repayment, are updated periodically based on the size and credit characteristics of the borrower. All other
categories are updated on at least a quarterly basis.
The Company assigns a special mention rating to loans that have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s
close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may, at some future date, result in the deterioration of
the repayment prospects for the loan or the Company’s credit position.
The Company assigns a substandard rating to loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and
paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged. Substandard loans have well defined weaknesses or
weaknesses that could jeopardize the orderly repayment of the debt. Loans and leases in this grade also are
characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies noted are not
addressed and corrected.
The Company assigns a doubtful rating to loans that have all the attributes of a substandard rating with the added
characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. The possibility of loss is extremely high, but because of
certain important and reasonable specific pending factors that may work to the advantage of and strengthen the credit
quality of the loan or lease, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its more exact status may be
determined. Pending factors may include a proposed merger or acquisition, liquidation proceeding, capital injection,
perfecting liens on additional collateral or refinancing plans.
The following table shows the portfolio quality indicators as of December 31, 2017:

Loan Class ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Pass Grade ​​​$ 78,652 ​​​​$ 195,063 ​​​​$ 75,853 ​​​​$ 12,167 ​​​​$ 361,735 ​​
Special Mention ​​​​ 20 ​​​​​ 3,066 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,086 ​​
Substandard ​​​​ 2,655 ​​​​​ 807 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ 3,768 ​​
Doubtful ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
​ ​​​$ 81,327 ​​​​$ 198,936 ​​​​$ 75,853 ​​​​$ 12,473 ​​​​$ 368,589 ​​
​
The following table shows the portfolio quality indicators as of December 31, 2016:

Loan Class ​​Commercial​​CommercialReal Estate ​​Residential ​​Installment ​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Pass Grade ​​​$ 71,302 ​​​​$ 187,255 ​​​​$ 76,154 ​​​​$ 14,041 ​​​​$ 348,752 ​​
Special Mention ​​​​ 64 ​​​​​ 3,253 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,317 ​​
Substandard ​​​​ 3,148 ​​​​​ 1,178 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 326 ​​​​​ 4,652 ​​
Doubtful ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
​ ​​​$ 74,514 ​​​​$ 191,686 ​​​​$ 76,154 ​​​​$ 14,367 ​​​​$ 356,721 ​​
​
The Company evaluates the loan risk grading system definitions and allowance for loan losses methodology on an
ongoing basis. No significant methodology changes were made during 2017 and 2016.
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The following table shows the loan portfolio aging analysis of the recorded investment in loans as of December 31,
2017:

​ ​​

30 – 59
Days
Past
Due
and
Accruing

​​

60 – 89 Days
Past Due
and
Accruing

​​

Greater
Than 90
Days and
Accruing

​​NonAccrual ​​

Total Past
Due and
Non
Accrual

​​Current ​​Total LoansReceivable ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ 56 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 139 ​​​​$ 81,188 ​​​​$ 81,327 ​​
Commercial real
estate ​​​​ 262 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 500 ​​​​​ 762 ​​​​​ 198,174 ​​​​​ 198,936 ​​

Residential ​​​​ 559 ​​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ 760 ​​​​​ 1,625 ​​​​​ 74,228 ​​​​​ 75,853 ​​
Installment ​​​​ 61 ​​​​​ 40 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 52 ​​​​​ 153 ​​​​​ 12,320 ​​​​​ 12,473 ​​
Total ​​​$ 938 ​​​​$ 346 ​​​​$    — ​​​​$ 1,395 ​​​​$ 2,679 ​​​​$ 365,910 ​​​​$ 368,589 ​​
​
The following table shows the loan portfolio aging analysis of the recorded investment in loans as of December 31,
2016:

​ ​​

30 – 59
Days
Past Due
and
Accruing

​​

60 – 89 Days
Past Due
and
Accruing

​​

Greater
Than 90
Days and
Accruing

​​NonAccrual ​​

Total Past
Due and
Non
Accrual

​​Current ​​Total LoansReceivable ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ 153 ​​​​$ 105 ​​​​$ 75 ​​​​$ 49 ​​​​$ 382 ​​​​$ 74,132 ​​​​$ 74,514 ​​
Commercial real
estate ​​​​ — ​​​​​ 55 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 335 ​​​​​ 390 ​​​​​ 191,296 ​​​​​ 191,686 ​​

Residential ​​​​ 805 ​​​​​ 135 ​​​​​ 161 ​​​​​ 922 ​​​​​ 2,023 ​​​​​ 74,131 ​​​​​ 76,154 ​​
Installment ​​​​ 213 ​​​​​ 8 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 55 ​​​​​ 276 ​​​​​ 14,091 ​​​​​ 14,367 ​​
Total ​​​$ 1,171 ​​​​$ 303 ​​​​$ 236 ​​​​$ 1,361 ​​​​$ 3,071 ​​​​$ 353,650 ​​​​$ 356,721 ​​
​
A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (ASC 310-10-35-16), when
based on current information and events, it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the
borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include nonperforming commercial
loans but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings where concessions have been granted to
borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include a reduction in the interest rate on the
loan, payment extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions intended to maximize collection.
The following table presents impaired loans for the year ended December 31, 2017:

​ ​​RecordedBalance ​​
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

​​SpecificAllowance ​​

Average
Investment
in
Impaired
Loans

​​
Interest
Income
Recognized

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
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Loans without a specific valuation
allowance:
Commercial ​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 90 ​​​​$ 5 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 209 ​​​​​ 317 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 635 ​​​​​ 13 ​​
Installment ​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ 306 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 312 ​​​​​ 3 ​​
​ ​​​​ 598 ​​​​​ 598 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 1,037 ​​​​​ 21 ​​
Loans with a specific valuation allowance: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Commercial ​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 7 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 73 ​​​​​ 392 ​​​​​ 14 ​​
Installment ​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​
​ ​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 410 ​​​​​ 73 ​​​​​ 392 ​​​​​ 21 ​​
Total: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Commercial ​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ 83 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 90 ​​​​$ 12 ​​
Commercial Real Estate ​​​$ 619 ​​​​$ 619 ​​​​$ 73 ​​​​$ 1,027 ​​​​$ 27 ​​
Installment ​​​$ 306 ​​​​$ 306 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 312 ​​​​$ 3 ​​
​
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Thee following table presents impaired loans for the year ended December 31, 2016:

​ ​​RecordedBalance ​​
Unpaid
Principal
Balance

​​SpecificAllowance ​​

Average
Investment
in
Impaired
Loans

​​
Interest
Income
Recognized

​​ ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Loans without a specific valuation
allowance: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​

Commercial ​​​$ 2,975 ​​​​$ 2,975 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 2,930 ​​​​$ 142 ​​​ ​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 658 ​​​​​ 766 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 1,176 ​​​​​ 43 ​​​ ​
Installment ​​​​ 326 ​​​​​ 326 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 328 ​​​​​ 13 ​​​ ​
​ ​​​​ 3,959 ​​​​​ 4,067 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 4,434 ​​​​​ 198 ​​​ ​
Loans with a specific valuation
allowance: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​

Commercial ​​​​ 173 ​​​​​ 173 ​​​​​ 11 ​​​​​ 188 ​​​​​ 8 ​​​ ​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ 520 ​​​​​ 520 ​​​​​ 108 ​​​​​ 586 ​​​​​ 26 ​​​ ​
Installment ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 2 ​​​ ​
​ ​​​​ 693 ​​​​​ 693 ​​​​​ 119 ​​​​​ 774 ​​​​​ 36 ​​​ ​
Total: ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Commercial ​​​$ 3,148 ​​​​$ 3,148 ​​​​$ 11 ​​​​$ 3,118 ​​​​$ 150 ​​​ ​
Commercial Real Estate ​​​$ 1,178 ​​​​$ 1,286 ​​​​$ 108 ​​​​$ 1,762 ​​​​$ 69 ​​​ ​
Installment ​​​$ 326 ​​​​$ 326 ​​​​$ — ​​​​$ 328 ​​​​$ 15 ​​​ ​
​
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had certain loans that were modified in troubled debt restructurings
and impaired. The modification of terms of such loans included one or a combination of the following: an extension of
maturity, a reduction of the stated interest rate or a permanent reduction of the recorded investment in the loan.
The following tables present information regarding troubled debt restructurings by class and by type of modification
for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:
​ ​​Year Ended December 31, 2017 ​

​ ​​
Number
of
Contracts

​​

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​​

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​​2 ​​​​$ 40 ​​​​$ 40 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​3 ​​​​​ 208 ​​​​​ 188 ​​
​ ​​Year Ended December 31, 2017 ​

​ ​​InterestOnly​​Term ​​Combination ​​TotalModification ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ ––​​​​$ 40 ​​​​ $ ––​ ​​​$ 40 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ ––​​​​​ 188 ​​​​ ​ ––​ ​​​​ 188 ​​
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​ ​​Year Ended December 31, 2016 ​

​ ​​
Number
of
Contracts

​​

Pre-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​​

Post-Modification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​​1 ​​​​$ 17 ​​​​$ 17 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​3 ​​​​​ 116 ​​​​​ 116 ​​
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​ ​​Year Ended December 31, 2016 ​

​ ​​InterestOnly​​Term ​​Combination ​​TotalModification ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Commercial ​​​$ ––​​​​$ 17 ​​​​ $ ––​ ​​​$ 17 ​​
Commercial real estate ​​​​ ––​​​​​ 116 ​​​​ ​ ––​ ​​​​ 116 ​​
During the 2017 and 2016, troubled debt restructurings did not have an impact on the allowance for loan losses. At
December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the years then ended, there were no material defaults of any troubled debt
restructurings that were modified in the last 12 months. The Company generally considers TDR’s that become 90 days
or more past due under the modified terms as subsequently defaulted.
Note 5:
Premises and Equipment
​
Major classifications of premises and equipment, stated at cost, are as follows:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Land, buildings and improvements ​​​$ 17,282 ​​​​$ 17,025 ​​
Furniture and equipment ​​​​ 12,637 ​​​​​ 12,164 ​​
Computer software ​​​​ 2,143 ​​​​​ 2,116 ​​
​ ​​​​ 32,062 ​​​​​ 31,305 ​​
Less accumulated depreciation ​​​​ (20,322) ​​​​​ (19,421) ​​
Net premises and equipment ​​​$ 11,740 ​​​​$ 11,884 ​​
​
Note 6:
Time Deposits
​
Time deposits in denominations of  $250,000 or more were $5.1 million at December 31, 2017 and $1.4 million at
December 31, 2016. At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

Due during the year ending December 31, ​​(Inthousands) ​

2018 ​​​$ 33,954 ​​
2019 ​​​​ 14,364 ​​
2020 ​​​​ 12,473 ​​
2021 ​​​​ 2,176 ​​
2022 ​​​​ 758 ​​
Thereafter ​​​​ 2,092 ​​
​ ​​​$ 65,817 ​​
​
Note 7:
Borrowings
​
At December 31, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank were as follows:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
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Maturities March 2018 through August 2025, primarily at fixed rates ranging
from 3.15% to 6.65%, averaging 5.15% ​​​$ 200 ​​​​$ –– ​​

Cash Management advances maturities in March 2018 at floating rates averaging 1.52% ​​​​ 9,822 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Cash Management advances maturities January 2017 through March 2017 at
floating rates averaging 0.74% ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 19,500 ​​

Maturities January 2017 through August 2025, primarily at fixed rates ranging from
3.08% to 6.65%, averaging 3.93% ​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 20,355 ​​

​ ​​​$ 10,022 ​​​​$ 39,855 ​​
​
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At December 31, 2017 required annual principal payments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances were as follows:

For the year ending December 31, ​​(Inthousands) ​

2018 ​​​$ 9,919 ​​
2019 ​​​​ 38 ​​
2020 ​​​​ 15 ​​
2021 ​​​​ 15 ​​
2022 ​​​​ 15 ​​
Thereafter ​​​​ 20 ​​
​ ​​​$ 10,022 ​​
​
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank system the Bank had the ability to
obtain up to $94.1 million and $60.8 million, respectively, in additional borrowings based on securities and certain
loans pledged to the FHLB. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank had approximately $121.6 million and
$122.6 million, respectively of one- to four-family residential real estate and commercial real estate loans pledged as
collateral for borrowings. Also at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company and the Bank have cash management
lines of credit with various correspondent banks (excluding FHLB cash management lines of credit) enabling
additional borrowings of up to $15.0 million.
Securities sold under repurchase agreements were approximately $11.0 million and $9.4 million at December 31,
2017 and 2016.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are financing arrangements whereby the Company sells securities and
agrees to repurchase the identical securities at the maturities of the agreements at specified prices. Physical control is
maintained for all securities sold under repurchase agreements. Information concerning securities sold under
agreements to repurchase is summarized as follows:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(Dollars in thousands) ​
Balance outstanding at year end ​​​$ 10,022 ​​​​$ 9,393 ​​
Average daily balance during the year ​​​$ 13,578 ​​​​$ 11,058 ​​
Average interest rate during the year ​​​​ 0.28% ​​​​​ 0.12% ​​
Maximum month-end balance during the year ​​​$ 17,033 ​​​​$ 14,200 ​​
Weighted-average interest rate at year end ​​​​ 0.28% ​​​​​ 0.12% ​​
All repurchase agreements are subject to term and conditions of repurchase/security agreements between the Company
and the customer and are accounted for as secured borrowings. The Company’s repurchase agreements reflected in
short-term borrowings consist of customer accounts and securities which are pledged on an individual security basis.
The following table presents the Company’s repurchase agreements accounted for as secured borrowings:
Remaining Contractual Maturity of the Agreement ​

December 31, 2017 ​​
Overnight
and
Continuous

​​
Up to
30
Days

​​30 – 90Days ​​
Greater
than
90 Days

​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Repurchase Agreements ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
U.S government agencies ​​​$ 10,022 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ 10,022 ​​
Total ​​​$ 10,022 ​​​​$    ––​​​​$    ––​​​​$    ––​​​​$ 10,022 ​​
​
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December 31, 2016 ​​
Overnight
and
Continuous

​​
Up to
30
Days

​​30 – 90Days ​​
Greater
than
90 Days

​​Total ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Repurchase Agreements ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​
U.S. government agencies ​​​$ 9,393 ​​​​​ — ​​​​​ — ​​​​$ — ​​​​​ 9,393 ​​
Total ​​​$ 9,393 ​​​​$    —​​​​$    —​​​​$    —​​​​$ 9,393 ​​
​
Securities with an approximate carrying value of  $18.4 million and $13.0 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, were pledged as collateral for repurchase borrowings.
Note 8:
Subordinated Debentures
​
In 2005, a Delaware statutory business trust owned by the Company, United Bancorp Statutory Trust I (“Trust I” or the
“Trust”), issued $4.1 million of mandatorily redeemable debt securities. The sale proceeds were utilized to purchase
$4.1 million of the Company’s subordinated debentures which mature in 2035. The Company’s subordinated
debentures are the sole asset of Trust I. The Company’s investment in Trust I is not consolidated herein as the
Company is not deemed the primary beneficiary of the Trust. However, the $4.1 million of mandatorily redeemable
debt securities issued by the Trust are includible for regulatory purposes as a component of the Company’s Tier I
Capital. Interest on the Company’s subordinated debentures is equal to three month LIBOR plus 1.35% and is payable
quarterly.
Note 9:
Income Taxes
​
The provision for income taxes includes these components:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Taxes currently payable ​​​$ 1,499 ​​​​$ 1,498 ​​
Deferred income taxes ​​​​ 545 ​​​​​ 82 ​​
Income tax expense ​​​$ 2,044 ​​​​$ 1,580 ​​
​
A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Company’s actual income tax expense is shown
below:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Computed at the statutory rate (34%) ​​​$ 1,901 ​​​​$ 1,755 ​​
(Decrease) increase resulting from ​​ ​
Tax exempt interest ​​​​ (17) ​​​​​ (42) ​​
Earnings on bank-owned life insurance – net ​​​​ (160) ​​​​​ (160) ​​
Deferred tax re-valuation ​​​​ 216 ​​​​​ — ​​
Other ​​​​ 104 ​​​​​ 27 ​​
Actual tax expense ​​​$ 2,044 ​​​​$ 1,580 ​​
​
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The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the balance sheets were:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Deferred tax assets ​​ ​
Allowance for loan losses ​​​$ 244 ​​​​$ 382 ​​
Stock based compensation ​​​​ 221 ​​​​​ 375 ​​
Allowance for losses on foreclosed real estate ​​​​ 31 ​​​​​ 82 ​​
Deferred compensation and ESOP ​​​​ 422 ​​​​​ 690 ​​
Intangible assets ​​​​ 65 ​​​​​ 124 ​​
Non-accrual loan interest ​​​​ 52 ​​​​​ 79 ​​
Unrealized losses on securities available for sale ​​​​ 61 ​​​​​ 164 ​​
Total deferred tax assets ​​​​ 1,096 ​​​​​ 1,896 ​​
Deferred tax liabilities ​​ ​
Depreciation ​​​​ (144) ​​​​​ (199) ​​
Deferred loan costs, net ​​​​ (86) ​​​​​ (158) ​​
Accretion ​​​​ — ​​​​​ (1) ​​
FHLB stock dividends ​​​​ (315) ​​​​​ (510) ​​
Mortgage servicing rights ​​​​ (9) ​​​​​ (16) ​​
Employee benefit expense ​​​​ (193) ​​​​​ (162) ​​
Total deferred tax liabilities ​​​​ (747) ​​​​​ (1,046) ​​
Net deferred tax asset ​​​$ 349 ​​​​$ 850 ​​
​
Note 10:   Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, included in stockholders’ equity, are as follows:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Net unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale ​​​$ (290) ​​​​$ (483) ​​
Net unrealized loss for funded status of defined benefit plan liability ​​​​ (289) ​​​​​ (205) ​​
​ ​​​​ (579) ​​​​​ (688) ​​
Tax effect ​​​​ 159 ​​​​​ 234 ​​
Net-of-tax amount ​​​$ (420) ​​​​$ (454) ​​
​
Note 11:   Regulatory Matters
The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory — and possibly additional
discretionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s and the
Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets,
liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts
and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and
other factors. Furthermore, the Company and the Bank’s regulators could require adjustments to regulatory capital not
reflected in these financial statements.
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referred to as “Basel III” for strengthening international capital standards. The Basel III Rules substantially revise the
risk-based capital requirements applicable to bank holding companies and their depository institution subsidiaries,
including the Company and Citizens, as compared to the current U.S. general risk-based capital rules. The Basel III
Rules revise the definitions and the components of regulatory capital, as well as address other issues affecting the
computation of regulatory capital ratios. The Basel III rules added another capital ratio component “Tier 1 Common
Capital Ratio” which is a measurement of a bank’s core equity capital compared with its total risk-weighted assets The
Basel III Rules also prescribe a new standardized approach for risk weightings that expand the risk-weighting
categories from the current categories to a larger more risk-sensitive number of categories, depending on the nature of
the assets, generally ranging from 0% for U.S. government and agency securities, to 600% for certain equity
exposures, and resulting in higher risk weights for a variety of asset classes. The Basel III capital rules became
effective for the Company and Unified on January 1, 2015, subject to phase-in periods for certain components. The
Company’s management believes that the Company and Citizens will be able to meet targeted capital ratios upon
implementation of the revised requirements as finalized. The minimum capital requirements exclude the capital
conservation buffer required to avoid limitations on capital distributions, including dividend payments and certain
discretionary bonus payments to executive officers. The capital conservation buffer was 1.250% at December 31,
2017. The net unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securities is not included in computing regulatory capital.
As of December 31, 2017, the Company exceeded its minimum regulatory capital requirements with a total risk-based
capital ratio of 13.2%, common equity tier 1 ratio of 11.5%, Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 12.6% and a Tier 1
leverage ratio of 10.6%.
As of December 31, 2017, the most recent notification from Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized the
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as
well-capitalized, the Bank must maintain capital ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since
that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
The Company’s and Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table.

​ ​​Actual ​​For Capital AdequacyPurposes ​​

To Be Well
Capitalized
Under Prompt
Corrective
Action Provisions

​

​ ​​Amount ​​Ratio ​​Amount ​​Ratio ​​Amount ​​Ratio ​
​ ​​(Dollars in thousands) ​
As of December 31, 2017 ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Consolidated ​​​$ 49,590 ​​​​​13.2% ​​​​$ 30,149 ​​​​​8.0% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 44,637 ​​​​​11.9 ​​​​​ 30,026 ​​​​​8.0 ​​​​$ 37,532 ​​​​​10.0% ​​
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to
Risk-Weighted Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​

Consolidated ​​​$ 43,468 ​​​​​11.5% ​​​​$ 16,959 ​​​​​4.5% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 42,515 ​​​​​11.3 ​​​​​ 16,889 ​​​​​4.5 ​​​​$ 24,396 ​​​​​6.5% ​​
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Consolidated ​​​$ 47,468 ​​​​​12.6% ​​​​$ 22,612 ​​​​​6.0% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 42,515 ​​​​​11.3 ​​​​​ 22,519 ​​​​​6.0 ​​​​$ 30,026 ​​​​​8.0% ​​
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Consolidated ​​​$ 47,468 ​​​​​10.6% ​​​​$ 17,904 ​​​​​4.0% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 42,515 ​​​​​9.4 ​​​​​ 18,017 ​​​​​4.0 ​​​​$ 22,521 ​​​​​5.0% ​​
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​ ​​Actual ​​For Capital AdequacyPurposes ​​

To Be Well
Capitalized
Under Prompt
Corrective
Action Provisions

​

​ ​​Amount ​​Ratio ​​Amount ​​Ratio ​​Amount ​​Ratio ​
​ ​​(Dollars in thousands) ​
As of December 31, 2016 ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Consolidated ​​​$ 48,429 ​​​​​13.6% ​​​​$ 28,516 ​​​​​8.0% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 41,801 ​​​​​11.8 ​​​​​ 28,382 ​​​​​8.0 ​​​​$ 35,478 ​​​​​10.0% ​​
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to
Risk-Weighted Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​

Consolidated ​​​$ 42,088 ​​​​​11.8% ​​​​$ 16,040 ​​​​​4.5% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 39,460 ​​​​​11.1 ​​​​​ 15,965 ​​​​​4.5 ​​​​$ 23,061 ​​​​​6.5% ​​
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Consolidated ​​​$ 46,088 ​​​​​12.9% ​​​​$ 21,387 ​​​​​6.0% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 39,460 ​​​​​11.1 ​​​​​ 21,287 ​​​​​6.0 ​​​​$ 28,382 ​​​​​8.0% ​​
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets) ​​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
Consolidated ​​​$ 46,088 ​​​​​11.0% ​​​​$ 16,729 ​​​​​4.0% ​​​​​ N/A ​​​​​N/A ​​
Unified ​​​​ 39,460 ​​​​​9.3 ​​​​​ 17,048 ​​​​​4.0 ​​​​$ 21,310 ​​​​​5.0% ​​
Note 12:   Related Party Transactions
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank had loan commitments outstanding to executive officers, directors,
significant stockholders and their affiliates (related parties). In management’s opinion, such loans and other extensions
of credit and deposits were made in the ordinary course of business and were made on substantially the same terms
(including interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons.
Further, in management’s opinion, these loans did not involve more than normal risk of collectibility or present other
unfavorable features. Such loans are summarized below.
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Aggregate balance – January 1 ​​​$ 13,635 ​​​​$ 10,546 ​​
New loans ​​​​ 189 ​​​​​ 4,864 ​​
Repayments ​​​​ (828) ​​​​​ (1,775) ​​
Aggregate balance – December 31​​​$ 12,996 ​​​​$ 13,635 ​​
​
Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at December 31, 2017 and 2016, totaled approximately $691,000 and
$1.4 million, respectively.
Note 13:   Benefit Plans
Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all employees who meet the eligibility
requirements. The Company’s funding policy is to make the minimum annual contribution that is required by
applicable regulations, plus such amounts as the Company may determine to be appropriate from time to time. The
Company expects to contribute $421,000 to the plan in 2018.
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The Company uses a December 31st measurement date for the plan. Information about the plan’s funded status and
pension cost follows:
​ ​​Pension Benefits ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Change in benefit obligation ​​ ​
Beginning of year ​​​$ (3,926) ​​​​$ (3,968) ​​
Service cost ​​​​ (273) ​​​​​ (312) ​​
Interest cost ​​​​ (198) ​​​​​ (198) ​​
Actuarial (loss) gain ​​​​ (403) ​​​​​ 23 ​​
Benefits paid ​​​​ 128 ​​​​​ 529 ​​
End of year ​​​​ (4,672) ​​​​​ (3,926) ​​
Change in fair value of plan assets ​​ ​
Beginning of year ​​​​ 4,625 ​​​​​ 4,458 ​​
Actual return on plan assets ​​​​ 702 ​​​​​ 382 ​​
Employer contribution ​​​​ 406 ​​​​​ 314 ​​
Benefits paid ​​​​ (128) ​​​​​ (529) ​​
End of year ​​​​ 5,605 ​​​​​ 4,625 ​​
Funded status at end of year ​​​$ 933 ​​​​$ 699 ​​
​
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss not yet recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost consist of:
​ ​​Pension Benefits ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Unamortized net loss ​​​$ 1,048 ​​​​$ 1,052 ​​
Unamortized prior service ​​​​ (758) ​​​​​ (847) ​​
​ ​​​$ 290 ​​​​$ 205 ​​
​
The estimated net loss and prior service credit for the defined benefit pension plan that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income as a credit into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is
approximately $41,000. The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $4.4 million and
$3.8 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Information for the pension plan with respect to accumulated benefit obligation and plan assets is as follows:
​ ​​December 31, ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Projected benefit obligation ​​​$ 4,672 ​​​​$ 3,926 ​​
Accumulated benefit obligation ​​​$ 4,375 ​​​​$ 3,756 ​​
Fair value of plan assets ​​​$ 5,605 ​​​​$ 4,625 ​​
​
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​ ​​December 31, ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Components of net periodic benefit cost ​​ ​
Service cost ​​​$ 273 ​​​​$ 312 ​​
Interest cost ​​​​ 198 ​​​​​ 198 ​​
Expected return on plan assets ​​​​ (357) ​​​​​ (341) ​​
Amortization of prior service (credit) cost ​​​​ (89) ​​​​​ (89) ​​
Amortization of net loss ​​​​ 63 ​​​​​ 81 ​​
Net periodic benefit cost ​​​$ 88 ​​​​$ 161 ​​
​
Significant assumptions include:
​ ​​Pension Benefits ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligation: ​​ ​
Discount rate ​​​​4.83% ​​​​​5.39% ​​
Rate of compensation increase ​​​​3.00% ​​​​​3.00% ​​
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit cost: ​​​​​ ​​​​​​ ​​
Discount rate ​​​​4.83% ​​​​​5.39% ​​
Expected return on plan assets ​​​​7.50% ​​​​​7.50% ​​
Rate of compensation increase ​​​​3.00% ​​​​​3.00% ​​
The Company has estimated the long-term rate of return on plan assets based primarily on historical returns on plan
assets, adjusted for changes in target portfolio allocations and recent changes in long-term interest rates based on
publicly available information. The long-term rate of return did not change from 2016 to 2017.
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as of
December 31, 2017:

​ ​​PensionBenefits ​

​ ​​(Inthousands) ​

2018 ​​​$ 186 ​​
2019 ​​​​ 199 ​​
2020 ​​​​ 843 ​​
2021 ​​​​ 548 ​​
2022 ​​​​ 373 ​​
2023 – 2027​​​​ 1,796 ​​
Total ​​​$ 3,945 ​​
​
Plan assets are held by an outside trustee which invests the plan assets in accordance with the provisions of the plan
agreement. All equity and fixed income investments are held in various mutual funds with quoted market prices.
Mutual fund equity securities primarily include investment funds that are comprised of large-cap, mid-cap and
international companies. Fixed income mutual funds primarily include investments in corporate bonds,
mortgage-backed securities and U.S. Treasuries. Other types of investments include a prime money market fund.
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The asset allocation strategy of the plan is designed to allow flexibility in the determination of the appropriate
investment allocations between equity and fixed income investments. This strategy is designed to help achieve the
actuarial long term rate on plan assets of 7.5%. The target asset allocation percentages for both 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:
​Large-Cap stocks ​​Not to exceed 68% ​
​Small-Cap stocks ​​Not to exceed 23% ​
​Mid-Cap stocks ​​Not to exceed 23% ​
​International equity securities ​​Not to exceed 30% ​
​Fixed income investments ​​Not to exceed 35% ​
​Alternative investments ​​Not to exceed 19% ​
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the fair value of plan assets as a percentage of the total was invested in the
following:
​ ​​December 31, ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Equity securities ​​​​70.1% ​​​​​68.1% ​​
Debt securities ​​​​27.3 ​​​​​29.6 ​​
Cash and cash equivalents ​​​​2.6 ​​​​​2.3 ​​
​ ​​​​100.0% ​​​​​100.0% ​​
​
Pension Plan Assets
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for pension plan assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, as well as the general classification of pension plan assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, plan assets are classified within Level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy. Level 1 plan assets include investments in mutual funds that involve equity, bond and money market
investments. All of the Plan’s assets are classified as Level 1. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values
are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of plan assets with similar characteristics or discounted cash
flows. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, plan assets are classified within Level 3 of
the hierarchy. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Plan did not contain Level 2 or Level 3 investments.
The fair values of Company’s pension plan assets at December 31st, by asset category are as follows:

​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​December 31, 2017Fair Value Measurements Using ​

Asset Category ​​
Total
Fair
Value

​​

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Mutual money market ​​​$ 199 ​​​​$ 199 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​
Mutual funds – equities ​​ ​ ​ ​
ETF mutual funds ​​​​ 3,042 ​​​​​ 3,042 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Large and small Cap ​​​​ 301 ​​​​​ 301 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
International ​​​​ 420 ​​​​​ 420 ​​​ ​
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Commodities ​​​​ 182 ​​​​​ 182 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Mutual funds – fixed income ​​ ​ ​ ​
Fixed income ​​​​ 1,145 ​​​​​ 1,145 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
ETF fixed income ​​​​ 316 ​​​​​ 316 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Total ​​​$ 5,605 ​​​​$ 5,605 ​​​​$    –– ​​​​$    –– ​​
​
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​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​December 31, 2016Fair Value Measurements Using ​

Asset Category ​​
Total
Fair
Value

​​

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Mutual money market ​​​$ 106 ​​​​$ 106 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​
Mutual funds – equities ​​ ​ ​ ​
Eft mutual funds ​​​​ 2,561 ​​​​​ 2,561 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Large and Small Cap ​​​​ 584 ​​​​​ 584 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Commodies ​​​​ 140 ​​​​​ 140 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Mutual funds – fixed income ​​ ​ ​ ​
Fixed income ​​​​ 1,022 ​​​​​ 1,022 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
ETF fixed income ​​​​ 212 ​​​​​ 212 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​
Total ​​​$ 4,625 ​​​​$ 4,625 ​​​​$    –– ​​​​$    –– ​​
​
Employee Stock Ownership Plan
The Company has an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) with an integrated 401(k) plan covering substantially
all employees of the Company. The ESOP acquired 354,551 shares of Company common stock at $9.64 per share in
2005 with funds provided by a loan from the Company. Accordingly, $3.4 million of common stock acquired by the
ESOP was shown as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. Shares are released to participants proportionately as the loan
is repaid. Dividends on allocated shares are recorded as dividends and charged to retained earnings. Compensation
expense is recorded equal to the fair market value of the stock when contributions, which are determined annually by
the Board of Directors of the Company, are made to the ESOP. The Company’s 401(k) matching percentage was 50%
of the employees’ first 6% of contributions for 2017 and 2016.
ESOP and 401(k) expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was approximately
$280,000 and $231,000, respectively.
Share information for the ESOP is as follows at December 31, 2017 and 2016:
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
Allocated shares at beginning of the year ​​​$ 333,790 ​​​​$ 267,558 ​​
Shares released for allocation during the year ​​​​ 23,635 ​​​​​ 23,635 ​​
Net shares acquired on reinvestment of cash or (distributed) due to
retirement/diversification ​​​​ (21,063) ​​​​​ 42,597 ​​

Unearned shares ​​​​ 70,906 ​​​​​ 94,541 ​​
Total ESOP shares ​​​​ 407,268 ​​​​​ 428,331 ​​
Fair value of unearned shares at December 31st ​​​$ 943,000 ​​​​$ 1,276,000 ​​
​
At December 31, 2017, the fair value of the 336,362 allocated shares held by the ESOP was approximately
$4,474,000.
Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements
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The Company has split-dollar life insurance arrangements with its executive officers and certain directors that provide
certain death benefits to the executive’s beneficiaries upon his or her death. The agreements provide a pre- and
post-retirement death benefit payable to the beneficiaries of the executive in the event of the executive’s death. The
Company has purchased life insurance policies on the lives of all participants covered by these agreements in amounts
sufficient to provide the sums necessary to pay the beneficiaries, and the Company pays all premiums due on the
policies. In the case of an early separation
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from the Company, the nonvested executive portion of the death benefit is retained by the Company. The accumulated
post retirement benefit obligation was $1.5 million at December 31, 2017 and $1.5 million at December 31, 2016.
Note 14:   Restricted Stock Plan
During 2008, the Company’s stockholders authorized the adoption of the United Bancorp, Inc. 2008 Stock Incentive
Plan (the “2008 Plan”). No more than 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock may be issued under the 2008
Plan. The shares that may be issued can be authorized but unissued shares or treasury shares. The 2008 Plan permits
the grant of incentive awards in the form of options, stock appreciation rights, restricted share and share unit awards,
and performance share awards. The 2008 Plan contains annual limits on certain types of awards to individual
participants. In any calendar year, no participant may be granted awards covering more than 25,000 shares.
The Company believes that such awards better align the interests of its employees with those of its stockholders. Stock
options are generally granted with an exercise price, and restricted stock awards are valued, equal to the market price
of the Company’s stock at the date of grant; stock option awards generally vest within 9.25 years of continuous service
and have a 9.5 year contractual term. Restricted stock awards generally vest over a 9.5 year contractual term, or over
the period to retirement, whichever is shorter. Restricted stock awards have no post-vesting restrictions. Restricted
stock awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control (as defined in the Plans).
A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested restricted shares as of December 31, 2017, and changes during
the year then ended, is presented below:

​ ​​Shares ​​
Weighted-Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value

​

Nonvested, beginning of year ​​​​170,000 ​​​​$ 8.75 ​​
Granted ​​​​10,000 ​​​​​ 11.99 ​​
Vested ​​​​(5,000) ​​​​​ 8.40 ​​
Forfeited ​​​​— ​​​​​ — ​​
Nonvested, end of year ​​​​175,000 ​​​​$ 8.95 ​​
​
Total compensation cost recognized in the income statement for share-based payment arrangements during the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $163,000 and $147,000, respectively. The recognized tax benefits related
thereto were $55,000 and $50,000, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there was $728,000 and $660,000, respectively, of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.7 years.
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Note 15:   Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share (EPS) were computed as follows:
​ ​​Year Ended December 31, 2017 ​

​ ​​NetIncome ​​
Weighted-
Average
Shares

​​Per ShareAmount ​​

​ ​​(Inthousands)​​ ​ ​

Net income ​​​$ 3,546 ​​​ ​ ​
Dividends on non-vested restricted stock ​​​​ (31) ​​​ ​ ​
Net income allocated to stockholders ​​​​ 3,515 ​​​ ​ ​
Basic earnings per share ​​ ​ ​ ​
Income available to common stockholders ​​​​ –– ​​​​​4,861,942 ​​​​$ 0.72 ​​​
Effect of dilutive securities ​​ ​ ​ ​
Restricted stock awards ​​​​ –– ​​​​​123,857 ​​​ ​
Diluted earnings per share ​​ ​ ​ ​
Income available to common stockholders and assumed
conversions ​​​$ 3,515 ​​​​​4,985,799 ​​​​$ 0.71 ​​​

​
​ ​​Year Ended December 31, 2016 ​

​ ​​NetIncome ​​
Weighted-
Average
Shares

​​Per ShareAmount ​

​ ​​(Inthousands)​​ ​

Net income ​​​$ 3,580 ​​​ ​
Dividends on non-vested restricted stock ​​​​ (31) ​​​ ​
Net income allocated to stockholders ​​​​ 3,549 ​​​ ​
Basic earnings per share ​​ ​ ​
Income available to common stockholders ​​​​ –– ​​​​​4,907,799 ​​​​$ 0.72 ​​
Effect of dilutive securities ​​ ​ ​
Restricted stock awards ​​​​ –– ​​​​​108,521 ​​​
Diluted earnings per share ​​ ​ ​
Income available to common stockholders and assumed conversions ​​​$ 3,549 ​​​​​5,016,320 ​​​​$ 0.71 ​​
​
Note 16:   Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Other Assets and Liabilities
The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Company also utilizes a fair value
hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair
value:
Level 1
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
​
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Level 2
Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities
​
Level 3
Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
assets or liabilities
​
​
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
and recognized in the accompanying balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the
valuation hierarchy.
Available-for-sale Securities
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using quoted prices of securities
with similar characteristics or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are
market-based or independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates,
volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such securities are classified in Level 2
of the valuation hierarchy.
The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying balance sheets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​December 31, 2017Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​Fair Value ​​

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
U.S government agencies ​​​$ 44,959 ​​​​$    ––​​​​$ 44,959 ​​​​$    –– ​​

​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​December 31, 2016Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​Fair Value ​​

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
U.S government agencies ​​​$ 38,514 ​​​​$    ––​​​​$ 38,514 ​​​​$    –– ​​
State and political subdivisions ​​​​ 1,252 ​​​​​ ––​​​​​ 1,252 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a
non-recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheets, as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Impaired Loans (Collateral Dependent)
Collateral dependent impaired loans consisted primarily of loans secured by nonresidential real estate. Management
has determined fair value measurements on impaired loans primarily through evaluations of appraisals performed.
Due to the nature of the valuation inputs, impaired loans are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.
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The Company considers the appraisal or evaluation as the starting point for determining fair value and then considers
other factors and events in the environment that may affect the fair value. Appraisals of the collateral underlying
collateral-dependent loans are obtained when the loan is determined to be collateral-dependent and subsequently as
deemed necessary by the Company’s Chief Lender. Appraisals are reviewed for accuracy and consistency by the
Company’s Chief Lender. Appraisers are selected from the list of approved appraisers maintained by management. The
appraised values are reduced by discounts to consider lack of marketability and estimated cost to sell if repayment or
satisfaction of the loan is dependent on the sale of the collateral. These discounts and estimates are developed by the
Company’s Chief Lender by comparison to historical results.
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Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value (based
on current appraised value) at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure,
valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell. Management has determined fair value measurements on other real estate owned primarily
through evaluations of appraisals performed, and current and past offers for the other real estate under evaluation. Due
to the nature of the valuation inputs, foreclosed assets held for sale are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.
Appraisals of other real estate owned (OREO) are obtained when the real estate is acquired and subsequently as
deemed necessary by the Company’s Chief Lender. Appraisals are reviewed for accuracy and consistency by the
Company’s Chief Lender and are selected from the list of approved appraisers maintained by management.
The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying balance sheets
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at December 31, 2017 and 2016:

​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​December 31, 2017Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​FairValue ​​

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Collateral dependent impaired loans ​​​$ 336 ​​​​$    ––​​​​$    –– ​​​​$ 336 ​​
Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​​ 34 ​​​​​ ––​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 34 ​​

​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​December 31, 2016Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​FairValue ​​

Quoted
Prices
in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Collateral dependent impaired loans ​​​$ 3,435 ​​​​$    ––​​​​$    –– ​​​​$ 3,435 ​​
Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​​ 249 ​​​​​ ––​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 249 ​​
Unobservable (Level 3) Inputs
The following tables present quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in recurring and nonrecurring
Level 3 fair value measurements.
​ ​​Fair

Value
at

​​Valuation
Technique

​​Unobservable
Inputs

​​Range ​
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12/31/17
​ ​​(In thousands) ​

Collateral-dependent impaired loans ​​​$ 333 ​​​Market comparableproperties ​​Comparability adjustments ​​Not available ​

Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​​ 34 ​​​Market comparableproperties ​​Marketability discount ​​10% – 35% ​

​ ​​
Fair
Value at
12/31/16

​​ValuationTechnique ​​UnobservableInputs ​​Range ​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​

Collateral-dependent impaired loans ​​​$ 3,435 ​​​Market comparableproperties ​​Comparability adjustments ​​Not available ​

Foreclosed assets held for sale ​​​​ 249 ​​​Market comparableproperties ​​Marketability discount ​​10% – 35% ​
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There were no significant changes in the valuation techniques used during 2017.
The following table presents estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments. The fair values of certain of
these instruments were calculated by discounting expected cash flows, which involves significant judgments by
management and uncertainties. Fair value is the estimated amount at which financial assets or liabilities could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Because no
market exists for certain of these financial instruments and because management does not intend to sell these financial
instruments, the Company does not know whether the fair values shown below represent values at which the
respective financial instruments could be sold individually or in the aggregate.
​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​CarryingAmount ​​

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
December 31, 2017 ​​ ​ ​ ​
Financial assets ​​ ​ ​ ​
Cash and cash equivalents ​​​$ 14,315 ​​​​$ 14,315 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​
Loans, net of allowance ​​​​ 366,467 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 368,033 ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Accrued interest receivable ​​​​ 993 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 993 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Financial liabilities ​​ ​ ​ ​
Deposits ​​​​ 385,966 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 358,722 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Short term borrowings ​​​​ 11,085 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 11,085 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ​​​​ 10,022 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 10,012 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Subordinated debentures ​​​​ 4,124 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,590 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Interest payable ​​​​ 70 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 70 ​​​​​ –– ​​
The classification of the assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy as of December 31, 2016 in the
following table have not been audited. The fair value has been derived from the December 31, 2016 audited
consolidated financial statements.
​ ​​​​ ​ ​​​Fair Value Measurements Using ​

​ ​​CarryingAmount ​​

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

​​

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

​​

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

​

​ ​​(In thousands) ​
December 31, 2016 ​​ ​ ​ ​
Financial assets ​​ ​ ​ ​
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Cash and cash equivalents ​​​$ 11,541 ​​​​$ 11,541 ​​​​$ –– ​​​​$ –– ​​
Loans, net of allowance ​​​​ 354,380 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 355,753 ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 4,164 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Accrued interest receivable ​​​​ 840 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 840 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Financial liabilities ​​ ​ ​ ​
Deposits ​​​​ 338,803 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 312,240 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Short term borrowings ​​​​ 9,393 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 9,393 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ​​​​ 39,855 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 40,120 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Subordinated debentures ​​​​ 4,124 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 3,435 ​​​​​ –– ​​
Interest payable ​​​​ 111 ​​​​​ –– ​​​​​ 111 ​​​​​ –– ​​
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments.
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accrued Interest Receivable and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
The carrying amounts approximate fair value.
Loans
The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans
would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. Loans with similar
characteristics were aggregated for purposes of the calculations.
Deposits
Deposits include demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts and certain money market deposits. The carrying
amount approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits is estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.
Interest Payable
The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Short-term Borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank Advances and Subordinated Debentures
Rates currently available to the Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate the
fair value of existing debt.
Commitments to Originate Loans, Letters of Credit and Lines of Credit
The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the
counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of
interest rates and the committed rates. The fair values of letters of credit and lines of credit are based on fees currently
charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate or otherwise settle the obligations with the
counterparties at the reporting date. Fair values of commitments were not material at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Note 17:   Significant Estimates and Concentrations
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of certain significant
estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Estimates related to the allowance for loan losses
are reflected in the footnote regarding loans. Current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations of credit risk are
discussed in the footnote on commitments and credit risk.
Note 18:   Commitments and Credit Risk
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, total commercial and commercial real estate loans made up 76.0% and 74.6%,
respectively, of the loan portfolio. Installment loans account for 3.4% and 4.0%, respectively, of the loan portfolio.
Real estate loans comprise 20.6% and 21.4% of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
and primarily include first mortgage loans on residential properties and home equity lines of credit.
Included in cash and due from banks as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, is $9.5 million and $7.3 million,
respectively, of deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.
Commitments to Originate Loans
Commitments to originate loans are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since a portion of the commitments may expire
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without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each
customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and residential real estate.
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had outstanding commitments to originate variable rate loans
aggregating approximately $15.4 million and $12.3 million, respectively. The commitments extended over varying
periods of time with the majority being disbursed within a one-year period.
Mortgage loans in the process of origination represent amounts that the Company plans to fund within a normal period
of 60 to 90 days, some of which are intended for sale to investors in the secondary market. The Company did not have
any mortgage loans in the process of origination which are intended for sale at December 31, 2017 or 2016.
Standby Letters of Credit
Standby letters of credit are irrevocable conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Financial standby letters of credit are primarily issued to support public
and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing and similar transactions.
Performance standby letters of credit are issued to guarantee performance of certain customers under non-financial
contractual obligations. The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loans to customers. Fees for letters of credit are initially recorded by the Company as deferred
revenue and are included in earnings at the termination of the respective agreements. Should the Company be
obligated to perform under the standby letters of credit, the Company may seek recourse from the customer for
reimbursement of amounts paid.
The Company did not have any total outstanding standby letters of credit at December 31, 2017 and 2016. At both
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had no deferred revenue under standby letter of credit agreements.
Lines of Credit and Other
Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the
contract. Lines of credit generally have fixed expiration dates. Since a portion of the line may expire without being
drawn upon, the total unused lines do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s
creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based
on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and residential real estate. Management uses the
same credit policies in granting lines of credit as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.
At December 31, 2017, the Company had granted unused lines of credit to borrowers aggregating approximately
$25.8 million and $36.9 million for commercial lines and open-end consumer lines, respectively. At December 31,
2016, the Company had granted unused lines of credit to borrowers aggregating approximately $20.9 million and
$35.6 million for commercial lines and open-end consumer lines, respectively.
Note 19:   Recent Accounting Pronouncements
ASU No. 2018-02 was issued in February 2018 to provide guidance to allow a reclassification from accumulated other
comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Act. Consequently, the
amendments eliminate the stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Act and will improve usefulness of information
reported to financial statement users. The amendments in this ASU will also require certain disclosures about stranded
tax effects and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2018. The impact of this guidance is not
material to the Company’s financial statements.
ASU No. 2017-09 was issued in May 2017 and provides guidance about which changes to the terms or condition of a
share-based payment award require and entity to apply modification accounting in Topic 718. The amendments in this
Update are effective for all entities for annual periods, and interim periods
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within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company has adopted ASU 2017-09 on
January 1, 2018 and it did not have a significant impact on its accounting and disclosures.
ASU No. 2017-07 was issued in March 2017 and applies to all employers that offer to their employees defined benefit
pension plans, other postretirement benefit plans, or other types of benefits accounted for under Topic 715. The
amendments in this update require that an employer report the service cost component in the same line item or items
as other compensation costs arising from services rendered by the pertinent employees during the period. The other
components of net benefit cost, as defined, are required to be presented in the income statement separately from the
service cost component and outside a subtotal of income from operations, if one is presented. If a separate line item or
items are not used, the line item or items used in the income statement to present the other components of net benefit
cost must be disclosed. The amendments in ASU No. 2017-07 are effective for public business entities for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those annual periods. The amendments
in this update are to be applied retrospectively for the presentation of the service cost component and the other
components of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost in the income statement. The
Company has adopted ASU 2017-07 on January 1, 2018 and it did not have a significant impact on its accounting and
disclosures.
In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2016-15 “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) — Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments.” ASU
2016-15 provides cash flow statement classification guidance for certain transactions including how the predominance
principle should be applied when cash receipts and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows.
The guidance is effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company
has adopted ASU 2016-15 on January 1, 2018 and it did not have a significant impact on its accounting and
disclosures.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326) — Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments.” The provisions of ASU 2016-13 were issued to provide financial statement
users with more decision-useful information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments that are not
accounted for at fair value through net income, including loans held for investment, held-to-maturity debt securities,
trade and other receivables, net investment in leases and other commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity
at each reporting date. ASU 2016-13 requires that financial assets measured at amortized cost be presented at the net
amount expected to be collected, through an allowance for credit losses that is deducted from the amortized cost basis.
The amendments in ASU 2016-13 eliminate the probable incurred loss recognition in current GAAP and reflect an
entity’s current estimate of all expected credit losses. The measurement of expected credit losses is based upon
historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the
financial assets.
For purchased financial assets with a more-than-insignificant amount of credit deterioration since origination (“PCD
assets”) that are measured at amortized cost, the initial allowance for credit losses is added to the purchase price rather
than being reported as a credit loss expense. Subsequent changes in the allowance for credit losses on PCD assets are
recognized through the statement of income as a credit loss expense.
Credit losses relating to available-for-sale debt securities will be recorded through an allowance for credit losses rather
than as a direct write-down to the security.
ASU 2016-13 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2019. Early adoption is permitted for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of these amendments to the Company’s financial
position and results of operations and currently does not know or cannot reasonably quantify the impact of the
adoption of the amendments as a result of the complexity and extensive changes from the amendments. The
Allowance for Loan Losses (ALL) estimate is material to the Company and given the change from an incurred loss
model to a methodology that considers the credit loss over the life of the loan, there is the potential for an increase in
the ALL at adoption date. The Company is anticipating a significant change in the processes and procedures to
calculate the ALL,
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including changes in assumptions and estimates to consider expected credit losses over the life of the loan versus the
current accounting practice that utilizes the incurred loss model. In addition, the current accounting policy and
procedures for the other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale securities will be replaced with an
allowance approach. The Company continues to work with an outside vendor to begin developing and implementing
processes during the next two years to ensure it is fully compliant with the amendments at adoption date. For
additional information on the allowance for loan losses, see Note 4.
ASU No. 2016-01, “Financial Instruments — Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”
ASU No. 2016-01 was issued in January 2016 and applies to all entities that hold financial assets or owe financial
liabilities. ASU 2016-01 is intended to improve the recognition and measurement of financial instruments by requiring
equity investments to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income; requiring public
entities to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes;
requiring separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement category and form of
financial asset on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial statements; eliminating the requirement
for public business entities to disclose the method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is
required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured and amortized at cost on the balance sheet; and requiring a
reporting organization to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair
value of a liability resulting from a change in the instruments specific credit risk when the organization has elected to
measure the liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments. ASU 2016-01 is
effective for annual periods and interim periods within those periods, beginning after December 15, 2017. The
amendments should be applied by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning of
the fiscal year of adoption. The amendments related to equity securities without readily determinable fair values
(including disclosure requirements) should be applied prospectively to equity instruments that exist as of the date of
adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of these amendments, but does not expect them to have a
material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations since it does not have any equity securities
or a valuation allowance. However, the amendments will have an impact on certain items that are disclosed at fair
value that are not currently utilizing the exit price notion when measuring fair value. The Company has adopted ASU
2016-01 on January 1, 2018 and it did not have a material effect on its fair value disclosures and other disclosure
requirements. For additional information on fair value of assets and liabilities, see Note 16.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” (ASU
2014-09). This update to the ASC is the culmination of efforts by the FASB and the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). ASU 2014-09 supersedes Topic 605 — Revenue Recognition and most industry-specific guidance.
The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The guidance in ASU 2014-09 describes a 5-step process entities can apply to
achieve the core principle of revenue recognition and requires disclosures sufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers and the significant judgments used in determining that information. Originally, the amendments in
ASU 2014-09 were effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim
periods within that reporting period and early application is not allowed. In July 2015, the FASB extended the
implementation date to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 including interim periods within
that reporting period. Transitional guidance is included in the update. Earlier adoption is permitted only as of annual
reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. The
Company’s revenue is comprised of net interest income, which is explicitly excluded from the scope of ASU 2014-09,
and non interest income. The Company has adopted ASU 2014-09 on January 1, 2018 and it did not identify any
changes in the timing of revenue recognition when considering the amended accounting guidance. The Company will
have additional disclosures beginning in the first quarter of 2018 as required by the guidance.
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On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 “Leases (Topic 842).” ASU 2016-02 is intended to improve
financial reporting about leasing transactions. This ASU affects all companies and other organization that lease assets
such as real estate, airplanes, and manufacturing equipment.
Under the current accounting model, an organization applies a classification test to determine the accounting for the
lease arrangement:
(a)
Some leases are classified as capital where by the lessee would recognize lease assets and liabilities on the balance
sheet.
​
(b)
Other leases are classified as operating leases whereby the lessee would not recognize lease assets and liabilities on
the balance sheet.
​
Under the new guidance, a lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more
than 12 months. Consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the recognition, measurement,
and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification
as a finance or operating lease.
However, unlike current GAAP — which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the balance sheet — the new
ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the balance sheet.
For public companies, the ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning
after December 15, 2018. Thus, for a calendar year company, it would be effective January 1, 2019. The impact is not
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations since the Company does
not have a material amount of lease agreements.
Note 20:   Condensed Financial Information (Parent Company Only)
Presented below is condensed financial information as to financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
Company:
Condensed Balance Sheets
​ ​​December 31, ​
​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Assets ​​ ​
Cash and cash equivalents ​​​$ 2,771 ​​​​$ 4,644 ​​
Investment in the Bank ​​​​ 42,286 ​​​​​ 39,141 ​​
Corporate owned life insurance ​​​​ — ​​​​​ 7 ​​
Other assets ​​​​ 3,042 ​​​​​ 2,973 ​​
Total assets ​​​$ 48,099 ​​​​$ 46,765 ​​
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ​​ ​
Subordinated debentures ​​​$ 4,124 ​​​​$ 4,124 ​​
Other liabilities ​​​​ 80 ​​​​​ — ​​
Stockholders’ equity ​​​​ 43,895 ​​​​​ 42,641 ​​
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ​​​$ 48,099 ​​​​$ 46,765 ​​
​
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Condensed Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

​ ​​Years EndedDecember 31, ​

​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Operating Income ​​ ​
Dividends from subsidiary ​​​$ 2,035 ​​​​$ 4,701 ​​
Interest and dividend income from securities and federal funds ​​​​ 1 ​​​​​ 7 ​​
Total operating income ​​​​ 2,036 ​​​​​ 4,708 ​​
General, Administrative and Other Expenses ​​​​ 1,961 ​​​​​ 1,651 ​​
Income Before Income Taxes and Equity in Undistributed Income of
Subsidiary ​​​​ 75 ​​​​​ 3,057 ​​

Income Tax Benefits ​​​​ 416 ​​​​​ 484 ​​
Income Before Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiary ​​​​ 491 ​​​​​ 3,541 ​​
Equity in Undistributed Income of Subsidiary ​​​​ 3,055 ​​​​​ 39 ​​
Net Income ​​​$ 3,546 ​​​​$ 3,580 ​​
Comprehensive Income ​​​$ 3,578 ​​​​$ 3,307 ​​
​
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

​ ​​Years EndedDecember 31, ​

​ ​​2017 ​​2016 ​
​ ​​(In thousands) ​
Operating Activities ​​ ​
Net income ​​​$ 3,546 ​​​​$ 3,580 ​​
Items not requiring (providing) cash ​​ ​
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary ​​​​ (3,055) ​​​​​ (39) ​​
Amortization of ESOP and share-based compensation plans ​​​​ 443 ​​​​​ 378 ​​
Net change in other assets and other liabilities ​​​​ (38) ​​​​​ (190) ​​
Net cash provided by operating activities ​​​​ 896 ​​​​​ 3,729 ​​
Financing Activities ​​ ​
Dividends paid to stockholders ​​​​ (2,769) ​​​​​ (2,540) ​​
Net cash used in financing activities ​​​​ (2,769) ​​​​​ (2,540) ​​
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents ​​​​ (1,873) ​​​​​ 1,189 ​​
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ​​​​ 4,644 ​​​​​ 3,455 ​​
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year ​​​$ 2,771 ​​​​$ 4,644 ​​
​
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Note 21:   Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following tables summarize the Company’s quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016.
​ ​​Three Months Ended ​
2017: ​​March 31,​​June 30, ​​September 30, ​​December 31, ​
​ ​​(In thousands, except per share data) ​
Total interest income ​​​$ 4,184 ​​​​$ 4,290 ​​​​$ 4,586 ​​​​$ 4,591 ​​
Total interest expense ​​​​ 438 ​​​​​ 438 ​​​​​ 449 ​​​​​ 439 ​​
Net interest income ​​​​ 3,746 ​​​​​ 3,852 ​​​​​ 4,137 ​​​​​ 4,152 ​​
Provision for loan losses ​​​​ 25 ​​​​​ 25 ​​​​​ 25 ​​​​​ 25 ​​
Other income ​​​​ 832 ​​​​​ 869 ​​​​​ 892 ​​​​​ 859 ​​
General, administrative and other expense ​​​​ 3,334 ​​​​​ 3,365 ​​​​​ 3,456 ​​​​​ 3,494 ​​
Income before income taxes ​​​​ 1,219 ​​​​​ 1,331 ​​​​​ 1,548 ​​​​​ 1,492 ​​
Federal income taxes ​​​​ 369 ​​​​​ 415 ​​​​​ 548 ​​​​​ 712 ​​
Net income ​​​$ 850 ​​​​$ 916 ​​​​$ 1,000 ​​​​$ 780 ​​
Earnings per share ​​ ​ ​ ​
Basic ​​​$ 0.17 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.20 ​​​​$ 0.17 ​​
Diluted ​​​$ 0.17 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.20 ​​​​$ 0.16 ​​
​
​ ​​Three Months Ended ​
2016: ​​March 31,​​June 30, ​​September 30, ​​December 31, ​
​ ​​(In thousands, except per share data) ​
Total interest income ​​​$ 4,038 ​​​​$ 4,187 ​​​​$ 4,166 ​​​​$ 4,244 ​​
Total interest expense ​​​​ 475 ​​​​​ 437 ​​​​​ 432 ​​​​​ 440 ​​
Net interest income ​​​​ 3,563 ​​​​​ 3,750 ​​​​​ 3,734 ​​​​​ 3,804 ​​
Provision (credit) for loan losses ​​​​ 71 ​​​​​ 105 ​​​​​ 131 ​​​​​ (6) ​​
Other income ​​​​ 867 ​​​​​ 902 ​​​​​ 1,056 ​​​​​ 856 ​​
General, administrative and other expense ​​​​ 3,141 ​​​​​ 3,251 ​​​​​ 3,345 ​​​​​ 3,333 ​​
Income before income taxes ​​​​ 1,218 ​​​​​ 1,296 ​​​​​ 1,314 ​​​​​ 1,333 ​​
Federal income taxes ​​​​ 373 ​​​​​ 389 ​​​​​ 386 ​​​​​ 432 ​​
Net income ​​​$ 845 ​​​​$ 907 ​​​​$ 928 ​​​​$ 901 ​​
Earnings per share ​​ ​ ​ ​
Basic ​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​
Diluted ​​​$ 0.17 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​​​$ 0.18 ​​
​
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ANNEX A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
 
by and between
 
UNITED BANCORP, INC.
 
and
 
 
POWHATAN POINT COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
 
 
Dated as of June 14, 2018
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER
AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER, dated as of June 14, 2018 (this “Agreement”), by and between United
Bancorp, Inc., an Ohio corporation (“United Bancorp”), and Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc., an Ohio
corporation (“Powhatan Point”).
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point have determined that it is in the best
interests of their respective companies and their shareholders to consummate the strategic business combination
transaction provided for herein, pursuant to which Powhatan Point will, subject to the terms and conditions set forth
herein, merge with and into United Bancorp (the “Merger”), so that United Bancorp is the surviving company
(hereinafter sometimes referred to in such capacity as the “Surviving Company”) in the Merger;
WHEREAS, for federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall qualify as a “reorganization” within the
meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and this Agreement is
intended to be and is adopted as a plan of reorganization within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Sections
1.368-2(g) and 1.368-3(a); and
WHEREAS, the parties desire to make certain representations, warranties and agreements in connection with the
Merger and also to prescribe certain conditions to the Merger.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, representations, warranties and agreements contained
herein, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
THE MERGER
1.1 The Merger.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, in accordance with the Ohio General
Corporation Law (the “OGCL”), at the Effective Time, Powhatan Point will merge with and into United Bancorp.
United Bancorp will be the Surviving Company in the Merger, and will continue its corporate existence under the
laws of the State of Ohio. Upon consummation of the Merger, the separate corporate existence of Powhatan Point will
terminate.
1.2 Closing.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the closing of the Merger (the “Closing”) will take
place at a mutually agreeable time and place after the satisfaction or waiver (subject to applicable law) of the latest to
occur of the conditions set forth in Article VII hereof  (other than those conditions that by their nature can only be
satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver thereof). The date on which the Closing occurs is
referred to in this Agreement as the “Closing Date.”
1.3 Effective Time.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, on or before the Closing Date, United
Bancorp will file a certificate of merger (the “Certificate of Merger”) with the Ohio Secretary of State (the “Ohio
Secretary”). The Merger will become effective as of the date and time specified in the Certificate of Merger (such date
and time, the “Effective Time”).
1.4 Effects of the Merger.   At and after the Effective Time, the Merger will have the effects set forth in the applicable
provisions of the OGCL.
1.5 Conversion of Powhatan Point Shares.   At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on
the part of United Bancorp, Powhatan Point or the holder of any of the following securities:
(a) Subject to paragraph (b) of this Section 1.5 and to Sections 1.6 and 2.2, each share of the common stock, without
par value, of Powhatan Point issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (“Powhatan Point Share”),
except for Powhatan Point Shares owned by Powhatan Point as treasury stock or otherwise owned by Powhatan Point
or United Bancorp (in each case other than Powhatan Point Shares (i) held in any Powhatan Point Benefit Plans or
related trust accounts, managed accounts, mutual funds and the like, or otherwise held in a fiduciary or agency
capacity and (ii) held, directly or indirectly, in respect of debts previously contracted (collectively, the “Exception
Shares”)) and Dissenting Shares, will be converted,
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in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Agreement, into the right to receive, without interest, 6.9233 shares
(the “Stock Consideration”) of the common stock of United Bancorp (the “United Bancorp Shares”) and $38.75 in cash
(the “Cash Consideration”) (collectively, the “Merger Consideration”).
(b) The aggregate amount of Cash Consideration payable under paragraph (a) of this Section 1.5 shall be: (I) reduced
dollar for dollar by the sum of  (A) 50% of the Powhatan Point Transaction-Related Expenses up to $1.0 million and
all amounts of the Powhatan Point Transaction-Related Expenses in excess of  $1.0 million (the “Excess TRE
Adjustment”), (B) any required compensation expense accruals incidental to the Merger (the “Required Accruals”),
including, but not necessarily limited to, the 2018 Powhatan Point Bonus Payments payable to William Busick and
Theresa Stillion (but excluding the 2018 Powhatan Point Bonus Payments payable to employees other than William
Busick and Theresa Stillion) prorated through the Effective Date and any additional accruals necessary to correct prior
period errors or inaccuracies, and (C) the amount, if any, by which Powhatan Point’s Total Shareholders’ Equity is
below $5.0 million; and (II) increased dollar for dollar by an amount equal to the value of any after-tax benefit likely
to be realized by United Bancorp that arises directly from tax deductions applicable to the Excess TRE Adjustment
and the Required Accruals (collectively, the “Cash Consideration Adjustment”). The value of any after-tax benefit
applicable to the Excess TRE Adjustment will be calculated based upon the total value of any after-tax benefit for the
current tax year likely to be realized by United Bancorp that arises directly from tax deductions applicable to the
aggregate amount of the Powhatan Point Transaction-Related Expenses and prorated accordingly, and such amount
shall be calculated by United Bancorp, in consultation with its independent auditors, and agreed to by Powhatan Point
in consultation with its independent auditors, which agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld, no later than the
close of business on the second business day prior to the Closing Date, using reasonable estimates through the Closing
Date where actual amounts are not yet available. “Powhatan Point Transaction-Related Expenses” means all transaction
costs of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries necessary to consummate the Merger, including, but not necessarily
limited to: (i) the aggregate expenses of attorneys, accountants, consultants, financial advisors and other professional
advisors; (ii) aggregate vendor contract termination fees; (iii) data processing deconversion expenses; (iv) all costs and
expenses of printing and mailing the Proxy Statement in excess of  $15,000; and (v) all other costs and expenses, in
each case incurred or to be incurred by Powhatan Point or any Subsidiary through the Effective Time in connection
with this Agreement and the Merger, but excluding the Required Accruals. “Total Shareholders’ Equity” means the total
consolidated shareholders’ equity of Powhatan Point, calculated as of the close of business on the Closing Date in
accordance with GAAP and reflecting the required recognition of, or accrual for, all expenses paid or incurred or
projected to be paid or incurred by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries as required under GAAP, excluding, for
purposes of this paragraph, all Powhatan Point Transaction-Related Expenses and the Required Accruals.
(c) No certificate or scrip representing a fractional United Bancorp Share shall be issued in the Merger. Each holder of
Powhatan Point Shares who would otherwise be entitled to receive a fractional United Bancorp Share shall receive an
amount of cash equal to the product obtained by multiplying (i) the fractional United Bancorp Share interest to which
such holder (after taking into account all Powhatan Point Shares held at the Effective Time by such holder) would
otherwise be entitled by (ii) $13.06, adjusted as necessary to incorporate the impact of a Cash Consideration
Adjustment.
(d) Any treasury shares held by Powhatan Point and any Powhatan Point Shares owned by United Bancorp for its own
account will be cancelled and retired at the Effective Time, and no consideration will be issued in exchange.
(e) All of the Powhatan Point Shares converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration pursuant to this
Article I will no longer be outstanding and will automatically be cancelled and cease to exist as of the Effective Time,
and each certificate (each, an “Old Certificate,” it being understood that any reference herein to “Old Certificate” shall be
deemed to include reference to book-entry account statements relating to the ownership of Powhatan Point Shares)
previously representing any such Powhatan Point Shares will thereafter represent only the right to receive the Merger
Consideration described in this Section 1.5. Old Certificates previously representing Powhatan Point Shares that are to
receive the Stock Consideration will be exchanged for certificates or, at United Bancorp’s option, evidence of shares in
book entry form (collectively, referred to herein as “New Certificates”), representing whole United Bancorp Shares as
set forth in Section 1.5(a) (together with any dividends or distributions with respect thereto and
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cash in lieu of fractional shares issued in consideration therefor) upon the surrender of such Old Certificates in
accordance with Section 2.2, without any interest thereon. If, between the date of this Agreement and the Effective
Time, the outstanding Powhatan Point Shares or United Bancorp Shares are increased, decreased, changed into or
exchanged for a different number or kind of shares or securities, in any such case as a result of a reorganization,
recapitalization, reclassification, stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, or other similar change in
capitalization, or there shall be any extraordinary dividend or distribution, an appropriate and proportionate
adjustment shall be made to the Merger Consideration to give holders of Powhatan Point Shares the same economic
effect as contemplated by this Agreement prior to such event; provided, that nothing in this sentence shall be
construed to permit United Bancorp or Powhatan Point to take any action with respect to its securities that is
prohibited by the terms of this Agreement.
(f) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, at the Effective Time, all Powhatan Point Shares that
are owned by Powhatan Point or United Bancorp (in each case other than the Exception Shares) or by any direct or
indirect Powhatan Point Subsidiary prior to the Effective Time will be cancelled and cease to exist, and no
consideration will be delivered in exchange therefor.
1.6 Dissenters Rights.   Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any issued and outstanding
Powhatan Point Shares held by a person (a “Dissenting Shareholder”) who has not voted in favor of, or consented to, the
adoption of this Agreement and has complied with all the provisions of the OGCL concerning the right of holders of
Powhatan Point Shares to require payment of the fair cash value of such Powhatan Point Shares (the “Dissenting
Shares”), in accordance with Sections 1701.84 and 1701.85 of the OGCL, will not be converted into the right to receive
the Merger Consideration as described in Section 1.5(a), but will become the right to receive such consideration as
may be determined to be due to such Dissenting Shareholder pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 1701.85
of the OGCL. If such Dissenting Shareholder withdraws its demand for fair cash value or fails to perfect or otherwise
loses its rights as a dissenting shareholder, in any case pursuant to the OGCL, each of such Dissenting Shareholder’s
Powhatan Point Shares will be converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration. Powhatan Point will
promptly notify United Bancorp of each shareholder who asserts rights as a Dissenting Shareholder following receipt
of such shareholder’s written demand delivered as provided in Section 1701.85 of the OGCL. Prior to the Effective
Time, Powhatan Point will keep United Bancorp reasonably informed of, and will consult with United Bancorp before
voluntarily making any payment or commitment or agreement to make any payment, or settling or committing or
offering to settle, any rights of a Dissenting Shareholder asserted under Section 1701.85 of the OGCL.
1.7 United Bancorp Shares.   At and after the Effective Time, each United Bancorp Share issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time will remain issued and outstanding and not be affected by the Merger.
1.8 Articles of Incorporation of Surviving Company.   At the Effective Time, the Articles of Incorporation of United
Bancorp (the “United Bancorp Articles”), as in effect at the Effective Time, will be the Articles of Incorporation of the
Surviving Company until thereafter amended in accordance with applicable law.
1.9 Code of Regulations of Surviving Company.   At the Effective Time, the Code of Regulations of United Bancorp
(the “United Bancorp Code of Regulations”), as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, will be the Code of
Regulations of the Surviving Company until thereafter amended in accordance with applicable law.
1.10 Tax Consequences.   It is intended that the Merger qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section
368(a) of the Code, and that this Agreement is intended to be and is adopted as a “plan of reorganization” within the
meaning of Treasury Regulation Sections 1.368-2(g) and 1.368-3(a). Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to
the contrary, to preserve the status of the Merger as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the
Code, if the aggregate value of the United Bancorp Shares to be issued in connection with the Merger (for the
avoidance of doubt, excluding the value of fractional shares for which cash is to be paid pursuant to Section 1.5(c)),
based upon the closing price of the United Bancorp Shares as reported on The NASDAQ Capital Market (the
“NASDAQ”) on the trading day immediately preceding the Effective Time (the “Total Stock Consideration”), would be
less than forty
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percent (40%) of the sum of  (i) the Total Cash Consideration (as defined below) and (ii) the Total Stock Consideration
(collectively, the “Total Consideration”), then the Stock Consideration shall be increased and the Cash Consideration
(including the amount of cash payable in lieu of fractional United Bancorp Shares pursuant to Section 1.5(c)) shall be
decreased proportionately and to the minimum extent necessary for the Total Stock Consideration to be equal to forty
percent (40%) of the Total Consideration (calculated using such increased Total Cash Consideration and decreased
Total Stock Consideration). For purposes of this Agreement, the “Total Cash Consideration” shall be the sum of  (i) the
aggregate amount of Cash Consideration payable under Section 1.5(a), (ii) the aggregate amount of cash payable in
lieu of fractional United Bancorp Shares pursuant to Section 1.5(c), and (iii) the aggregate amount of cash payable to
holders of Dissenting Shares pursuant to Section 1.6.
1.11 Bank Merger.   Immediately following the Merger, or at such later time as United Bancorp may determine in its
sole discretion, The First National Bank of Powhatan Point (“First National”), a nationally chartered bank and a wholly
owned Subsidiary of Powhatan Point, will merge (the “Bank Merger”) with and into Unified Bank (“Unified Bank”), an
Ohio bank and a wholly owned Subsidiary of United Bancorp. Unified Bank will be the surviving entity in the Bank
Merger and, following the Bank Merger, the separate corporate existence of First National will cease. On the date of
this Agreement, Unified Bank and First National entered into the agreement and plan of merger attached hereto as
Exhibit A (the “Bank Merger Agreement”). Prior to the Effective Time, Powhatan Point will cause First National, and
United Bancorp will cause Unified Bank, to execute such certificates or articles of merger and such other documents
and certificates as are necessary to effectuate the Bank Merger (the “Bank Merger Certificates”).
ARTICLE II
EXCHANGE OF SHARES
2.1 United Bancorp to Make Shares and Cash Available.   At or prior to the Effective Time, United Bancorp will
deposit the Merger Consideration, or will cause it to be deposited, with Unified Bank (in this capacity, the “Exchange
Agent”), for the benefit of the holders of Old Certificates, for exchange in accordance with this Article II (such cash
and New Certificates, together with any dividends or disbursements, the “Exchange Fund”). The Exchange Fund will be
held in trust for holders of Powhatan Point Shares until distributed to such holders pursuant to this Agreement.
2.2 Exchange of Powhatan Point Certificates.
(a) Within five (5) business days following the Effective Time, the Exchange Agent will mail to each holder of record
of Powhatan Point Shares a form letter of transmittal and instructions for use in surrendering for exchange the Old
Certificates. The letter of transmittal will specify that the risk of loss and title to the Old Certificates will pass only
upon delivery of such certificates as specified in the letter of transmittal and include information concerning
procedures in the case of lost, stolen or destroyed Old Certificates.
(b) All payments made upon the surrender of Old Certificates pursuant to this Agreement will be deemed to have been
made in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to the shares evidenced by such Old Certificates.
(c) If any Old Certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed (each, a “Lost Certificate”), upon the making of an affidavit
of that fact by the person making such claim (each, a “Claimant”) and, if required by the Exchange Agent or United
Bancorp in their sole discretion, either the execution and delivery by the Claimant of an agreement of indemnity for
the benefit of United Bancorp or the posting thereby of a bond in such amount as United Bancorp may determine is
reasonably necessary as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Lost Certificate,
the Exchange Agent will issue in exchange for such Lost Certificate the cash and/or United Bancorp Shares (and cash
in lieu of fractional United Bancorp Share interests, if any) deliverable in respect thereof. The Exchange Agent and
United Bancorp agree that no indemnity bond will be required pursuant to this paragraph from any single Claimant
with respect to Lost Certificates beneficially owned thereby which, prior to the consummation of the Merger,
represented twenty (20) or fewer Powhatan Point Shares in the aggregate.
(d) As soon as reasonably practicable following the Effective Time, the Exchange Agent will deliver to each holder of
Powhatan Point Shares of record immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than Dissenting Shares) who has
surrendered Old Certificates (and to all holders of uncertificated Powhatan
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Point Shares) and who has properly completed and submitted to the Exchange Agent all documentation reasonably
required thereby in order for the release of the Merger Consideration, the Merger Consideration and any applicable
dividends or distributions pursuant to subsection (f) below to which such holder is entitled. For certificated Powhatan
Point Shares, no payment will be made until the Old Certificate(s) representing such Powhatan Point Shares are
surrendered or the procedure regarding lost, stolen or destroyed certificates set forth in Section 2.2(c) has been
completed. After the Effective Time and until surrendered, an Old Certificate will represent only the right to receive
the Merger Consideration to which the holder is entitled pursuant to Section 1.5, and any applicable dividends or
distributions pursuant to subsection (f) below. If any New Certificate representing United Bancorp Shares is to be
issued in a name other than that in which the Old Certificate(s) surrendered in exchange therefor are registered, it will
be a condition of the issuance thereof that the Old Certificate(s) so surrendered will be properly endorsed (or
accompanied by an appropriate instrument of transfer) and otherwise in proper form for transfer, and that the person
requesting such exchange will pay to the Exchange Agent in advance any transfer or other similar Taxes required by
reason of the issuance of a New Certificate representing United Bancorp Shares in any name other than that of the
registered holder of the Old Certificate(s) surrendered, or required for any other reason, or will establish to the
satisfaction of the Exchange Agent that such Tax has been paid or is not payable.
(e) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, none of United Bancorp, Powhatan Point, the Exchange Agent,
the Surviving Company, or any other person will be liable to any former holder of Powhatan Point Shares for any
payment of the Merger Consideration, any cash in lieu of a fractional United Bancorp Share interest or any dividends
or distributions with respect to United Bancorp Shares delivered to a public official if required by any applicable
abandoned property, escheat or similar law.
(f) No dividends or other distributions declared after the Effective Time with respect to United Bancorp Shares and
payable to the holders of record thereof after the Effective Time shall be paid to the holder of any unsurrendered Old
Certificate until it is surrendered by the holder thereof. Subject to the effect, if any, of applicable law, after the
subsequent surrender and exchange of an Old Certificate, the record holder will be entitled to receive from United
Bancorp any dividends or other distributions, without any interest thereon, that became payable to the holders of
record after the Effective Time with respect to any United Bancorp Shares represented by such Old Certificate.
(g) After the Effective Time, there will be no further registration or transfer of Powhatan Point Shares on the stock
transfer books of Powhatan Point. In the event that, after the Effective Time, Powhatan Point Shares (or the Old
Certificates representing them) are presented for transfer, they will be cancelled and exchanged as provided in this
Article II.
(h) United Bancorp or the Exchange Agent will be entitled to deduct and withhold from the Merger Consideration
such amounts as United Bancorp or the Exchange Agent is required to deduct and withhold with respect to the making
of such payment required under the Code, or any other provision of domestic or foreign tax law (whether national,
federal, state, provincial, local or otherwise). To the extent that amounts are so withheld and paid over to the
appropriate taxing authority by United Bancorp or the Exchange Agent, such withheld amounts will be treated for all
purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the holder of the Powhatan Point Shares.
(i) Any portion of the Exchange Fund that remains unclaimed by the former shareholders of Powhatan Point for one
(1) year after the Effective Time shall be paid to the Surviving Company. Any former shareholders of Powhatan Point
who have not exchanged their Old Certificates pursuant to this Article II may look only to the Surviving Company for
payment of the Merger Consideration, cash in lieu of any fractional United Bancorp Shares and any unpaid dividends
and distributions on the United Bancorp Shares deliverable in respect of each former Powhatan Point Share such
shareholder holds as determined pursuant to this Agreement, in each case, without any interest thereon.
(j) The Surviving Company may from time to time waive one or more of the rights provided to it in this Article II to
withhold certain payments, deliveries and distributions; and no such waiver will constitute a waiver of its rights
thereafter to withhold any such payment, delivery or distribution in the case of any person.
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ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF POWHATAN POINT
Except as disclosed in the disclosure schedule delivered by Powhatan Point to United Bancorp concurrently herewith
(the “Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule”), Powhatan Point hereby represents and warrants to United Bancorp the
statements contained in this Article III; provided, Powhatan Point shall not be deemed to have breached a
representation or warranty as a consequence of the existence of any fact, event or circumstance unless such fact,
circumstance or event, individually or taken together with all other facts, events or circumstances inconsistent with
any representation or warranty contained in this Article III, has had or is reasonably likely to have, a Material Adverse
Effect (disregarding for purposes of this proviso any materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualification contained in
any representation or warranty); provided, further, that the mere inclusion of an item in the Powhatan Point Disclosure
Schedule as an exception to a representation or warranty will not be deemed an admission by Powhatan Point that
such item represents a material exception or fact, event or circumstance or that such item has had or is reasonably
likely to result in a Material Adverse Effect; provided, further, that any disclosures made with respect to a section of
this Article III shall be deemed to qualify (a) any other section of this Article III specifically referenced or
cross-referenced and (b) any other sections of this Article III to the extent it is reasonably apparent from a reading of
the disclosure that such disclosure applies to such other sections (notwithstanding the absence of a specific
cross-reference). As used in this Agreement, the term “Material Adverse Effect” means, with respect to United Bancorp,
Powhatan Point or the Surviving Company, as the case may be, a material adverse effect on (i) the business,
properties, assets, liabilities, results of operations or financial condition of such party and its Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole (provided, however, that, with respect to this clause (i), Material Adverse Effect will not be deemed to include
the impact of  (A) changes, after the date hereof, in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) or
applicable regulatory accounting requirements, (B) changes, after the date hereof, in laws, rules or regulations of
general applicability to companies in the industries in which such party or its Subsidiaries operate, or interpretations
thereof by courts or Governmental Entities, (C) changes, after the date hereof, in global, national or regional political
conditions (including the outbreak of war or acts of terrorism) or in economic or market (including equity, credit and
debt markets, as well as changes in interest rates) conditions affecting the financial services industry generally and not
specifically relating to such party or its Subsidiaries, (D) failure, in and of itself, to meet earnings projections or
internal financial forecasts, but not including the underlying causes thereof, (E) disclosure or consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby (including any effect on a party’s relationship with its customers or employees) or
actions expressly required by this Agreement in contemplation of the transactions contemplated hereby, or (F) actions
or omissions taken pursuant to the written consent of United Bancorp, in the case of Powhatan Point, or Powhatan
Point, in the case of United Bancorp; except, with respect to subclauses (A), (B), and (C), to the extent that the effects
of such change are materially disproportionately adverse to the business, properties, assets, liabilities, results of
operations or financial condition of such party and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, as compared to other companies
in the industry in which such party and its Subsidiaries operate) or (ii) the ability of such party to timely consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby. As used in this Agreement, the word “Subsidiary,” when used with respect to any
party, means any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, bank or other organization, whether incorporated
or unincorporated, which is consolidated with such party for financial reporting purposes.
3.1 Corporate Organization.
(a) Powhatan Point is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State
of Ohio and is a bank holding company duly registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended
(the “BHC Act”). Powhatan Point has the corporate power and authority to own or lease all of its properties and assets
and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted in all material respects. Powhatan Point is duly licensed or
qualified to do business in each jurisdiction in which the nature of the business conducted by it or the character or
location of the properties and assets owned or leased by it makes such licensing or qualification necessary. True and
complete copies of the Articles of Incorporation of Powhatan Point (the “Powhatan Point Articles”) and the Code of
Regulations of Powhatan Point (the “Powhatan Point Code of Regulations”), as in effect as of the date of this
Agreement, have previously been made available by Powhatan Point to United Bancorp.
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(b) Each Subsidiary of Powhatan Point (a “Powhatan Point Subsidiary”) (i) is duly organized and validly existing under
the laws of its jurisdiction of organization, (ii) is duly qualified to do business and, where such concept is recognized
under applicable law, in good standing in all jurisdictions (whether federal, state, local or foreign) where its ownership
or leasing of property or the conduct of its business requires it to be so qualified and (iii) has all requisite corporate
power and authority to own or lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as now conducted. There are
no restrictions on the ability of any Subsidiary of Powhatan Point to pay dividends or distributions, except, in the case
of a Subsidiary that is a regulated entity, for restrictions on dividends or distributions generally applicable to all such
regulated entities. The deposit accounts of each Subsidiary of Powhatan Point that is an insured depository institution
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) through the Deposit Insurance Fund (as defined
in Section 3(y) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act of 1950) to the fullest extent permitted by law, all premiums and
assessments required to be paid in connection therewith have been paid when due, and no proceedings for the
termination of such insurance are pending or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, threatened. Section 3.1(b) of the
Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all Subsidiaries of Powhatan Point as of the
date hereof.
3.2 Capitalization.
(a) The authorized capital stock of Powhatan Point consists only of 80,000 Powhatan Point Shares, without par value.
As of the date of this Agreement, no shares of capital stock or other voting securities of Powhatan Point are issued,
reserved for issuance or outstanding, other than 52,955 Powhatan Point Shares issued and outstanding with no
Powhatan Point Shares held in treasury and no Powhatan Point Shares reserved for issuance under any Powhatan
Point Benefit Plans. All of the issued and outstanding Powhatan Point Shares have been duly authorized and validly
issued and are fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights, with no personal liability attaching to the
ownership thereof. No bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness that have the right to vote on any matters on
which shareholders of Powhatan Point may vote are issued or outstanding. No trust preferred or subordinated debt
securities of Powhatan Point are issued or outstanding. As of the date of this Agreement, there are no outstanding
subscriptions, options, warrants, puts, calls, rights, exchangeable or convertible securities or other commitments or
agreements obligating Powhatan Point to issue, transfer, sell, purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any such
securities.
(b) There are no voting trusts, shareholder agreements, proxies or other agreements in effect pursuant to which
Powhatan Point or any of the Powhatan Point Subsidiaries has a contractual obligation with respect to the voting or
transfer of Powhatan Point Shares or other equity interests of Powhatan Point. No equity-based awards (including any
cash awards where the amount of payment is determined in whole or in part based on the price of any capital stock of
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries) are outstanding.
(c) Powhatan Point owns, directly or indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity
ownership interests of each of the Powhatan Point Subsidiaries, free and clear of any liens, pledges, charges,
encumbrances and security interests whatsoever (“Liens”), and all of such shares or equity ownership interests are duly
authorized and validly issued and are fully paid, nonassessable (except, with respect to Powhatan Point Subsidiaries
that are insured depository institutions, as provided under 12 U.S.C. §55 or any comparable provision of applicable
state law) and free of preemptive rights, with no personal liability attaching to the ownership thereof. No Powhatan
Point Subsidiary has or is bound by any outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, calls, rights, commitments or
agreements of any character calling for the purchase or issuance of any shares of capital stock or any other equity
security of such Subsidiary or any securities representing the right to purchase or otherwise receive any shares of
capital stock or any other equity security of such Subsidiary.
3.3 Authority; No Violation.
(a) Powhatan Point has full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the
Merger have been duly and validly approved by the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point. The Board of Directors of
Powhatan Point has approved the Merger and transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and has directed that this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby be submitted to Powhatan Point’s shareholders for adoption at a
meeting of such shareholders, and
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has adopted a resolution to the foregoing effect. Except for the adoption of this Agreement by the affirmative vote of
the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding Powhatan Point Shares (the “Requisite Powhatan Point Vote”), no
other corporate proceedings on the part of Powhatan Point are necessary to approve this Agreement or to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by Powhatan
Point and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by United Bancorp) constitutes a valid and binding
obligation of Powhatan Point, enforceable against Powhatan Point in accordance with its terms (except in all cases as
such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, moratorium, reorganization or
similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting insured depository institutions or their parent companies or
the rights of creditors generally and subject to general principles of equity (the “Enforceability Exceptions”)).
(b) Subject to the receipt of the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote, neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement
by Powhatan Point nor the consummation by Powhatan Point of the transactions contemplated hereby, nor compliance
by Powhatan Point with any of the terms or provisions hereof, will (i) violate any provision of the Powhatan Point
Articles or the Powhatan Point Code of Regulations or (ii) assuming that the consents, approvals and filings referred
to in Section 3.4 are duly obtained and/or made, (x) violate any law, statute, code, ordinance, rule, regulation,
judgment, order, writ, decree or injunction applicable to Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their
respective properties or assets or (y) violate, conflict with, result in a breach of any provision of or the loss of any
benefit under, constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a default)
under, result in the termination of or a right of termination or cancellation under, accelerate the performance required
by, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the respective properties or assets of Powhatan Point or any of its
Subsidiaries under, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust,
license, lease, agreement or other instrument or obligation to which Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries is a
party, or by which they or any of their respective properties or assets may be bound.
3.4 Consents and Approvals.   Except for (i) the filing of applications, filings and notices, as applicable, with the
NASDAQ, (ii) the filing of applications, filings, waivers and/or notices, as applicable, with the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”), the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”),
the FDIC and the Ohio Division of Financial Institutions (the “ODFI”) in connection with the Merger and the Bank
Merger, and approval of such applications, filings and notices, (iii) the filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) of a registration statement on Form S-4 pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(including any amendments or supplements thereto, the “S-4”) filed by United Bancorp to register with the SEC the
United Bancorp Shares that make up the Stock Consideration, which also will include Powhatan Point’s proxy
statement seeking the adoption by its shareholders of this Agreement and a prospectus regarding the United Bancorp
Shares that make up the Stock Consideration (including any amendments or supplements thereto, the “Proxy
Statement/Prospectus”) and declaration of effectiveness of the S-4, (iv) the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the
Ohio Secretary pursuant to the OGCL, (v) the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the ODFI for filing with the
Ohio Secretary, (vi) the filing of any notices or other filings under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act
of 1976 (the “HSR Act”), if necessary or advisable, and (vii) such filings and approvals as are required to be made or
obtained under the securities or “Blue Sky” laws of various states in connection with the issuance of the United Bancorp
Shares pursuant to this Agreement, no consents or approvals of or filings or registrations with any court or
administrative agency or commission or other governmental authority or instrumentality or SRO (each a
“Governmental Entity”) are necessary in connection with (A) the execution and delivery by Powhatan Point of this
Agreement or (B) the consummation by Powhatan Point of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby
(including the Bank Merger). As used in this Agreement, “SRO” means (i) any “self-regulatory organization” as defined in
Section 3(a)(26) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and (ii) any other United
States or foreign securities exchange, futures exchange, commodities exchange or contract market. As of the date
hereof, Powhatan Point is not aware of any reason why the necessary regulatory approvals and consents will not be
received in order to permit consummation of the Merger and Bank Merger on a timely basis.
A-12

Edgar Filing: Edenbrook Capital, LLC - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 103



TABLE OF CONTENTS​​
3.5 Reports.   Powhatan Point and each of its Subsidiaries have timely filed (or furnished, as applicable) all reports,
registrations and statements, together with any amendments required to be made with respect thereto, (the “Powhatan
Point Reports”) that they were required to file (or furnish, as applicable) since January 1, 2015 with (i) any state
regulatory authority, (ii) the SEC, (iii) the Federal Reserve Board, (iv) the FDIC, (v) the OCC, (vi) any foreign
regulatory authority and (vii) any SRO ((i) – (vii) and with the ODFI, collectively, “Regulatory Agencies”), including any
report, registration or statement required to be filed (or furnished, as applicable) pursuant to the laws, rules or
regulations of the United States, any state, any foreign jurisdiction, or any Regulatory Agency, and have paid all fees
and assessments due and payable in connection therewith. Except for examinations of Powhatan Point and its
Subsidiaries conducted by a Regulatory Agency in the ordinary course of business, no Regulatory Agency has
initiated or has pending any proceeding or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, investigation into the business or
operations of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries since January 1, 2015. There is no unresolved violation,
criticism, or exception by any Regulatory Agency with respect to any report or statement relating to any examinations
or inspections of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries.
3.6 Financial Statements.
(a) The financial statements of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries included (or incorporated by reference) in the
Powhatan Point Reports (including the related notes, where applicable) (i) have been prepared from, and are in
accordance with, the books and records of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries, (ii) fairly present in all material
respects the consolidated results of operations, cash flows, changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated financial
position of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries for the respective fiscal periods or as of the respective dates therein set
forth (subject to year-end adjustments normal in nature and amount), (iii) complied, as of their respective dates of
filing with the applicable Regulatory Agency, in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and
with the published rules and regulations of such Regulatory Agency with respect thereto, and (iv) have been prepared
in accordance with GAAP consistently applied during the periods involved, except, in each case, as indicated in such
statements or in the notes thereto. The books and records of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries have been, since
January 1, 2015, and are being, maintained in all material respects in accordance with GAAP and any other applicable
legal and accounting requirements. No accounting firm engaged by Powhatan Point or any Subsidiary has resigned (or
informed Powhatan Point that it intends to resign) or been dismissed as a result of or in connection with any
disagreements with Powhatan Point or any Subsidiary on a matter of accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.
(b) Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries has any liability of any nature whatsoever (whether absolute,
accrued, contingent or otherwise and whether due or to become due) required by GAAP to be included in the
consolidated balance sheet of Powhatan Point, except for those liabilities that are reflected or reserved against on the
consolidated balance sheet of Powhatan Point or Subsidiary included in a Powhatan Point Report for the fiscal quarter
ended March 31, 2018 (including any notes thereto) and for liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice since March 31, 2018, or in connection with this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby.
(c) The records, systems, and controls of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries are recorded, stored, maintained and
operated under means (including any electronic, mechanical or photographic process, whether computerized or not)
that are under the direct control of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries or accountants (including all means of access
thereto and therefrom).
(d) Since January 1, 2015, (i) neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor, to the knowledge of Powhatan
Point, any director, officer, auditor, accountant or representative of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, has
received or otherwise had or obtained knowledge of any material complaint, allegation, assertion or claim, whether
written or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, oral, regarding the accounting or auditing practices, procedures,
methodologies or methods (including with respect to loan loss reserves, write-downs, charge-offs and accruals) of
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective internal accounting controls, including any material
complaint, allegation, assertion or written claim that Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries has engaged in
questionable accounting or auditing practices, and (ii) no attorney representing Powhatan Point or any of its
Subsidiaries, whether or not employed by
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Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, has reported evidence of a material violation of securities laws, breach of
fiduciary duty or similar violation by Powhatan Point or any of its officers, directors or employees to the Board of
Directors of Powhatan Point or any committee thereof or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, to any director or
officer of Powhatan Point.
3.7 Broker’s Fees.   Neither Powhatan Point nor any Powhatan Point Subsidiary nor any of their respective officers or
directors has employed any broker, finder or financial advisor or incurred any liability for any broker’s fees,
commissions or finder’s fees in connection with the Merger or related transactions contemplated by this Agreement
other than CAMELS Consulting Group, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company (“CAMELS”).
3.8 Absence of Certain Changes or Events.
(a) Since December 31, 2017, no event or events have occurred that have had or would reasonably be likely to have,
either individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on Powhatan Point.
(b) Since December 31, 2017, except with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby or as required or permitted
by this Agreement, Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries have carried on their respective businesses in all material
respects in the ordinary course consistent with past practice.
3.9 Legal Proceedings.
(a) Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any, and there are no pending or, to the knowledge
of Powhatan Point, threatened, legal, administrative, arbitral or other proceedings, claims, actions or governmental or
regulatory investigations of any nature against Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries (i) that would reasonably be
expected to be material to Powhatan Point, or (ii) of a material nature challenging the validity or propriety of this
Agreement.
(b) There is no injunction, order, judgment, decree, or regulatory restriction imposed upon Powhatan Point, any of its
Subsidiaries or the assets of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries (or that, upon consummation of the Merger,
would apply to United Bancorp or any of its affiliates) that would reasonably be expected to be material to either
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries.
3.10 Taxes and Tax Returns.
(a) Each of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries has duly and timely filed (taking into account all applicable
extensions) all material Tax Returns in all jurisdictions in which Tax Returns are required to be filed by it, and all
such Tax Returns are true, correct, and complete in all material respects. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its
Subsidiaries is the beneficiary of any extension of time within which to file any material Tax Return. All material
Taxes of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries that are due have been fully and timely paid. Each of Powhatan Point
and its Subsidiaries has withheld and paid all material Taxes required to have been withheld and paid to the
appropriate taxing authorities as required by law to be withheld and paid. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its
Subsidiaries has granted any extension or waiver of the limitation period for the audit of a Tax Return or the
assessment of Tax applicable to any material Tax that remains in effect. The federal income Tax Returns of Powhatan
Point and its Subsidiaries for the six years up to and including December 31, 2016 have not been audited by the
Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or are Tax Returns with respect to which the applicable period for assessment
under applicable law, after giving effect to extensions or waivers, has expired. Since January 1, 2011, no deficiency
with respect to any amount of Taxes has been proposed, asserted or assessed against Powhatan Point or any of its
Subsidiaries. There are no pending or threatened (in writing) disputes, claims, audits, examinations or other
proceedings regarding any Taxes of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries or the assets of Powhatan Point and its
Subsidiaries. In the last six years, neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries has been informed in writing by
any jurisdiction that the jurisdiction believes that Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries was required to file any
Tax Return that was not filed. Powhatan Point has made available to United Bancorp true, correct, and complete
copies of any private letter ruling requests, closing agreements or gain recognition agreements with respect to Taxes
requested or executed in the last six years. There are no Liens for material Taxes (except Taxes not yet due and
payable) on any of the assets of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its
Subsidiaries is a party to or is bound by any Tax sharing, allocation or indemnification agreement or arrangement
(other than such an agreement or
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arrangement exclusively between or among Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries). Neither Powhatan Point nor any of
its Subsidiaries (A) has been a member of an affiliated group filing a consolidated federal income Tax Return (other
than a group the common parent of which was Powhatan Point) or (B) has any liability for the Taxes of any person
(other than Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries) under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar
provision of state, local or foreign law), as a transferee or successor, by contract or otherwise. Neither Powhatan Point
nor any of its Subsidiaries has been, within the past two years part of a “plan (or series of related transactions)” within
the meaning of Section 355(e) of the Code of which the Merger is also a part, a “distributing corporation” or a “controlled
corporation” (within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1)(A) of the Code) in a distribution of stock intended to qualify for
tax-free treatment under Section 355 of the Code. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries has participated
in a “reportable transaction” within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b)(1). At no time during the
past five years has Powhatan Point been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of
Section 897(c)(2) of the Code. Powhatan Point has made available to United Bancorp true and correct copies of the
United States federal income Tax Returns filed by Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries for each of the three (3)
most-recent Tax years. The accruals, liabilities and reserves for Taxes reflected in the financial statements of
Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries included (or incorporated by reference) in the Powhatan Point Reports are, in the
reasonable belief of Powhatan Point’s management, adequate for the periods covered and, since the date of the most
recent financial statements included in the Powhatan Point Reports, any changes in such accruals, liabilities and
reserved have occurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practices. Neither Powhatan Point nor
any of its Subsidiaries has agreed, nor is it required, to make any adjustment under Section 481(a) of the Code by
reason of a change in accounting method or otherwise that will affect its liability for Taxes. Neither Powhatan Point
nor any of its Subsidiaries has filed an election under Section 338(g) or 338(h)(10) of the Code. There are no joint
ventures, partnerships, limited liability companies, or other arrangements or contracts to which Powhatan Point or any
of its Subsidiaries is a party that could be treated as a partnership for Tax purposes. No Tax is required to be withheld
pursuant to Section 1445 of the Code as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
(b) As used in this Agreement, the term “Tax” or “Taxes” means all federal, state, local, and foreign income, excise, gross
receipts, ad valorem, profits, gains, property, capital, sales, transfer, use, license, payroll, employment, social security,
severance, unemployment, withholding, duties, excise, windfall profits, intangibles, franchise, backup withholding,
value added, alternative or add-on minimum, estimated and other taxes, charges, fees, levies or like assessments
together with all penalties and additions to tax and interest thereon.
(c) As used in this Agreement, the term “Tax Return” means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund, estimate,
or information return or statement relating to Taxes, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any
amendment thereof, supplied or required to be supplied to a Governmental Entity.
3.11 Employees and Employee Benefit Plans.
(a) Section 3.11(a) of the Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule lists all Powhatan Point Benefit Plans. For purposes of
this Agreement, “Powhatan Point Benefit Plans” means all employee benefit plans (as defined in Section 3(3) of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”)), whether or not subject to ERISA, and all
bonus, stock option, stock purchase, restricted stock, incentive, deferred compensation, retiree medical or life
insurance, supplemental retirement, severance or other benefit plans, programs or arrangements, and all retention,
bonus, employment, termination or severance plans, programs or arrangements or other contracts or agreements,
whether written or unwritten, that are currently effective or were in effect at any time in the prior three years, to or
with respect to which Powhatan Point or any Subsidiary or any trade or business of Powhatan Point or any of its
Subsidiaries, whether or not incorporated, all of which together with Powhatan Point would be deemed a “single
employer” within the meaning of Section 4001 of ERISA (a “Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate”), is a party or has any
current or future obligation or that are maintained, contributed to or sponsored by Powhatan Point or any of its
Subsidiaries or any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate for the benefit of any current or former employee, officer,
director or independent contractor of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or any Powhatan Point ERISA
Affiliate.
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(b) Powhatan Point has made available to United Bancorp true and complete copies of each of the Powhatan Point
Benefit Plans and the following related documents, to the extent applicable: (i) all summary plan descriptions,
amendments, modifications or material supplements to any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, (ii) the annual report (Form
5500), if any, filed with the IRS for the last two plan years, (iii) the most recently received IRS determination letter, if
any, or IRS opinion letter relating to any such Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, and (iv) the most recently prepared
actuarial report for each such Powhatan Point Benefit Plan (if applicable) for each of the last two years.
(c) To the knowledge of Powhatan Point, each Powhatan Point Benefit Plan has been established, operated and
administered in all material respects in accordance with its terms and the requirements of all applicable laws,
including ERISA and the Code, except as would not result in any material liability. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of
its Subsidiaries has, within the prior three years, taken any material corrective action or made a filing under any
voluntary correction program of the IRS, Department of Labor or any other Governmental Entity with respect to any
Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, and neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries has any knowledge of any
material plan defect that would qualify for correction under any such program. There is no pending investigation or
enforcement action by the IRS, Department of Labor or any other Governmental Entity with respect to any Powhatan
Point Benefit Plan.
(d) Each Powhatan Point Benefit Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code (the “Powhatan
Point Qualified Plans”) has received a favorable determination or opinion letter from the IRS, which letter has not been
revoked (nor, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, has revocation been threatened), and, to the knowledge of
Powhatan Point, there are no existing circumstances and no events have occurred that would have a material adverse
effect on the qualified status of any Powhatan Point Qualified Plan or the related trust or materially increase the costs
relating thereto. All contributions to the Powhatan Point Qualified Plans have been timely made.
(e) Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries maintains any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan that is a
“nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (as defined in Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code) and any award thereunder
(the “Powhatan Point Non-qualified Plans”). Each Powhatan Point Non-qualified Plan that is subject to Section 409A of
the Code, has (i) since January 1, 2005, been maintained and operated, in all material respects, in good faith
compliance with Section 409A of the Code and IRS Notice 2005-1 and (ii) since January 1, 2009, been, in all material
respects, in documentary and operational compliance with Section 409A of the Code.
(f) Neither Powhatan Point, any of its Subsidiaries or any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliates currently maintains or has
formerly maintained any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan or any other ongoing, frozen or terminated “single employer
plan” within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA, that is subject to Title IV or Section 302 of ERISA or
Section 412, 430 or 4971 of the Code, and (i) no such plan is in “at-risk” status for purposes of Section 430 of the Code,
(ii) no reportable event within the meaning of Section 4043(c) of ERISA for which the 30-day notice requirement has
not been waived has occurred, (iii) all premiums required to be paid to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation (the
“PBGC”) have been timely paid in full, (iv) no material liability (other than for premiums to the PBGC) under Title IV
of ERISA has been or is reasonably expected to be incurred by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, (v) the
PBGC has not instituted proceedings to terminate any such Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, (vi) to the knowledge of
Powhatan Point, the most recent actuarial report for such Powhatan Point Benefit Plan is accurate in all material
respects and (vii) there does not exist any accumulated funding deficiency within the meaning of Section 412 of the
Code or Section 302 of ERISA, whether or not waived.
(g) None of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries nor any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate has, at any time during the
last six years, contributed to or been obligated to contribute to any plan that is a “multiemployer plan” within the
meaning of Section 4001 (a) (3) of ERISA (a “Multiemployer Plan”). None of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries nor
any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate has, at any time during the last six years, contributed to or been obligated to
contribute to any plan that has two or more contributing sponsors at least two of whom are not under common control,
within the meaning of Section 4063 of ERISA (a “Multiple Employer Plan”). None of Powhatan Point and its
Subsidiaries nor any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate has incurred any material liability to a Multiemployer Plan or
Multiple Employer Plan as a result of a complete or partial withdrawal (as those terms are defined in Part I of Subtitle
E of Title IV of ERISA) from a Multiemployer Plan or Multiple Employer Plan that has not been satisfied in full.
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(h) Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries sponsors, has sponsored or has any obligation with respect to
any employee benefit plan that provides for any post-employment or post-retirement health or medical or life
insurance benefits for retired or former employees or beneficiaries or dependents thereof, except as required by
Section 4980B of the Code or any equivalent state law regarding continuation health coverage for employees of small
employers.
(i) None of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries nor any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate nor, to the knowledge of
Powhatan Point, any other person, including any fiduciary, has engaged in any “prohibited transaction” (as defined in
Section 4975 of the Code or Section 406 of ERISA) which could subject any of the Powhatan Point Benefit Plans or
their related trusts, Powhatan Point, any of its Subsidiaries, any Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliate or any person that
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries has an obligation to indemnify to any material tax or material penalty
imposed under Section 4975 of the Code or Section 502 of ERISA. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries
has engaged in a transaction or failed to take any action with respect to any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan that would
result in the imposition, directly or indirectly, of a material tax or penalty imposed by Sections 4980B or 4980D of the
Code.
(j) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby will (either alone or in conjunction with any other event) result in, cause the vesting, exercisability, funding,
payment or delivery of, or increase the amount or value of, any payment, right or other benefit to any employee,
officer, director or independent contractor of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, or result in any limitation on
the right of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or Powhatan Point ERISA Affiliates to amend, merge, terminate
or receive a reversion of assets from any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan or related trust. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, except as described in Section 3.11(j) of the Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule, no amount paid or
payable (whether in cash, in property, or in the form of benefits) by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby (either solely as a result thereof or as a result of such
transactions in conjunction with any other event) will be an “excess parachute payment” within the meaning of Section
280G of the Code.
(k) To the extent Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries are “applicable large employers” subject to the shared
responsibility excise tax under Section 4980H of the Code, they each provide substantially all of their full-time
employees with the opportunity to enroll in minimum essential coverage under an eligible employer-sponsored plan
(as defined in Section 5000A(f)(2) of the Code) for each calendar month beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
(l) There are no pending or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, threatened (in writing) material labor grievances or
material unfair labor practice claims or charges against Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, or any strikes or
other material labor disputes against Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its
Subsidiaries are party to or bound by any collective bargaining or similar agreement with any labor organization, or
work rules or practices agreed to with any labor organization or employee association applicable to employees of
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, and, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, there are no organizing efforts by
any union or other group seeking to represent any employees of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries.
3.12 Compliance with Applicable Law.   Powhatan Point and each of its Subsidiaries hold, and have at all times since
December 31, 2015 held, all licenses, franchises, permits and authorizations necessary for the lawful conduct of their
respective businesses and ownership of their respective properties, rights and assets under and pursuant to each (and
have paid all fees and assessments due and payable in connection therewith), and, to the knowledge of Powhatan
Point, no suspension or cancellation of any such necessary license, franchise, permit or authorization is threatened (in
writing). Powhatan Point and each of its Subsidiaries have complied in all material respects with and are not in
material default or violation under any law, statute, order, rule or regulation of any Governmental Entity applicable to
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, including, but not limited to, (to the extent applicable to Powhatan Point or
its Subsidiaries) all laws related to data protection or privacy, the USA PATRIOT Act, the Bank Secrecy Act, the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act and Regulation B, the Fair Housing Act, the Community Reinvestment Act, the Fair
Credit Reporting Act and Regulation V, the Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z, the
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Home Mortgage Disclosure Act and Regulation C, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Electronic Fund
Transfer Act and Regulation E, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Financial Protection Act, any
regulations promulgated by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the
Interagency Policy Statement on Retail Sales of Nondeposit Investment Products, the SAFE Mortgage Licensing Act
of 2008, the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and Regulation X, and any other law or regulation relating to bank
secrecy, discriminatory lending, financing, consumer protection, money laundering prevention, foreign assets control,
Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation W, and any and all agency requirements relating to
the origination, sale and servicing of commercial, mortgage and consumer loans. First National has a Community
Reinvestment Act rating of  “satisfactory” or better. Neither Powhatan Point nor its Subsidiaries engage in the type of
activity subject to 12 U.S.C. §1851 and the regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board, the OCC and the
FDIC (together, the “Federal Banking Agencies”) in connection therewith (the “Volcker Rule”).
3.13 Certain Contracts.
(a) As of the date hereof, neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or bound by any contract,
arrangement, commitment or understanding (whether written or oral), other than any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, of
the following types (each a “Powhatan Point Contract”), and no such contract or agreement is presently being
negotiated:
(i) any contract involving commitments to others to make capital expenditures or purchases or sales in excess of 
$5,000 in any one case or $10,000 in the aggregate in any period of 12 consecutive months;
(ii) any contract relating to any direct or indirect indebtedness of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries for
borrowed money (including loan agreements, lease purchase agreements, guarantees, agreements to purchase goods or
services or to supply funds or other undertakings relating to the extension of credit, but excluding outstanding put
options with respect to loans sold into the secondary market, certificates of deposit, government bonds and other
deposit accounts issued to customers), or any conditional sales contracts, equipment lease agreements and other
security arrangements with respect to personal property with an obligation in excess of  $5,000 in any one case or
$10,000 in the aggregate in any period of 12 consecutive months;
(iii) any contract containing covenants limiting the freedom of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries to compete in
any line of business or with any person or in any area or territory;
(iv) any partnership, joint venture, limited liability company arrangement or similar agreement;
(v) any profit sharing, phantom stock award, stock option, stock purchase, stock appreciation, deferred compensation,
issuance, or other plan or arrangement for the benefit of Powhatan Point’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ current or former
directors, officers, employees or consultants;
(vi) any license agreement, either as licensor or licensee, or any other contract of any type relating to any intellectual
property, except for license agreements relating to off-the-shelf software or software components pursuant to
non-negotiable standard form or “shrink wrap” license agreement;
(vii) any contract with any insider of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or any arrangement under which
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries has advanced or loaned any amount to any of their respective insiders or
immediate family member of any insider (the terms “insider” and “immediate family member” have the meanings given to
them under Regulation O (12 C.F.R. Part 215) as promulgated by the FRB);
(viii) any contract, whether exclusive or otherwise, with any sales agent, representative, franchisee or distributor;
(ix) other than this Agreement and any ancillary agreements being executed in connection with this Agreement, any
contract providing for the acquisition or disposition of any portion of the assets (other than cash or cash equivalents),
properties or securities of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries in excess of  $25,000;
(x) any contract that requires the payment of royalties;
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(xi) any contract pursuant to which Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries has any obligation to share revenues or
profits derived from Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries with any other person;
(xii) any contract between (i) Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any officer, director,
employee or consultant of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, on the other hand, and (ii) Powhatan Point or any
of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any affiliate of any director or executive officer of Powhatan Point, on the
other hand; and
(xiii) any other legally binding contract not of the type covered by any of the other items of this Section 3.13(a)
having an obligation by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries in excess of  $10,000 in the aggregate in any period
of 12 consecutive months.
(b) (i) Each Powhatan Point Contract is valid and binding on Powhatan Point or one of its Subsidiaries, as applicable,
and in full force and effect, (ii) Powhatan Point and each of its Subsidiaries has performed all obligations required to
be performed by it prior to the date hereof under each Powhatan Point Contract, (iii) to the knowledge of Powhatan
Point, each third-party counterparty to each Powhatan Point Contract has performed all obligations required to be
performed by it to date under such Powhatan Point Contract, and (iv) no event or condition exists which constitutes or,
after notice or lapse of time or both, will constitute, a default on the part of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries
under any such Powhatan Point Contract.
3.14 Agreements with Regulatory Agencies.   Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any
cease-and-desist or other order or enforcement action issued by, or is a party to any written agreement, consent
agreement or memorandum of understanding with, or is a party to any commitment letter or similar undertaking to, or
is subject to any order or directive by, or has been ordered to pay any civil money penalty by, or has been since
January 1, 2015, a recipient of any supervisory letter from, or since January 1, 2015, has adopted any policies,
procedures or board resolutions at the request or suggestion of any Regulatory Agency or other Governmental Entity
that currently restricts in any material respect the conduct of its business or that in any material manner relates to its
capital adequacy, its ability to pay dividends, its credit or risk management policies, its management or its business
(each, whether or not set forth in the Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule, a “Powhatan Point Regulatory Agreement”);
provided, however, that Powhatan Point Regulatory Agreement shall not be deemed to include any of the foregoing
that is subject to confidentiality restrictions of any Regulatory Agency prohibiting its disclosure to third parties under
applicable law, rule or regulation. Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries is aware, since January 1, 2015,
of any Regulatory Agency or other Governmental Entity that it is considering issuing, initiating, ordering, or
requesting any such Powhatan Point Regulatory Agreement.
3.15 Risk Management Instruments.   Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries has entered into any rate
swaps, caps, floors, option agreements, futures or forward contracts or other similar derivative transactions or risk
management arrangements, whether entered into for the account of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or for the
account of a customer of Powhatan Point or one of its Subsidiaries.
3.16 Environmental Matters.   To the knowledge of Powhatan Point, Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries (including
but not limited to real property previously owned during the last six (6) years or currently owned or operated by them
and real property that is mortgage collateral securing loans made by them) are in compliance and have complied with
all applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations, orders, decrees, permits, authorizations or legal requirements
relating to: (i) the protection or restoration of the environment, health and safety as it relates to hazardous substance
exposure or natural resource damages, (ii) the handling, use, presence, disposal, release or threatened release of, or
exposure to, any hazardous substance, or (iii) noise, odor, wetlands, indoor air, pollution, contamination or any injury
to persons or property from exposure to any hazardous substance (collectively, “Environmental Laws”). There are no
legal, administrative, arbitral or other judicial proceedings, claims or actions or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point,
any private environmental investigations or remediation activities or governmental investigations of any nature, which
impose, or seek to impose, or that could reasonably be likely to result in the imposition, on Powhatan Point or any of
its Subsidiaries, of any liability or obligation arising under any Environmental Law, concluded, pending or, to the
knowledge of Powhatan Point, threatened against Powhatan Point, and Powhatan Point has not received any written
notice (the substance of which has not
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been materially resolved) that alleges Powhatan Point is in violation of, or has liability for, any breach or violation
under any Environmental Laws. To the knowledge of Powhatan Point, there is no reasonable basis for any such
proceeding, claim, action or governmental investigation that would impose any such liability or obligation. Powhatan
Point is not subject to any agreement, order, judgment, decree, letter agreement or memorandum of agreement by or
with any court, governmental authority, regulatory agency or third party imposing any liability or obligation with
respect to any Environmental Law. To the knowledge of Powhatan Point, Powhatan Point has not participated in the
management and has not otherwise exercised control over any borrower such that Powhatan Point would be subject to
liability with respect to environmental matters in connection with any security interest, any borrower’s operations, or
any borrower’s property, and has not foreclosed on a Loan or taken over operations of any borrower’s property in a
manner that would result in liability under applicable Environmental Laws. To the knowledge of Powhatan Point,
Powhatan Point has no liability for any clean-up or remediation under any Environmental Laws with respect to any
real property presently owned or leased by Powhatan Point.
3.17 Investment Securities.
(a) Each of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries has good title to all securities owned by it, free and clear of any Lien,
except (i) as set forth in the financial statements included in the Powhatan Point Reports and (ii) to the extent such
securities or commodities are pledged in the ordinary course of business to secure obligations of Powhatan Point or its
Subsidiaries. Such securities are valued on the books of Powhatan Point in accordance with GAAP in all material
respects.
(b) Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries employ investment, securities, risk management and other policies, practices
and procedures that are prudent and reasonable in the context of their respective businesses, and Powhatan Point and
its Subsidiaries have, since January 1, 2015, been in compliance with such policies, practices and procedures in all
material respects.
3.18 Real Property.
(a) Section 3.18(a) of the Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule sets forth all real property owned by Powhatan Point or
a Powhatan Point Subsidiary (the “Powhatan Point Owned Properties”). Neither Powhatan Point nor its Subsidiaries
lease any real property. Powhatan Point or a Powhatan Point Subsidiary has good and marketable title to all Powhatan
Point Owned Properties free and clear of all material Liens, except (i) statutory Liens securing payments not yet due,
(ii) Liens for real property Taxes not yet due and payable, (iii) easements, rights of way, and other similar
encumbrances that do not materially adversely affect the value or present use of the properties or assets subject thereto
or affected thereby or otherwise materially adversely impair business operations at such properties and (iv) such
imperfections or irregularities of title or Liens as do not materially adversely affect the value or use of the properties
or assets subject thereto or affected thereby or otherwise materially impair business operations at such properties
(collectively, “Permitted Encumbrances”). There are no material pending or, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point,
threatened condemnation proceedings against any Powhatan Point Real Property.
(b) All buildings, fixtures, mechanical systems (including electrical, plumbing and heating), and roof and structural
systems at each Powhatan Point Real Property are in good operating condition and repair, ordinary wear and tear
excepted, and no material expenditures are currently required or anticipated by Powhatan Point or a Powhatan Point
Subsidiary with respect to the foregoing.
(c) Neither Powhatan Point nor any Powhatan Point Subsidiary has received written notice of, or has any knowledge
of, any material uncured violation by Powhatan Point or a Powhatan Point Subsidiary of any of the Permitted
Encumbrances.
3.19 Intellectual Property.   Powhatan Point and each of its Subsidiaries owns, or is licensed to use (in each case, free
and clear of any material Liens other than any Permitted Encumbrances), all Intellectual Property necessary for the
conduct of its business as currently conducted. The use of any Intellectual Property by Powhatan Point and its
Subsidiaries does not, to the knowledge of Powhatan Point, infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate the rights of
any person, and no person has asserted to Powhatan Point in writing that Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries has
infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated the Intellectual Property rights of such person. To the knowledge of
Powhatan Point, no person is challenging, infringing on or otherwise violating any right of Powhatan Point or any of
its Subsidiaries with
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respect to any Intellectual Property owned by Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries. Neither Powhatan Point nor any
Powhatan Point Subsidiary has received any written notice of any pending claim with respect to any Intellectual
Property owned by Powhatan Point or any Powhatan Point Subsidiary. Since January 1, 2015, no third party has, to
the knowledge of Powhatan Point, gained unauthorized access to any information technology networks controlled by
and material to the operation of the business of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries. For purposes of this Agreement,
“Intellectual Property” means trademarks, service marks, trade names, Internet domain names, logos and other
indications of origin, the goodwill associated with the foregoing and registrations in any jurisdiction of, and
applications in any jurisdiction to register, the foregoing, including any extension, modification or renewal of any such
registration or application; patents, applications for patents (including divisions, continuations, continuations in part
and renewal applications), and any re-examinations, extensions or reissues thereof, in any jurisdiction; trade secrets,
and copyrights and registrations or applications for registration of copyrights in any jurisdiction, and any renewals or
extensions thereof.
3.20 Related Party Transactions.   There are no transactions or series of related transactions, agreements, arrangements
or understandings, nor are there any currently proposed transactions or series of related transactions, between
Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any current director or “executive officer” (as defined in
Rule 3b-7 under the Exchange Act) of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or any person who beneficially owns
(as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 of the Exchange Act) 5% or more of the outstanding Powhatan Point Shares (or
any of such person’s immediate family members or affiliates) (other than Subsidiaries of Powhatan Point), on the other
hand, of the type required to be reported in any Powhatan Point Report pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K
promulgated under the Exchange Act.
3.21 State Takeover Laws.   The Board of Directors of Powhatan Point has approved this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby as required to render inapplicable to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby, including the voting agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Voting Agreement”), any
applicable provisions of the takeover laws of the State of Ohio, including any “moratorium,” “control share,” “fair price,”
“takeover” or “interested shareholder” law (any such laws, “Takeover Statutes”).
3.22 Reorganization.   Powhatan Point and each of its Subsidiaries has not taken any action and is not aware of any
fact or circumstance that could reasonably be expected to prevent the Merger from qualifying as a “reorganization”
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.
3.23 Opinion.   Prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point has received an
opinion (which, if initially rendered verbally, has been or will be confirmed by a written opinion, dated the same date)
from CAMELS, to the effect that, as of the date thereof, and based upon and subject to the factors, assumptions and
limitations set forth therein, the Merger consideration (defined in such opinion as the aggregate Cash Consideration
and the aggregate Stock Consideration, taken together) is fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of
Powhatan Point Shares. Such opinion has not been amended or rescinded as of the date of this Agreement.
3.24 Powhatan Point Information.   The information relating to Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries that is provided by
Powhatan Point or its representatives specifically for inclusion in (a) the Proxy Statement/Prospectus on the date it (or
any amendment or supplement thereto) is first mailed to holders of Powhatan Point Shares or at the time of the
Powhatan Point Meeting, (b) the S-4, when it or any amendment thereto becomes effective under the Securities Act,
or (c) any other document filed with any other Regulatory Agency in connection herewith will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances in which they are made, not misleading. The portions of the Proxy Statement/Prospectus and the S-4
relating to Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries and other portions within the reasonable control of Powhatan Point and
its Subsidiaries will comply in all material respects with the provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations thereunder. No representation or warranty is made by Powhatan Point with respect to statements made or
incorporated by reference in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the S-4 based on information provided or supplied by
or on behalf of United Bancorp or its Subsidiaries for inclusion therein.
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3.25 Loan Portfolio.
(a) As of the date hereof, neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any (i) loan, loan agreement,
note or borrowing arrangement (including leases, credit enhancements, commitments, guarantees and interest-bearing
assets) (collectively, “Loans”) in which Powhatan Point or any Subsidiary of Powhatan Point is a creditor which as of
March 31, 2018 was over 90 days or more delinquent in payment of principal or interest, or (ii) Loans with any
director, executive officer or principal shareholder of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries (as such terms are
defined in 12 C.F.R. Part 215). There is no Loan which was made by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries and
which is reflected as an asset of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries that (i) has been classified by examiners
(regulatory or internal) or by management of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries as “substandard,” “doubtful,” “loss” or
“special mention,” or (ii) has been identified by accountants or auditors (regulatory or internal) as having significant risk
of uncollectibility. The reserves, the allowance for loan losses (the “ALLL”) and the carrying value for OREO of
Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries as shown as of the dates noted in the latest balance sheets in the financial
statements filed with the applicable Regulatory Agencies are adequate in all material respects under GAAP and
applicable bank regulatory requirements and guidelines to provide for possible losses as of such date on items for
which such reserves, allowances and values were established. Except as such disclosure may be limited by any
applicable law, rule or regulation, Section 3.25(a) of the Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true, correct
and complete list of all of the Loans of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries that, as of March 31, 2018, were classified
by Powhatan Point as “Other Loans Specially Mentioned,” “Special Mention,” “Substandard,” “Doubtful,” “Loss,” “Classified,”
“Criticized,” “Credit Risk Assets,” “Concerned Loans,” “Watch List” or words of similar import, together with the principal
amount of and accrued and unpaid interest on each such Loan and the aggregate principal amount of and accrued and
unpaid interest on such Loans as of such date.
(b) Each outstanding Loan of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries (i) is evidenced by notes, agreements or other
evidences of indebtedness that are true, genuine and what they purport to be, (ii) to the extent carried on the books and
records of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries as secured Loans, has been secured by valid Liens and (iii) is the legal,
valid and binding obligation of the obligor named therein, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to the
Enforceability Exceptions.
(c) Each outstanding Loan of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries (including Loans held for resale to investors) was
solicited and originated, and is and has been administered and, where applicable, serviced, and the relevant Loan files
are being maintained, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant notes or other credit or security
documents, the applicable written underwriting standards of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries (and, in the case of
Loans held for resale to investors, the applicable underwriting standards, if any, of the applicable investors) and with
all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and rules.
(d) None of the agreements pursuant to which Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries has sold Loans or pools of
Loans or participations in Loans or pools of Loans contains any obligation to repurchase such Loans or interests
therein solely on account of a payment default by the obligor on any such Loan (other than first payment defaults).
(e) There are no outstanding Loans made by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries to any “executive officer” or
other “insider” (as each such term is defined in Regulation O promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board) of Powhatan
Point or its Subsidiaries, other than Loans that are subject to and that were made and continue to be in compliance
with Regulation O or that are exempt therefrom.
(f) Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries is now, nor has it ever been since December 31, 2014, subject to
any material fine, suspension, settlement or other administrative agreement or sanction by, or any reduction in any
loan purchase commitment, any Governmental Entity or Regulatory Agency relating to the origination, sale or
servicing of mortgage or consumer Loans.
3.26 Insurance.   Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries are insured with reputable insurers against such risks and in such
amounts as the management of Powhatan Point reasonably has determined to be prudent, and neither Powhatan Point
nor any of its Subsidiaries has received notice to the effect that any of them are in default under any material insurance
policy. Each such policy is outstanding and in full force and effect
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and, except for policies insuring against potential liabilities of officers, directors and employees of Powhatan Point
and its Subsidiaries, Powhatan Point or the relevant Subsidiary thereof is the sole beneficiary of such policies. All
premiums and other payments due under any such policy have been paid, and all claims thereunder have been filed in
due and timely fashion. Section 3.26 of the Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule lists all material insurance policies of
Powhatan Point.
3.27 No Investment Adviser Subsidiary.   Neither Powhatan Point nor any Powhatan Point Subsidiary serves in a
capacity described in Section 9(a) or 9(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, nor acts as an
“investment adviser” required to register as such under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.
3.28 Books and Records.   Except for minutes and actions related to the process leading up to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereunder, which have not yet been prepared, approved, executed and/or placed in
Powhatan Point minute books, (i) the books of account, minute books, stock record books, and other financial and
corporate records of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries, all of which have been made available to United Bancorp,
are complete and correct in all material respects and have been maintained in accordance with sound business
practices and, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries; and (ii) the minute books of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries contain accurate
and complete records of all meetings held of, and corporate action taken by, the shareholders, the Powhatan Point
Board of Directors and the governing bodies of its Subsidiaries and committees of the Powhatan Point Board of
Directors and the governing bodies of its Subsidiaries, and no meeting of any such shareholders, Powhatan Point
Board of Directors and the governing bodies of its Subsidiaries, or committee has been held for which minutes have
been prepared and are not contained in such minute books.
3.29 Prohibited Payments.   Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries have not, directly or indirectly (i) made or agreed to
make any contribution, payment or gift to any government official, employee or agent where either the contribution,
payment or gift or the purpose thereof was illegal under the laws of any federal, state, local or foreign jurisdiction, (ii)
established or maintained any unrecorded fund asset for any purpose or made any false entries on the books and
records of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries for any reason, (iii) made or agreed to make any contribution, or
reimbursed any political gift or contribution made by any other person, to any candidate for federal, state, local or
foreign public office, or (iv) paid or delivered any fee, commission or other sum of money or item of property,
however characterized, to any finder, agent, government official or other party, in the United States or any other
country, which in any manner relates to the assets, business or operations of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries,
which Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries knows or has reason to believe may have been illegal under any federal,
state or local laws of the United States or any other country having jurisdiction.
3.30 Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities.   Neither Powhatan Point nor any of its Subsidiaries has any liability
(whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise) except as disclosed in the financial statements in Powhatan Point.
ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF UNITED BANCORP
Except as disclosed in the disclosure schedule delivered by United Bancorp to Powhatan Point concurrently herewith
(the “United Bancorp Disclosure Schedule”), United Bancorp hereby represents and warrants to Powhatan Point the
statements contained in this Article IV; provided, United Bancorp shall not be deemed to have breached a
representation or warranty as a consequence of the existence of any fact, event or circumstance unless such fact,
circumstance or event, individually or taken together with all other facts, events or circumstances inconsistent with
any representation or warranty contained in this Article IV, has had or is reasonably likely to have, a Material Adverse
Effect (disregarding for purposes of this proviso any materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualification contained in
any representation or warranty); provided, further, that the mere inclusion of an item in the United Bancorp Disclosure
Schedule as an exception to a representation or warranty will not be deemed an admission by United Bancorp that
such item represents a material exception or fact, event or circumstance or that such item has had or is reasonably
likely to result in a Material Adverse Effect; provided, further, that any disclosures made with respect to a section of
this Article IV shall be deemed to qualify (a) any other section of this Article IV
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specifically referenced or cross-referenced and (b) any other sections of this Article IV to the extent it is reasonably
apparent from a reading of the disclosure that such disclosure applies to such other sections (notwithstanding the
absence of a specific cross-reference).
4.1 Corporate Organization.
(a) United Bancorp is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State
of Ohio and a bank holding company duly registered under the BHC Act. United Bancorp has the corporate power and
authority to own or lease all of its properties and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted in all
material respects. United Bancorp is duly licensed or qualified to do business in each jurisdiction in which the nature
of the business conducted by it or the character or location of the properties and assets owned or leased by it makes
such licensing or qualification necessary. True and complete copies of the United Bancorp Articles and United
Bancorp Code of Regulations, as in effect as of the date of this Agreement, have previously been made available to
Powhatan Point.
(b) Each Subsidiary of United Bancorp (a “United Bancorp Subsidiary”) (i) is duly organized and validly existing under
the laws of its jurisdiction of organization, (ii) is duly qualified to do business and, where such concept is recognized
under applicable law, in good standing in all jurisdictions (whether federal, state, local or foreign) where its ownership
or leasing of property or the conduct of its business requires it to be so qualified and (iii) has all requisite corporate
power and authority to own or lease its properties and assets and to carry on its business as now conducted. There are
no restrictions on the ability of any Subsidiary of United Bancorp to pay dividends or distributions, except, in the case
of a Subsidiary that is a regulated entity, for restrictions on dividends or distributions generally applicable to all such
regulated entities. The deposit accounts of each Subsidiary of United Bancorp that is an insured depository institution
are insured by the FDIC through the Deposit Insurance Fund to the fullest extent permitted by law, all premiums and
assessments required to be paid in connection therewith have been paid when due, and no proceedings for the
termination of such insurance are pending or, to the knowledge of United Bancorp, threatened. Section 4.1(b) of the
United Bancorp Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all Subsidiaries of United Bancorp as of the
date hereof.
4.2 Capitalization.
(a) The authorized capital stock of United Bancorp consists of 10,000,000 United Bancorp Shares and 2,000,000
shares of preferred stock, no par value per share. As of the date of this Agreement, no shares of capital stock or other
voting securities of United Bancorp are issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding, other than 5,560,304 United
Bancorp Shares issued and outstanding, 5,744 United Bancorp Shares held in treasury, 300,000 United Bancorp
Shares reserved for issuance upon the settlement of outstanding restricted stock awards granted under the United
Bancorp 2008 Stock Incentive Plan and the United Bancorp 2018 Stock Incentive Plan (collectively, the “United
Bancorp Restricted Stock Awards”), 168,928 United Bancorp Shares reserved for issuance upon the vesting and
settlement of outstanding deferred stock accounts under the United Bancorp Deferred Compensation Plan (the “United
Bancorp Deferred Stock Accounts”), 407,268 United Bancorp Shares reserved for issuance upon the vesting and
settlement of United Bancorp contributions under the United Bancorp Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the
“United Bancorp ESOP Contributions”) and 500,000 additional United Bancorp Shares reserved for issuance upon the
issuance of all future awards under the United Bancorp Stock Plans. As used herein, the “United Bancorp Stock Plans”
shall mean all employee and director equity incentive plans of United Bancorp in effect as of the date of this
Agreement and agreements for equity awards in respect of United Bancorp Shares granted by United Bancorp under
the inducement grant exception, and shall include: (i) the United Bancorp 2008 Stock Incentive Plan; (ii) the United
Bancorp 2018 Stock Incentive Plan; (iii) the United Bancorp Deferred Compensation Plan; and (iv) the United
Bancorp Employee Stock Ownership Plan. All of the issued and outstanding United Bancorp Shares have been duly
authorized and validly issued and are fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights, with no personal liability
attaching to the ownership thereof. No bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness that have the right to vote on
any matters on which shareholders of United Bancorp may vote are issued or outstanding. As of the date of this
Agreement, the United Bancorp Statutory Trust I, a Delaware statutory trust and affiliate of United Bancorp, has 4,000
Trust Preferred Securities issued and outstanding, each having a liquidation value of
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$1,000.00, which securities were issued pursuant to the terms of an Amended Restated Trust Agreement dated
November 17, 2005. As of the date of this Agreement, no other trust preferred or subordinated debt securities of
United Bancorp are issued or outstanding. Other than United Bancorp Restricted Stock Awards, United Bancorp
ESOP Contributions and United Bancorp Deferred Stock Accounts, in each case, awarded or issued prior to the date
of this Agreement, as of the date of this Agreement, there are no outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, puts,
calls, rights, exchangeable or convertible securities or other commitments or agreements obligating United Bancorp to
issue, transfer, sell, purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any such securities.
(b) There are no voting trusts, shareholder agreements, proxies or other agreements in effect pursuant to which United
Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries has a contractual or other obligation to the voting or transfer of the United Bancorp
Shares or other equity interests of United Bancorp.
(c) United Bancorp owns, directly or indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity
ownership interests of each United Bancorp Subsidiary, free and clear of any Liens, and all of such shares or equity
ownership interests are duly authorized and validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable (except, with respect to
United Bancorp Subsidiaries that are insured depository institutions, as provided under 12 U.S.C. §55 or any
comparable provision of applicable state law) and free of preemptive rights, with no personal liability attaching to the
ownership thereof. No United Bancorp Subsidiary has or is bound by any outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants,
calls, rights, commitments or agreements of any character calling for the purchase or issuance of any shares of capital
stock or any other equity security of such Subsidiary or any securities representing the right to purchase or otherwise
receive any shares of capital stock or any other equity security of such Subsidiary.
4.3 Authority; No Violation.
(a) United Bancorp has full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the
Merger has been duly and validly approved by the Board of Directors of United Bancorp. The Board of Directors of
United Bancorp has approved the Merger and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and has adopted a
resolution to the foregoing effect. Except for the adoption of resolutions to give effect to the provisions of Section
6.10 in connection with the Closing, no other corporate proceedings on the part of United Bancorp are necessary to
approve this Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been duly and
validly executed and delivered by United Bancorp and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by
Powhatan Point) constitutes a valid and binding obligation of United Bancorp, enforceable against it in accordance
with its terms (except in all cases as such enforceability may be limited by the Enforceability Exceptions). The United
Bancorp Shares to be issued in the Merger have been validly authorized and, when issued, will be validly issued, fully
paid and non-assessable, and no current or past shareholder of United Bancorp will have any preemptive right or
similar rights in respect thereof.
(b) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by United Bancorp, nor the consummation by United
Bancorp of the transactions contemplated hereby, nor compliance by United Bancorp with any of the terms or
provisions hereof, will (i) violate any provision of the United Bancorp Articles or the United Bancorp Code of
Regulations or (ii) assuming that the consents, approvals and filings referred to in Section 4.4 are duly obtained and/or
made, (x) violate any law, statute, code, ordinance, rule, regulation, judgment, order, writ, decree or injunction
applicable to United Bancorp, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective properties or assets or (y) violate,
conflict with, result in a breach of any provision of or the loss of any benefit under, constitute a default (or an event
which, with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a default) under, result in the termination of or a right of
termination or cancellation under, accelerate the performance required by, or result in the creation of any Lien upon
any of the respective properties or assets of United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries under, any of the terms,
conditions or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, license, lease, agreement or other
instrument or obligation to which United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or by which they or any of their
respective properties or assets may be bound.
4.4 Consents and Approvals.   Except for (i) the filing of applications, filings, and notices, as applicable, with the
NASDAQ, (ii) the filing of applications, filings, waivers and/or notices, as applicable, with the Federal Reserve Board
under the BHC Act and approval of such applications, filings, waivers and notices,
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(iii) the filing of applications, filings, waivers and/or notices, as applicable, with the FDIC, ODFI and the OCC in
connection with the Bank Merger, including under the Bank Merger Act, and approval of such applications, filings,
waivers and/or notices, (iv) the filing with the SEC of the S-4, which also will include the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus, and declaration of effectiveness of the S-4, (vi) the filing of the Certificate of Merger with the
Ohio Secretary pursuant to the OGCL, and the filing by the ODFI of the Bank Merger Certificate, (vii) the filing of
any notices or other filings under the HSR Act, if necessary or advisable, and (viii) such filings and approvals as are
required to be made or obtained under the securities or “Blue Sky” laws of various states in connection with the issuance
of the United Bancorp Shares pursuant to this Agreement, no consents or approvals of or filings or registrations with
any Governmental Entity are necessary in connection with (A) the execution and delivery by United Bancorp of this
Agreement or (B) the consummation by United Bancorp of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby
(including the Bank Merger). As of the date hereof, United Bancorp is not aware of any reason why the necessary
regulatory approvals and consents will not be received in order to permit consummation of the Merger and Bank
Merger on a timely basis.
4.5 SEC Filings.   United Bancorp has timely filed all reports and proxy materials required to be filed by it with the
SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act. All such filings, at the time of filing, complied in all material respects with all
legal requirements relating thereto under the applicable rules of the SEC. None of such documents, when filed,
contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.
4.6 Financial Statements.
(a) The financial statements of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries included (or incorporated by reference) in each
final registration statement, prospectus, report, schedule and definitive proxy statement filed with or furnished to the
SEC by United Bancorp pursuant to the Securities Act or Exchange Act since January 1, 2015 (including the related
notes, where applicable) (the “United Bancorp Reports”): (i) have been prepared from, and are in accordance with, the
books and records of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries, (ii) fairly present in all material respects the consolidated
results of operations, cash flows, changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated financial position of United
Bancorp and its Subsidiaries for the respective fiscal periods or as of the respective dates therein set forth (subject in
the case of unaudited statements to year-end audit adjustments normal in nature and amount), (iii) complied, as of
their respective dates of filing with the SEC, in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and with
the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto, and (iv) have been prepared in accordance with
GAAP consistently applied during the periods involved, except, in each case, as indicated in such statements or in the
notes thereto. The books and records of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries have been, since January 1, 2015, and are
being, maintained in all material respects in accordance with GAAP and any other applicable legal and accounting
requirements. Since January 1, 2014, no accounting firm engaged by United Bancorp or any Subsidiary has resigned
(or informed United Bancorp that it intends to resign) or been dismissed as a result of or in connection with any
disagreements with United Bancorp on a matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or
auditing scope or procedure.
(b) Neither United Bancorp nor any of its Subsidiaries has incurred any material liability or obligation of any nature
whatsoever (whether absolute, accrued, contingent or otherwise and whether due or to become due) required by
GAAP to be included in the consolidated balance sheet of United Bancorp, except for (i) those liabilities that are
reflected or reserved against on the consolidated balance sheet of United Bancorp included in its Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 (including any notes thereto), (ii) liabilities incurred in the
ordinary course of business consistent in nature and amount with past practice since December 31, 2017 or (iii) in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.
(c) Since March 31, 2018, (i) United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries have conducted their respective businesses in the
ordinary course consistent with past practice, and (ii) no event has occurred or circumstance arisen that, individually
or taken together with all other facts, circumstances and events is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect
with respect to United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries.
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(d) United Bancorp and each of its Subsidiaries maintains a system of  “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) reasonably designed and maintained to ensure
that all information (both financial and non-financial) required to be disclosed by United Bancorp in the reports that it
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms of the SEC, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to United
Bancorp’s management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and to make the
certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of United Bancorp required under the
Exchange Act with respect to such reports. United Bancorp has disclosed, based on its most recent evaluation prior to
the date of this Agreement, to United Bancorp’s outside auditors and the audit committee of the United Bancorp Board
of Directors (i) any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls
over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that would be reasonably likely to
adversely affect United Bancorp’s ability to accurately record, process, summarize and report financial information,
and (ii) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in United Bancorp’s internal controls over financial reporting. Since January 1, 2015, (i) neither United Bancorp nor
any of its Subsidiaries, nor, to the knowledge of United Bancorp, any director, officer, auditor, accountant or
representative of United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries, has received or otherwise had or obtained knowledge of
any material complaint, allegation, assertion or claim, whether written or, to the knowledge of United Bancorp, oral,
regarding the accounting or auditing practices, procedures, methodologies or methods (including with respect to loan
loss reserves, write-downs, charge-offs and accruals) of United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective
internal accounting controls, including any material complaint, allegation, assertion or written claim that United
Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries has engaged in questionable accounting or auditing practices.
4.7 Broker’s Fees.   Neither United Bancorp nor any United Bancorp Subsidiary nor any of their respective officers or
directors has employed any broker, finder or financial advisor or incurred any liability for any broker’s fees,
commissions or finder’s fees in connection with the Merger or related transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
other than ProBank Austin, LLC and Investment Bank Services, Inc.
4.8 Absence of Certain Changes or Events.
(a) Since December 31, 2017, no event or events have occurred that have had or would reasonably be likely to have,
either individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on United Bancorp.
(b) Since December 31, 2017, except with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby or as required or permitted
by this Agreement, United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries have carried on their respective businesses in all material
respects in the ordinary course consistent with past practice.
4.9 Legal Proceedings.
(a) Neither United Bancorp nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any legal, administrative, arbitral or other
proceedings, claims, actions or governmental or regulatory investigations of any nature against United Bancorp or any
of its Subsidiaries (i) that would reasonably be expected to be material to United Bancorp, or (ii) of a material nature
challenging the validity or propriety of this Agreement.
(b) There is no injunction, order, judgment, decree, or regulatory restriction imposed upon United Bancorp, any of its
Subsidiaries or the assets of United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries (or that, upon consummation of the Merger,
would apply to United Bancorp or any of its affiliates) that would reasonably be expected to be material to either
United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.
4.10 Taxes and Tax Returns.   Each of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries has duly and timely filed (taking into
account all applicable extensions) all material Tax Returns in all jurisdictions in which Tax Returns are required to be
filed by it, and all such Tax Returns are true, correct, and complete in all material respects. All material Taxes of
United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries that are due have been fully and timely paid. Each of United Bancorp and its
Subsidiaries have withheld and paid, or will timely pay, all material Taxes required to have been withheld and paid to
the appropriate taxing authorities as required by law to be withheld and paid. No deficiency with respect to any
amount of Taxes has been proposed, asserted or assessed against United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries. The
accruals and reserves for Taxes reflected in
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such financial statements are, in the reasonable belief of United Bancorp’s management, adequate for the periods
covered. There are no pending or threatened (in writing) disputes, claims, audits, examinations or other proceedings
regarding any Taxes of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries.
4.11 Compliance with Applicable Law.   United Bancorp and each of its Subsidiaries hold, and have at all times since
December 31, 2014 held, all licenses, franchises, permits and authorizations necessary for the lawful conduct of their
respective businesses and ownership of their respective properties, rights and assets under and pursuant to each (and
have paid all fees and assessments due and payable in connection therewith), and, to the knowledge of United
Bancorp, no suspension or cancellation of any such necessary license, franchise, permit or authorization is threatened
(in writing). United Bancorp and each of its Subsidiaries have complied in all material respects with and are not in
material default or violation under any law, statute, order, rule or regulation of any Governmental Entity applicable to
United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries, including (to the extent applicable to United Bancorp or its Subsidiaries) all
laws related to data protection or privacy, the USA PATRIOT Act, the Bank Secrecy Act, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act and Regulation B, the Fair Housing Act, the Community Reinvestment Act, the Fair Credit Reporting
Act and Regulation V, the Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act and
Regulation C, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Electronic Fund Transfer Act and Regulation E, the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Financial Protection Act, any regulations promulgated by the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the Interagency Policy Statement on Retail
Sales of Nondeposit Investment Products, the SAFE Mortgage Licensing Act of 2008, the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act and Regulation X, and any other law or regulation relating to bank secrecy, discriminatory lending,
financing or leasing practices, consumer protection, money laundering prevention, foreign assets control, Sections
23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation W, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and all agency requirements
relating to the origination, sale and servicing of mortgage and consumer loans. Unified Bank has a Community
Reinvestment Act rating of “satisfactory” or better. United Bancorp and each of its affiliates and subsidiaries have
complied in all material respects with and are not in material default or violation under the Volcker Rule.
4.12 Certain Contracts.
(a) Each contract, arrangement, commitment or understanding (whether written or oral) which is a “material contract”
(as such term is defined in Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K of the SEC) to which United Bancorp or any of its
Subsidiaries is a party or by which United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries is bound as of the date hereof has been
filed as an exhibit to the most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by United Bancorp, or a Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q or Current Report on Form 8-K subsequent thereto (each, a “United Bancorp Contract”), and neither United
Bancorp nor any of its Subsidiaries knows of, or has received notice of, any violation of any United Bancorp Contract
by any of the other parties thereto.
(b) (i) Each United Bancorp Contract is valid and binding on United Bancorp or one of its Subsidiaries, as applicable,
and in full force and effect, (ii) United Bancorp and each of its Subsidiaries have performed all obligations required to
be performed by it prior to the date hereof under each United Bancorp Contract, (iii) to the knowledge of United
Bancorp, each third-party counterparty to each United Bancorp Contract has performed all obligations required to be
performed by it to date under such United Bancorp Contract, and (iv) no event or condition exists which constitutes
or, after notice or lapse of time or both, will constitute, a default on the part of United Bancorp or any of its
Subsidiaries under any such United Bancorp Contract.
4.13 Agreements with Regulatory Agencies.   Neither United Bancorp nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any
cease-and-desist or other order or enforcement action issued by, or is a party to any written agreement, consent
agreement or memorandum of understanding with, or is a party to any commitment letter or similar undertaking to, or
is subject to any order or directive by, or has been ordered to pay any civil money penalty by, a recipient of any
supervisory letter from, has adopted any policies, procedures or board resolutions at the request or suggestion of any
Regulatory Agency or other Governmental Entity that currently restricts in any material respect the conduct of its
business or that in any material manner relates to its capital adequacy, its ability to pay dividends, its credit or risk
management policies, its management or its business (each, whether or not set forth in the United Bancorp Disclosure
Schedule, a “United Bancorp
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Regulatory Agreement”); provided, however, that United Bancorp Regulatory Agreement shall not be deemed to
include any of the foregoing that is subject to confidentiality restrictions of any Regulatory Agency prohibiting its
disclosure to third parties under applicable law, rule or regulation. Neither United Bancorp nor any of its Subsidiaries
is aware of any Regulatory Agency or other Governmental Entity that it is considering issuing, initiating, ordering or
requesting any such United Bancorp Regulatory Agreement.
4.14 Information Technology.   Since January 1, 2015, no third party has, to the knowledge of United Bancorp, gained
unauthorized access to any information technology networks controlled by and material to the operation of the
business of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries.
4.15 Related Party Transactions.   There are no transactions or series of related transactions, agreements, arrangements
or understandings, nor are there any currently proposed transactions or series of related transactions, between United
Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any current director or “executive officer” (as defined in Rule
3b-7 under the Exchange Act) of United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries or any person who beneficially owns (as
defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 of the Exchange Act) 5% or more of the outstanding United Bancorp Shares (or any
of such person’s immediate family members or affiliates) (other than Subsidiaries of United Bancorp), on the other
hand, of the type required to be reported in any United Bancorp Report pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K
promulgated under the Exchange Act.
4.16 State Takeover Laws.   The Board of Directors of United Bancorp has approved this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby as required to render inapplicable to such agreements and transactions any
applicable Takeover Statutes.
4.17 Reorganization.   United Bancorp and each of its Subsidiaries has not taken any action and is not aware of any
fact or circumstance that could reasonably be expected to prevent the Merger from qualifying as a “reorganization”
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.
4.18 United Bancorp Information.   The information relating to United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries that is provided
by United Bancorp or its representatives specifically for inclusion in (a) the Proxy Statement/Prospectus, on the date it
(or any amendment or supplement thereto) is first mailed to holders of Powhatan Point Shares or at the time of the
Powhatan Point Meeting, (b) the S-4, when it or any amendment thereto becomes effective under the Securities Act,
(c) the documents and financial statements of United Bancorp incorporated by reference in the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus, the S-4 or any amendment or supplement thereto, (d) any filing pursuant to Rule 165 or Rule
425 under the Securities Act or Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act, or (e) any other document filed with any other
Regulatory Agency in connection herewith, will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances in which they are made, not
misleading. The portions of the Proxy Statement/Prospectus relating to United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries and other
portions within the reasonable control of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries will comply in all material respects with
the provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no
representation or warranty is made by United Bancorp with respect to statements made or incorporated by reference
therein based on information provided or supplied by or on behalf of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries for inclusion
in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus or the S-4.
4.19 Loans; Certain Transactions.   As of the date hereof, all loans owned by Unified Bank, or in which Unified Bank
has an interest, have been made or acquired in accordance with currently effective policies and procedures approved
by the Board of Directors of Unified Bank and, to the knowledge of Unified Bank, comply in all material respects
with all laws, rules, and regulations, including, but not limited to, applicable usury statutes, underwriting and
recordkeeping requirements, the Truth in Lending Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act, and other applicable consumer protection statutes and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
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4.20 Allowance for Loan Losses.   The reverses and allowance for loan losses reflected on the financial statements of
United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries included (or incorporated by reference) in United Bancorp Reports (including the
related notes, where applicable) was, as of each respective date, determined in accordance with GAAP and in
accordance with all rules and regulations applicable to United Bank and its Subsidiaries and was, as of the respective
date thereof, adequate in all material respects under the requirements of GAAP and applicable bank regulatory
requirements and guidelines to provide for possible losses as of such dates on items for which such reserves and
allowances were established. To the knowledge of Unified Bank, neither United Bancorp nor its Subsidiaries has been
notified by the FDIC, ODFI or United Bancorp’s independent auditor, in writing or otherwise, that such reserves are
inadequate or that the practices and policies of Unified Bank in establishing its reserves for the periods reflected in
such financial statements, and in accounting for delinquent and classified assets, generally fail to comply with
applicable accounting or regulatory requirements, or that the FDIC, ODFI or United Bancorp’s independent auditor
believes such reserves to be inadequate or inconsistent with the historical loss experience of Unified Bank.
4.21 Financing.   United Bancorp has, or will have available to it prior to the Closing Date, all funds necessary to
satisfy its obligations hereunder, whether internally sourced or secured through a financing arrangement with an
unaffiliated third party, and United Bancorp acknowledges that United Bancorp’s obligations under this Agreement are
not subject to any financing contingency.
4.22 United Bancorp Shares Matters.   There are a sufficient number of authorized but unissued United Bancorp
Shares to satisfy United Bancorp’s obligation to issue United Bancorp Shares under this Agreement. The United
Bancorp Shares to be issued in the Merger have been duly authorized and, when issued in the Merger, will be (i)
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, (ii) registered under the Securities Act pursuant to the S-4, and (iii) listed
for trading on the NASDAQ.
4.23 Books and Records. Except for minutes and actions related to the process leading up to this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereunder, which have not yet been prepared, approved, executed and/or placed in United
Bancorp minute books, (i) the books of account, minute books, stock record books, and other financial and corporate
records of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries, which have been made available to Powhatan Point, are complete and
correct in all material respects and have been maintained in accordance with sound business practices and, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of United Bancorp and its
Subsidiaries; and (ii) the minute books of United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries contain accurate and complete records
of all meetings held of, and corporate action taken by, the shareholders, the United Bancorp Board of Directors and
the governing bodies of its Subsidiaries, and committees of the United Bancorp Board of Directors and the governing
bodies of its Subsidiaries, and no meeting of any such shareholders, United Bancorp Board of Directors and the
governing bodies of its Subsidiaries, or committee has been held for which minutes have been prepared and are not
contained in such minute books.
ARTICLE V
COVENANTS RELATING TO CONDUCT OF BUSINESS
5.1 Conduct of Business Prior to the Effective Time.   During the period from the date of this Agreement to the
Effective Time or earlier termination of this Agreement, except as expressly contemplated or permitted by this
Agreement, required by law, regulation or order of a Governmental Entity or as consented to in writing by the other
party hereto, (a) each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall, and shall cause its respective Subsidiaries to, (i)
conduct its business in the ordinary course in all material respects and (ii) use reasonable best efforts to maintain and
preserve intact its business organization and advantageous business relationships, and (b) each of United Bancorp and
Powhatan Point shall and shall cause its respective Subsidiaries to take no action that is intended to or would
reasonably be likely to adversely affect or delay the ability to obtain any necessary approvals of any Regulatory
Agency or other Governmental Entity required for the transactions contemplated hereby or by the Bank Merger
Agreement or the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote or to perform its respective covenants and agreements under this
Agreement or the Bank Merger Agreement or to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby on a
timely basis.
5.2 Powhatan Point Forbearances.   During the period from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time or earlier
termination of this Agreement, except as expressly contemplated or permitted by this Agreement, or as required by
law, regulation or order of a Governmental Entity, Powhatan Point shall not,
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and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, without the prior written consent of United Bancorp (such consent not
to be unreasonably withheld or delayed):
(a) in each case, other than in the ordinary course of business, incur any indebtedness for borrowed money, assume,
guarantee, endorse or otherwise as an accommodation become responsible for the obligations of any other person
(other than any Subsidiary of Powhatan Point);
(b)
(i) adjust, split, combine or reclassify any capital stock;
(ii) except for the payment of  (A) its regular semi-annual cash dividend of not more than $1.50 per share payable
consistent with past practice for the half-year period prior to the half-year in which the Effective Date shall occur and
(B) a special cash dividend in an amount not to exceed $1.50 per share during the half-year in which the Effective
Date occurs, (the parties agree to coordinate their respective dividend declaration dates and amounts for the half-year
in which the Merger shall occur such that the shareholders of Powhatan Point will receive a dividend from Powhatan
Point, prorated accordingly with respect to the applicable quarter-end, or United Bancorp, but not from both), make,
declare or pay any dividend, or make any other distribution on, or directly or indirectly redeem, purchase or otherwise
acquire, any shares of its capital stock or any securities or obligations convertible (whether currently convertible or
convertible only after the passage of time or the occurrence of certain events) into or exchangeable for any shares of
its capital stock (except dividends paid by any of the Subsidiaries of Powhatan Point to Powhatan Point or any of its
wholly owned Subsidiaries);
(iii) grant any stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance shares, restricted stock units, restricted shares or
other equity-based awards or interests, or grant any individual, corporation or other entity any right to acquire any
shares of its capital stock; or
(iv) issue, sell or otherwise permit to become outstanding any additional shares of capital stock or securities
convertible or exchangeable into, or exercisable for, any shares of its capital stock or any options, warrants, or other
rights of any kind to acquire any shares of capital stock;
(c) sell, transfer, mortgage, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of its material properties or assets to any individual,
corporation or other entity other than a wholly owned Subsidiary, or cancel, release or assign any material
indebtedness to any such person or any claims held by any person, in each case other than in the ordinary course of
business;
(d) except for transactions in the ordinary course of business (including by way of foreclosure or acquisitions of
control in a fiduciary or similar capacity or in satisfaction of debts previously contracted in good faith), make any
investment that would be material to Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis either by purchase of
stock or securities, contributions to capital, property transfers, or purchase of any property or assets of any other
individual, corporation or other entity, other than in a wholly owned Subsidiary of Powhatan Point;
(e) (i) terminate any Powhatan Point Contract or amend, modify, renew or waive in any material way any Powhatan
Point Contract, other than normal renewals in the ordinary course of business, (ii) make any change in any instrument
or agreement governing the terms of any of its securities, or (iii) enter into any new contract, except in the ordinary
course of business, that would constitute a Powhatan Point Contract if it were in effect on the date of this Agreement;
(f) except as provided in Section 6.6(f), as otherwise noted, or as required under the terms of any Powhatan Point
Benefit Plan existing as of the date hereof, (i) enter into, adopt or terminate any Powhatan Point Benefit Plan
(including any plans, programs, policies, agreements or arrangements that would be considered a Powhatan Point
Benefit Plan if in effect as of the date hereof), (ii) amend (whether in writing or through the interpretation of) any
Powhatan Point Benefit Plan (including any plans, programs, policies, agreements or arrangements adopted or entered
into that would be considered a Powhatan Point Benefit Plan if in effect as of the date hereof), other than amendments
in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice that do not materially increase the cost or expense of
maintaining such plan, program, policy or arrangements, (iii) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent
with past practice increase the compensation payable to any current or former employee, officer, director, independent
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contractor or consultant, (iv) other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice pay or award,
or commit to pay or award, any bonuses or incentive compensation (so long as the total amount of bonuses and
incentive compensation paid by Powhatan Point and all of its Subsidiaries for 2018 (the “2018 Powhatan Point Bonus
Payments”) does not exceed the amount of bonuses and incentive compensation paid by Powhatan Point and its
Subsidiaries for 2017), (v) accelerate the vesting of any equity-based awards or other compensation, (vi) enter into any
collective bargaining agreement or similar agreement or arrangement, (vii) fund any rabbi trust or similar
arrangement, or (viii) hire any officer, employee, independent contractor or consultant, other than as replacements for
positions existing on the date of this Agreement;
(g) except for debt workouts in the ordinary course of business, settle any material claim, suit, action or proceeding in
an amount and for consideration in excess of  $25,000 individually or $50,000 in the aggregate (net of any insurance
proceeds or indemnity, contribution or similar payments received by Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries in
respect thereof) or that would impose any material restriction on the business of it or its Subsidiaries or United
Bancorp;
(h) amend the Powhatan Point Articles, the Powhatan Point Code of Regulations, or comparable governing documents
of its Subsidiaries;
(i) merge or consolidate itself or any of its Subsidiaries with any other person, or restructure, reorganize or completely
or partially liquidate or dissolve it or any of its Subsidiaries;
(j) materially restructure or materially change its investment securities or derivatives portfolio or its interest rate
exposure, through purchases, sales or otherwise, or the manner in which the portfolio is classified or reported, except
as may be required by GAAP or by applicable laws, regulations, guidelines or policies imposed by any Governmental
Entity or requested by a Governmental Entity;
(k) implement or adopt any change in its accounting principles, practices or methods, other than as may be required by
GAAP, by applicable laws, regulations, guidelines or policies imposed by any Governmental Entity, or requested by
United Bancorp;
(l) enter into any material new line of business or change in any material respect its lending, investment, underwriting,
risk and asset liability management and other banking and operating, hedging policies, securitization and servicing
policies (including any change in the maximum ratio or similar limits as a percentage of its capital exposure
applicable with respect to its loan portfolio or any segment thereof), except as required by such policies or applicable
law, regulation or policies imposed by any Governmental Entity;
(m) (i) make or purchase any indirect or brokered loans, or (ii) purchase from or sell to any financial institution or
other non-depository lender an interest in a loan, other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past
practice and in any case with dollar amounts in excess of the amounts for originations set forth in subsection (p) of
this Section 5.2; provided, however, that United Bancorp will not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent
regarding an exception to this subsection (m);
(n) take any action that would change Powhatan Point’s ALLL in a manner that is not in compliance with Powhatan
Point’s policy on the date of this Agreement and past practices consistently applied and in material compliance with
GAAP, and in no event permit Powhatan Point’s ALLL to fall below $177,000;
(o) make any capital expenditure or capital addition or improvement or purchase other assets outside of the ordinary
course of business which individually exceeds $15,000 or in the aggregate exceed $30,000;
(p) (i) establish any new lending programs or make any changes in the policies of any Powhatan Point Subsidiary
concerning which persons may approve loans, (ii) price or reprice any loans inconsistent with Powhatan Point current
pricing methodology, or (iii) originate or issue any: (A) loans except in accordance with existing lending policies, and
lending limits and authorities; or (B) (1) unsecured consumer loans in excess of  $5,000; (2) individual commercial
loans in excess of  $80,000; or (3) construction, acquisition or development loans, residential permanent loans, loans
secured by special purpose property, or SBA loans, to any one borrower in excess of  $50,000 in the aggregate;
provided, however, that United Bancorp will not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent regarding an exception to
this subsection (p) and will respond to Powhatan Point’s requests within three (3) business days after receipt thereof;
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(q) (i) make, change or revoke any Tax election, (ii) change an annual Tax accounting period, (iii) adopt or change
any Tax accounting method, (iv) file any amended Tax Return, (v) enter into any closing agreement with respect to
Taxes, (vi) settle any material Tax claim, audit, assessment or dispute or surrender any right to claim a refund of
Taxes, (vii) fail to prepare or file or cause to be prepared or filed in a timely manner consistent with past practice all
Tax Returns that are required to be filed (with extensions) at or before the Effective Time, (viii) fail to pay any Tax
due (required to be shown on any such Tax Returns), (ix) consent to the extension or waiver of any statute of
limitations with respect to Taxes, or (x) offer or agree to do any of the foregoing or surrender its rights to do any of the
foregoing or to claim any refund of Taxes or to file any amended Tax Return;
(r) (i) make application for the opening or relocation of, or open or relocate, any branch office, loan production office
or other significant office or operations facility of it or its Subsidiaries, (ii) other than in consultation with United
Bancorp, make application for the closing of or close any branch or (iii) purchase any new real property (other than
other real estate owned (OREO) properties in the ordinary course) or enter into, amend or renew any material lease
with respect to real property;
(s) foreclose upon or otherwise take title to or possession or control of any real property without first obtaining a
Phase I Environmental Report in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E1527-13 “Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Practice” (a “Phase I”) thereon that indicates
that the property does not contain any “Recognized Environmental Conditions” (as defined in the ASTM-E1527-13
standard for Phase I assessments) regarding pollutants, contaminants or hazardous or toxic waste materials including
asbestos and petroleum products; provided, however, that no such report shall be required to be obtained with respect
to single-family residential real property of one acre or less to be foreclosed upon unless Powhatan Point or First
National, upon reasonable investigation, determines that such real property may pose an unreasonable risk for
acquisition due to the potential for liability related to Environmental Laws;
(t) incur any financial obligation to any financial advisor, valuation expert or similar consultant if Powhatan Point or
any Subsidiary will be liable for the fees payable to any such consultant; provided, however, that nothing contained in
this Agreement shall prevent the retention by Powhatan Point or any Subsidiary of any such advisor or consultant
which is currently engaged thereby so long as any fees or expenses associated therewith are paid on or before the
Closing Date and are included in the Powhatan Point Transaction-Related Expenses; or
(u) agree to take, make any commitment to take, or adopt any resolutions of its Board of Directors or similar
governing body in support of, any of the actions prohibited by this Section 5.2.
5.3 United Bancorp Forbearances.   During the period from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time or earlier
termination of this Agreement, except as expressly contemplated or permitted by this Agreement, or as required by
law, regulation or order of a Governmental Entity, United Bancorp shall not, and shall not permit any of its
Subsidiaries to, without the prior written consent of Powhatan Point (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or
delayed):
(a) amend the United Bancorp Articles or the United Bancorp Code of Regulations in a manner that would adversely
affect the former holders of Powhatan Point Shares following the consummation of the Merger, or adversely affect the
former holders of Powhatan Point Shares relative to other holders of United Bancorp Shares following the
consummation of the Merger;
(b) adjust, split, combine or reclassify any capital stock of United Bancorp;
(c) merge or consolidate itself or any of its Subsidiaries with any other person (i) where it or its Subsidiary, as
applicable, is not the surviving person or (ii) if the merger or consolidation is reasonably likely to cause the Closing to
be materially delayed or the receipt of the Requisite Regulatory Approvals to be prevented or materially delayed; or
(d) agree to take, make any commitment to take, or adopt any resolutions of its Board of Directors or similar
governing body in support of, any of the actions prohibited by this Section 5.3.
5.4 Tax Treatment.   Each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point agrees not to take any action or knowingly fail to
take any action where such action or failure to act could reasonably be expected to prevent or impede the Merger from
qualifying as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the
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Code, and each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point agrees to take such action as may be reasonably required, if
such action may be reasonably taken, to reverse the impact of past actions which would adversely impact the ability of
the Merger to be characterized as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code. Officers of United
Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall execute and deliver to Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP, as tax counsel to United
Bancorp, tax representation letters (the “Tax Representation Letters”) substantially in such form as agreed to by the
parties at such time as may be reasonably requested by Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP in connection with its
delivery of opinion pursuant to Sections 7.1(f) of this Agreement.
ARTICLE VI
ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS
6.1 Regulatory Matters.
(a) The parties hereto shall cooperate with each other and use their reasonable best efforts to promptly allow United
Bancorp to prepare and file with the SEC the S-4 which also includes the Proxy Statement/​Prospectus. United
Bancorp shall use its reasonable best efforts to have the S-4 declared effective under the Securities Act as promptly as
practicable after such filing and to keep the S-4 effective for so long as necessary to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, and Powhatan Point shall thereafter mail or deliver the Proxy Statement/Prospectus
to its shareholders. United Bancorp shall also obtain all necessary state securities law or “Blue Sky” permits and
approvals required to carry out the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with applicable law,
and Powhatan Point shall furnish all information concerning itself and the holders of Powhatan Point Shares as may
be reasonably requested in connection with any such action. The S-4 shall be subject to the approval of Powhatan
Point prior to filing with the SEC.
(b) The parties hereto shall cooperate with each other and use their reasonable best efforts to, within 45 days of this
Agreement, allow United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries to prepare and file all necessary documentation, to effect all
applications, notices, petitions and filings, to obtain as promptly as practicable all permits, consents, approvals and
authorizations of all third parties and Governmental Entities which are necessary or advisable to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including the Merger and the Bank Merger), and to comply with the
terms and conditions of all such permits, consents, approvals and authorizations of all such third parties and
Governmental Entities. United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall, and shall cause their respective Subsidiaries to,
each prepare and file any applications, notices, waivers and filings required in order to obtain the Requisite Regulatory
Approvals. United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall each use, and shall each cause their applicable Subsidiaries to
use, reasonable best efforts to obtain each such Requisite Regulatory Approval and any approvals required for the
Bank Merger as promptly as reasonably practicable. The parties shall cooperate with each other in connection
therewith (including the furnishing of any information and any reasonable undertaking or commitments that may be
required to obtain the Requisite Regulatory Approvals) and shall respond as promptly as practicable to the requests of
Governmental Entities for documents and information. United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall have the right to
review in advance, and, to the extent practicable, each will consult the other on, in each case subject to applicable laws
relating to the exchange of information, all the information relating to Powhatan Point or United Bancorp, as the case
may be, and any of their respective Subsidiaries, which appears in any filing made with, or written materials submitted
to, any third party or any Governmental Entity in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In
exercising the foregoing right, each of the parties shall act reasonably and as promptly as practicable. Each party will
provide the other with copies of any applications and all correspondence relating thereto prior to filing and with
sufficient opportunity to comment, other than any portions of material filed in connection therewith that contain
competitively sensitive business or other proprietary information filed under a claim of confidentiality (except any
competitively sensitive business or other proprietary information (but not any confidential supervisory information) of
Powhatan Point that is necessary for United Bancorp to prepare and file any applications, notices, waivers and filings
required in order to obtain the Requisite Regulatory Approvals; provided, that United Bancorp shall request
confidential treatment of any such information, permit Powhatan Point to control the defense of any challenge to such
confidential treatment request and will not release any such information publicly pursuant to Freedom of Information
Act requests or similar rules without Powhatan Point s prior written consent). The parties hereto agree that they will
consult with
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each other with respect to the obtaining of all permits, consents, approvals and authorizations of all third parties and
Governmental Entities necessary or advisable to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and
each party will keep the other apprised of the status of matters relating to completion of the transactions contemplated
herein.
(c) United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall, upon request, furnish each other with all information concerning
themselves, their Subsidiaries, directors, officers and shareholders and such other matters as may be reasonably
necessary or advisable in connection with the S-4 or any other statement, filing, notice or application made by or on
behalf of United Bancorp, Powhatan Point or any of their respective Subsidiaries to any Governmental Entity in
connection with the Merger, the Bank Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Each of
United Bancorp and Powhatan Point agrees, as to itself and its Subsidiaries, that none of the information supplied or to
be supplied by it specifically for inclusion or incorporation by reference in (i) the S-4 will, at the time the S-4 and each
amendment or supplement thereto, if any, becomes effective under the Securities Act, contain any untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading, (ii) the Proxy Statement/Prospectus and any amendment or supplement thereto will, at the date
of mailing to the shareholders of Powhatan Point and at the time of the Powhatan Point Meeting, contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which such statement was made, not misleading, and (iii)
any applications, notices, waivers and filings required in order to obtain the Requisite Regulatory Approvals will, at
the time each is filed, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading. Each of United Bancorp and Powhatan
Point further agrees that if it becomes aware that any information furnished by it would cause any of the statements in
the S-4, the Proxy Statement/Prospectus, or any applications, notices, waivers and filings filed in order to obtain the
Requisite Regulatory Approvals, to be false or misleading with respect to any material fact, or to omit to state any
material fact necessary to make the statements therein not false or misleading, to promptly inform the other party
thereof and to take appropriate steps to correct the S-4, the Proxy Statement/Prospectus, or the application, notice,
waiver or filing.
(d) United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall promptly advise each other upon receiving any communication from
any Governmental Entity whose consent or approval is required for consummation of the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement that causes such party to believe that there is a reasonable likelihood that any Requisite Regulatory
Approval will not be obtained or that the receipt of any such approval will be materially delayed.
6.2 Access to Information.
(a) Upon reasonable notice and subject to applicable laws, each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point, for the
purposes of verifying the representations and warranties of the other and preparing for the Merger and the other
matters contemplated by this Agreement, shall, and shall cause each of their respective Subsidiaries to, afford to the
officers, employees, accountants, counsel, advisors and other representatives of the other party, access, during normal
business hours during the period prior to the Effective Time, to all its properties, books, contracts, personnel,
information technology systems, and records, and each shall reasonably cooperate with the other party in preparing to
execute after the Effective Time conversion or consolidation of systems and business operations generally (including
by entering into customary confidentiality, non-disclosure and similar agreements with such service providers and/or
the other party), and, during such period, during normal business hours and in a manner so as not to interfere with
normal business operations, each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall, and shall cause its respective
Subsidiaries to, make available to the other party such information concerning its business, properties and personnel
as such party may reasonably request. Each party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize any
interference with the other party’s regular business operations during any such access. Neither United Bancorp nor
Powhatan Point nor any of their respective Subsidiaries shall be required to provide access to or to disclose
information where such access or disclosure would violate or prejudice the rights of United Bancorp’s or Powhatan
Point’s, as the case may be, customers, jeopardize the attorney-client privilege of the institution in possession or
control of such information (after giving due consideration to the existence of any common interest, joint defense or
similar agreement between the
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parties) or contravene any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, decree, or fiduciary duty currently in effect or any
binding agreement entered into prior to the date of this Agreement. The parties hereto will make appropriate substitute
disclosure arrangements under circumstances in which the restrictions of the preceding sentence apply.
(b) Each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall hold all information furnished by or on behalf of the other party
or any of such party’s Subsidiaries or representatives pursuant to Section 6.2(a) in confidence to the extent required by,
and in accordance with, the provisions of each of the confidentiality agreement dated March 28, 2018 between United
Bancorp and Powhatan Point (the “Confidentiality Agreement”).
6.3 Powhatan Point Shareholder Approval.
(a) Powhatan Point shall take, in accordance with applicable law and the Powhatan Point Articles and the Powhatan
Point Code of Regulations, all actions necessary to convene a meeting of its shareholders (the “Powhatan Point
Meeting”) to be held as soon as reasonably practicable after the S-4 is declared effective for the purpose of obtaining
the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote required in connection with this Agreement and the Merger. Except in the case of
an Adverse Recommendation Change, the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point shall use its reasonable best efforts to
obtain from the shareholders of Powhatan Point the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote, including by communicating to
its shareholders its recommendation (and including such recommendation in the Proxy Statement) that they adopt and
approve this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. However, subject to Section 8.1 and Section 8.2, if
the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point, after receiving the advice of its legal counsel, determines in good faith that
it is reasonably required for the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point in order to comply with its fiduciary duties to
the shareholders of Powhatan Point to withhold or withdraw or modify its recommendation, then the Board of
Directors of Powhatan Point may withhold or withdraw or modify its recommendation to the shareholders of
Powhatan Point or may submit this Agreement for consideration by the shareholders of Powhatan Point without
recommendation (each, an “Adverse Recommendation Change”), in which event the Board of Directors of Powhatan
Point may communicate the basis for its Adverse Recommendation Change to its shareholders in the Proxy
Statement/Prospectus or an appropriate amendment or supplement thereto; provided, that the Board of Directors of
Powhatan Point may not take any actions under this sentence unless (i) it gives United Bancorp at least three (3)
business days’ prior written notice of its intention to take such action and a reasonable description of the event or
circumstances giving rise to its determination to take such action (including, in the event such action is taken by the
Board of Directors of Powhatan Point in response to an Acquisition Proposal, the latest material terms and conditions
of any such Acquisition Proposal, or any amendment or modification thereof, or describe in reasonable detail such
other event or circumstances) and (ii) at the end of such notice period, the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point takes
into account any amendment or modification to this Agreement proposed by United Bancorp and after receiving the
advice of its legal counsel, determines in good faith that it is reasonably required for the Board of Directors of
Powhatan Point in order to comply with its fiduciary duties to continue to withhold or withdraw or modify its
recommendation. Any material amendment to any Acquisition Proposal will be deemed to be a new Acquisition
Proposal for purposes of this Section 6.3 and will require a new notice period as referred to in this Section 6.3.
(b) Except in the case of an Adverse Recommendation Change, Powhatan Point shall postpone or seek the approval of
its shareholders to adjourn the Powhatan Point Meeting, if, as of the time for which such meeting is originally
scheduled, there are insufficient Powhatan Point Shares represented (either in person or by proxy) to constitute a
quorum necessary to conduct the business of such meeting, or if on the date of such meeting, Powhatan Point has not
received proxies representing a sufficient number of shares necessary to obtain the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, unless this Agreement has been terminated in accordance with its
terms, the Powhatan Point Meeting shall be convened and this Agreement shall be submitted to the shareholders of
Powhatan Point at the Powhatan Point Meeting, for the purpose of voting on the adoption of this Agreement and the
other matters contemplated hereby, and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to relieve Powhatan Point of such
obligation. Powhatan Point shall only be required to postpone or seek the approval of its shareholders to adjourn the
Powhatan Point Meeting two (2) times pursuant to the first sentence of this Section 6.3(b).
(c) Each member of the Powhatan Point Board of shall execute and deliver to United Bancorp a Voting Agreement
concurrently with the execution of this Agreement.
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6.4 Title Policies.
At United Bancorp’s expense, Powhatan Point will provide to United Bancorp evidence of title in the form that is
customary for the respective jurisdiction for each Powhatan Point Real Property within 15 days after the execution of
this Agreement, which evidence of title shall be provided by a party mutually agreed upon by United Bancorp and
Powhatan Point. United Bancorp shall have the right pursuant to Article VIII and Section 7.2(d) hereof, to terminate
this Agreement by providing written notice to Powhatan Point if  (i) in the reasonable judgment of United Bancorp,
such evidence of title identifies a breach regarding the representations and warranties contained in Section 3.18 above
with respect to ownership of any Powhatan Point Real Property with an individual or aggregate fair market value in
excess of  $100,000 and (ii) Powhatan Point is unwilling or unable to cure such breach within 60 days.
6.5 Stock Exchange Listing.   United Bancorp shall cause the United Bancorp Shares to be issued in the Merger to be
approved for listing on the NASDAQ, subject to official notice of issuance prior to the Effective Time.
6.6 Employee Matters.
(a) United Bancorp will review all of the Powhatan Point Benefit Plans to determine whether to maintain, terminate or
continue such plans. In the event employee compensation and/or benefits as currently provided by Powhatan Point are
changed or terminated by United Bancorp, in whole or in part, United Bancorp shall provide the employees of
Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries who become United Bancorp or Unified Bank employees as of the Effective Time
(the “Continuing Employees”) with benefits that are, in the aggregate, substantially the same as the benefits provided to
similarly situated employees of United Bancorp; provided, that until such time as United Bancorp fully integrates the
Continuing Employees into its plans, participation in the Powhatan Point Benefit Plans shall be deemed to satisfy the
foregoing standard, it being understood that the Continuing Employees may commence participating in the plans of
United Bancorp on different dates following the Effective Time with respect to different benefit plans. Without
limiting the foregoing, United Bancorp shall pay to each Continuing Employee who is employed with United Bancorp
or any of its Subsidiaries as of December 1, 2018 (but excluding William Busick and Theresa Stillion) a 2018 annual
bonus in an amount not less than one month’s salary of such employee, with such bonuses prorated accordingly based
on full months of service with respect to any Continuing Employee who was not employed by Powhatan Point as of
January 1, 2018.
(b) With respect to any employee benefit plans of United Bancorp or its Subsidiaries in which any Continuing
Employees become eligible to participate on or after the Effective Time (the “New Plans”), United Bancorp and its
Subsidiaries shall (i) use its best efforts to waive all pre-existing conditions, exclusions and waiting periods with
respect to participation and coverage requirements applicable to such employees and their eligible dependents under
any New Plans, except to the extent such pre-existing conditions, exclusions or waiting periods would apply under the
analogous Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, and (ii) recognize all service of such employees with Powhatan Point and its
Subsidiaries for all purposes in any New Plan to the same extent that such service was taken into account under the
analogous Powhatan Point Benefit Plan prior to the Effective Time; provided, that the foregoing service recognition
shall not apply (A) to the extent it would result in duplication of benefits for the same period of service, (B) for
purposes of benefit accruals under any defined benefit pension plan, or (C) for purposes of any benefit plan that is a
frozen plan or provides grandfathered benefits.
(c) Powhatan Point shall cause any 401(k) plan sponsored or maintained by Powhatan Point (the “Powhatan Point
401(k) Plan”) to be terminated effective as of the day immediately prior to the Effective Time and contingent upon the
occurrence of the Closing. The Continuing Employees shall be eligible to participate, effective as of the Effective
Time, in a 401(k) plan sponsored or maintained by United Bancorp or one of its Subsidiaries (a “United Bancorp
401(k) Plan”). Powhatan Point and United Bancorp shall take any and all actions as may be required, including
amendments to the Powhatan Point 401(k) Plan and/or United Bancorp 401(k) Plan to permit Continuing Employees
who are then actively employed to make rollover contributions to the United Bancorp 401(k) Plan of  “eligible rollover
distributions” (with the meaning of Section 401(a)(31) of the Code) in the form of cash, notes (in the case of loans) or a
combination thereof. Powhatan Point shall provide United Bancorp with evidence that the Powhatan Point
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401(k) Plan has been terminated or amended, as applicable, in accordance with this Section 6.6(d); provided, that prior
to amending or terminating the Powhatan Point 401(k) Plan, Powhatan Point shall provide the form and substance of
any applicable resolutions or amendments to United Bancorp for review and approval.
(d) On and after the date hereof, any notices or communication materials (including any website posting) directed by
Powhatan Point to Continuing Employees with respect to employment, compensation or benefits matters addressed in
this Agreement or directly related to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the prior
prompt review and approval of United Bancorp (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).
(e) It is the intention of United Bancorp to retain, as at-will employees, all full-time employees of Powhatan Point and
its Subsidiaries who are actively employed as of the date of this Agreement, subject to the standard application review
and background checks required by applicable law. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon any such employee,
or any officer, director or consultant of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates, any right to continue in
the employ or service of the Surviving Company, Powhatan Point, United Bancorp, or any Subsidiary or affiliate
thereof, or shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Surviving Company, Powhatan Point, United
Bancorp or any Subsidiary or affiliate thereof to discharge or terminate the services of any employee, officer, director
or consultant of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates at any time for any reason whatsoever, with or
without cause. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to (i) establish, amend, or modify any Powhatan Point
Benefit Plan, New Plan or any other benefit or employment plan, program, agreement or arrangement, or (ii) alter or
limit the ability of the United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates to amend, modify or terminate any
particular Powhatan Point Benefit Plan, New Plan or any other benefit or employment plan, program, agreement or
arrangement after the Effective Time. Without limiting the generality of the final sentence of Section 9.11, nothing in
this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any person, including any current or former
employee, officer, director or consultant of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates, any right, benefit or
remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.
(f) United Bancorp shall pay to each employee of Powhatan Point or First National who (i) is an employee of
Powhatan Point or First National immediately before the Effective Time, (ii) has been an employee of Powhatan Point
or First National for at least six months prior to the Effective Time, and (iii) is not offered continued employment at a
similar rate of compensation by United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries for at least six months after the Effective
Time, a severance amount equal to two weeks’ base pay multiplied by the number of whole years of service of such
employee with Powhatan Point or First National, less applicable local, state and federal tax withholding; provided,
however, that the minimum severance payment shall equal four weeks of base pay and the maximum severance
payment shall not exceed 26 weeks of base pay; provided, further, that the base pay for any hourly employee shall be
determined based on such employee’s rate of pay at the Effective Time and the average hours worked by such
employee over the 12 months preceding the Effective Time, or such shorter period of time that such employee was
employed by Powhatan Point or First National; provided, further, that such employee is not terminated for cause. Such
severance pay shall be paid in a lump sum within 30 days following the termination of such employee. In exchange
for the aforementioned severance pay, terminated employees will be required to execute a final and binding general
release in which such employee releases and waives any and all claims the employee may have against United
Bancorp and its Affiliates.
(g) United Bancorp shall negotiate in good faith with William Busick and Theresa Stillion toward the execution prior
to or at the Effective Time of written employment agreements, the terms of which shall be reasonably acceptable to
the respective parties thereto.
6.7 Indemnification; Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance.
(a) From and after the Effective Time, each of United Bancorp and the Surviving Company shall indemnify and hold
harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Powhatan Point Articles and the Powhatan Point Code
of Regulations, each present director and officer of Powhatan Point and First National (in each case, when acting in
such capacity) (collectively, the “Powhatan Point Indemnified Parties”) for a period of six years following the Effective
Time. No Powhatan Point Indemnified Party shall
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be entitled to such indemnification with respect to a claim (i) if such person materially fails to cooperate in the defense
and investigation of such claim as to which indemnification may be made, (ii) made by such person against United
Bancorp, Powhatan Point or any of their Subsidiaries arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the
transactions contemplated hereby or the conduct of the business of United Bancorp, Powhatan Point or any of their
Subsidiaries, or (iii) if such person fails to deliver such notices (within such person’s control) as may be required under
any applicable directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy to preserve any possible claims of which the claiming
party is aware, to the extent such failure results in the denial of payment under such policy; provided, however, that
any such indemnification by United Bancorp shall be subject to compliance with the provisions of applicable state and
federal laws, but any such compliance shall not prevent or limit any indemnification available under the terms of the
policies provided for under Section 6.7(b) below, subject to the specific terms of such policies.
(b) For a period of six years after the Effective Time, United Bancorp shall maintain in effect the current policies of
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries and any similar policies
covering fiduciaries under the Powhatan Point Benefit Plans (provided, that United Bancorp may substitute therefor
policies with a substantially comparable insurer of at least the same coverage and amounts containing terms and
conditions which are no less advantageous to the insured) with respect to claims against the present and former
officers and directors of Powhatan Point or any of its Subsidiaries arising from facts or events which occurred at or
before the Effective Time (including the transactions contemplated by this Agreement); provided, however, that
United Bancorp shall not be obligated to expend, on an annual basis, an amount in excess of 125% of the current
annual premium paid as of the date hereof by Powhatan Point for such insurance (the “Premium Cap”), and if such
premiums for such insurance would at any time exceed the Premium Cap, then United Bancorp shall cause to be
maintained policies of insurance that, in United Bancorp’s good faith determination, provide the maximum coverage
available at an annual premium equal to the Premium Cap. In lieu of the foregoing, Powhatan Point, in consultation
with, but only upon the consent of United Bancorp, may (and at the request of United Bancorp, Powhatan Point shall
use its reasonable best efforts to) obtain at or prior to the Effective Time a six-year “tail” policy under Powhatan Point’
existing directors’ and officers’ insurance policy and similar policy covering fiduciaries under the Powhatan Point
Benefit Plans providing equivalent coverage to that described in the preceding sentence if and to the extent that the
same may be obtained for an amount that, in the aggregate, does not exceed, on an annual basis, the Premium Cap. If a
“tail policy” is purchased as provided above, United Bancorp shall maintain in full force and effect and not cancel such
“tail policy,” and the expense associated with such “tail policy” shall be excluded from the definition of Powhatan Point
Transaction-Related Expenses for purposes of Section 1.5(b).
6.8 Additional Agreements.   In case at any time after the Effective Time any further action is necessary or desirable
to carry out the purposes of this Agreement or to vest United Bancorp or the Surviving Company with full title to all
properties, assets, rights, approvals, immunities and franchises of any of the parties to the Merger, then the current
officers and directors of each party to this Agreement and their respective Subsidiaries shall take, or cause to be taken,
all such necessary action as may be reasonably requested by the other party, at the expense of the party who makes
any such request.
6.9 Advice of Changes.   United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall each promptly advise the other party of any fact,
change, event or circumstance known to it (i) that has had or is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on
it or (ii) which it believes would or would be reasonably likely to cause or constitute a material breach of any of its
representations, warranties or covenants contained herein or that reasonably could be expected to give rise,
individually or in the aggregate, to the failure of a condition in Article VII; provided, that any failure to give notice in
accordance with the foregoing with respect to any breach shall not be deemed to constitute a violation of this Section
6.9 or the failure of any condition set forth in Section 7.2 or 7.3 to be satisfied, or otherwise constitute a breach of this
Agreement by the party failing to give such notice, in each case unless the underlying breach would independently
result in a failure of the conditions set forth in Section 7.2 or 7.3 to be satisfied.
6.10 Additional Director.   United Bancorp shall take all appropriate action, as of the Effective Time, to cause the
appointment of one (1) current outside director of Powhatan Point, to be selected by United Bancorp in consultation
with Powhatan Point, to the boards of directors of both United Bancorp and Unified Bank, which appointments shall
be subject to all qualifications and restrictions generally applicable to the members serving on such boards.
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6.11 Acquisition Proposals.   Powhatan Point shall not, and shall cause its Subsidiaries and its and their officers,
directors, agents, advisors and representatives (collectively, “Representatives”) not to, directly or indirectly, (i) initiate,
solicit, knowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate inquiries or proposals with respect to, (ii) engage or participate in
any negotiations with any person concerning or (iii) provide any confidential or nonpublic information or data to, or
have or participate in any discussions with, any person relating to, any Acquisition Proposal; provided, that, prior to
the receipt of the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote, in the event Powhatan Point receives an unsolicited bona fide
written Acquisition Proposal, it may, and may permit its Subsidiaries and its Subsidiaries’ Representatives to, furnish
or cause to be furnished nonpublic information or data and participate in such negotiations or discussions to the extent
that its Board of Directors concludes in good faith (after receiving the advice of its legal counsel) that such action is
reasonably required for the Powhatan Point Board of Directors to comply with its fiduciary duties under applicable
law; provided, further, that, prior to providing any nonpublic information permitted to be provided pursuant to the
foregoing provision, Powhatan Point shall have provided such information to United Bancorp, and shall have entered
into a confidentiality agreement with such third party on terms no less favorable to it than the Confidentiality
Agreement, which confidentiality agreement shall not provide such person with any exclusive right to negotiate with
Powhatan Point. Powhatan Point will, and will cause its Representatives to, immediately cease and cause to be
terminated any activities, discussions or negotiations conducted before the date of this Agreement with any person
other than United Bancorp with respect to any Acquisition Proposal. Powhatan Point will promptly (and in any event
within two (2) business days) advise United Bancorp following receipt of any Acquisition Proposal, and the substance
thereof  (including the material terms and conditions of such Acquisition Proposal), and will keep United Bancorp
reasonably apprised of any material developments, discussions and negotiations on a current basis, including any
material amendments to or revisions of the terms of such Acquisition Proposal. Powhatan Point shall use its
reasonable best efforts, subject to applicable law and the fiduciary duties of the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point,
to enforce any existing confidentiality or standstill agreement to which it or any of its Subsidiaries is a party in
accordance with the terms thereof. Until the termination of this Agreement, Powhatan Point shall not, and shall cause
its Subsidiaries and its and their Representatives not to on its behalf, enter into any binding acquisition agreement,
merger agreement, or other definitive transaction agreement (other than a confidentiality agreement referred to and
entered into in accordance with this Section 6.11(a)) relating to any Acquisition Proposal. As used in this Agreement,
“Acquisition Proposal” shall mean, other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, any offer or proposal
relating to, or any third party indication of interest in, (i) any acquisition or purchase, direct or indirect, of 25% or
more of the consolidated assets of Powhatan Point and its Subsidiaries or 25% or more of any class of equity or voting
securities of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries whose assets, individually or in the aggregate, constitute more than
25% of the consolidated assets of Powhatan Point, (ii) any tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would
result in such third party beneficially owning more than 25% of any class of equity or voting securities of Powhatan
Point or its Subsidiaries whose assets, individually or in the aggregate, constitute more than 25% of the consolidated
assets of Powhatan Point, or (iii) a merger, consolidation, share exchange or other business combination,
reorganization involving Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries whose assets, individually or in the aggregate, constitute
more than 25% of the consolidated assets of Powhatan Point, except, in each case, any sale of whole loans and
securitizations in the ordinary course of business and any bona fide internal reorganization.
6.12 Public Announcements.   Powhatan Point and United Bancorp shall each use their reasonable best efforts (a) to
develop a joint communications plan, (b) to ensure that all press releases and other public statements with respect to
the transactions contemplated hereby shall be consistent with such joint communications plan, and (c) except in
respect of any announcement required by (i) applicable law or regulation, (ii) a request by a Governmental Entity, (iii)
communications that are substantially similar to communications previously approved pursuant to this Section 6.12,
(iv) communications permitted by Section 6.3 or Section 6.11 or (v) an obligation pursuant to any listing agreement
with or rules of any securities exchange, Powhatan Point and United Bancorp agree to consult with each other and to
obtain the advance approval of the other party (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed) before issuing any press release or, to the extent practical, otherwise making any public statement with
respect to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.
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6.13 Change of Method.   United Bancorp may at any time change the method of effecting the Merger if and to the
extent requested by United Bancorp, and Powhatan Point agrees to enter into such amendments to this Agreement as
United Bancorp may reasonably request in order to give effect to such restructuring; provided, however, that no such
change or amendment shall (i) alter or change the amount or kind of the Merger Consideration provided for in this
Agreement, (ii) adversely affect the Tax treatment of the Merger with respect to Powhatan Point’s shareholders,
including by causing the Merger to fail to qualify as a “reorganization” under Section 368(a) of the Code, (iii) be
reasonably likely to cause the Closing to be materially delayed or the receipt of the Requisite Regulatory Approvals to
be prevented or materially delayed, or (iv) otherwise adversely affect the Powhatan Point shareholders.
6.14 Takeover Statutes.   Neither Powhatan Point nor United Bancorp shall take any action that would cause any
Takeover Statute to become applicable to this Agreement, the Merger, or any of the other transactions contemplated
hereby, and each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall take all necessary steps to exempt (or ensure the
continued exemption of) the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby from any applicable Takeover
Statute now or hereafter in effect. If any Takeover Statute may become, or may purport to be, applicable to the
transactions contemplated hereby, each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point will grant such approvals and take
such actions as are necessary so that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement may be consummated as
promptly as practicable on the terms contemplated hereby and otherwise act to eliminate or minimize the effects of
any Takeover Statute on any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including, if necessary, challenging
the validity or applicability of any such Takeover Statute.
6.15 Accounting and Other Adjustments.   Subject to all applicable legal requirements, Powhatan Point agrees that it
shall, and shall cause its Subsidiaries to: (a) make any accounting adjustments or entries to its books of account and
other financial records; (b) make additional provisions to ALLL; (c) sell or transfer any investment securities held by
it; (d) charge-off any loan or lease; (e) create any new reserve account or make additional provisions to any other
existing reserve account; (f) make changes in any accounting method; (g) accelerate, defer or accrue any anticipated
obligation, expense or income item; and (h) make any other adjustments that would affect the financial reporting of
Powhatan Point, on a consolidated basis at the Effective Time, in any case as United Bancorp shall reasonably and in
good faith request; provided, however, that neither Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries shall be obligated to take any
such requested action until immediately prior to the Closing and at such time as United Bancorp shall confirm in
writing that all conditions precedent and obligations under Article VII under this Agreement (except for the
completion of actions to be taken at the Closing) have been satisfied and that there are no facts or circumstances
which would prevent United Bancorp from consummating the Merger; provided, further, that neither Powhatan Point
or its Subsidiaries shall be obligated to take any such requested action if the primary purpose of such action is to
reduce the aggregate Merger Consideration.
6.16 Litigation and Claims.   Each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall promptly notify the other party in
writing of any action, arbitration, audit, hearing, investigation, litigation, suit, subpoena or summons issued,
commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before, or otherwise involving, any Governmental Entity or arbitrator
pending or, to the knowledge of United Bancorp or Powhatan Point, as applicable, threatened against United Bancorp,
Powhatan Point or any of their respective Subsidiaries that (a) questions or would reasonably be expected to question
the validity of this Agreement, the Bank Merger Agreement or the other agreements contemplated hereby or thereby
or any actions taken or to be taken by United Bancorp, Powhatan Point, or their respective Subsidiaries with respect
hereto or thereto, or (b) seeks to enjoin or otherwise restrain the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.
Powhatan Point shall give United Bancorp the opportunity to participate at its own expense in the defense or
settlement of any shareholder litigation against Powhatan Point and/or its directors or affiliates relating to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and no such settlement with any shareholder shall be agreed without
United Bancorp’s prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), except
litigation with respect to dissenter’s rights under Sections 1701.84 and 1701.85 of the OGCL.
6.17 No Control of Other Party’s Business.   Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give United Bancorp, directly
or indirectly, the right to control or direct the operations of Powhatan Point or its Subsidiaries prior to the Effective
Time, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give Powhatan
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Point, directly or indirectly, the right to control or direct the operations of United Bancorp or its Subsidiaries prior to
the Effective Time. Prior to the Effective Time, each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall exercise, consistent
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, complete control and supervision over its and its Subsidiaries’
respective operations.
ARTICLE VII
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
7.1 Conditions to Each Party’s Obligation to Effect the Merger.   The respective obligations of the parties to effect the
Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of the following conditions:
(a) Shareholder Approval.   This Agreement shall have been adopted by the shareholders of Powhatan Point by the
Requisite Powhatan Point Vote.
(b) Stock Exchange Listing.   The United Bancorp Shares that shall be issuable pursuant to this Agreement shall have
been authorized for listing on the NASDAQ.
(c) S-4.   The S-4 shall have become effective under the Securities Act and no stop order suspending the effectiveness
of the S-4 shall have been issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been initiated or threatened by the
SEC and not withdrawn.
(d) No Injunctions or Restraints; Illegality.   No order, injunction or decree issued by any court or agency of
competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Merger or the Bank
Merger shall be in effect. No statute, rule, regulation, order, injunction or decree shall have been enacted, entered,
promulgated or enforced by any Governmental Entity which prohibits or makes illegal consummation of the Merger.
(e) Regulatory Approvals.   All regulatory authorizations, consents, waivers, orders or approvals (x) from the Federal
Banking Agencies, (y) required under the HSR Act, and (z) set forth in Sections 3.4 and 4.4 which are necessary to
consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, including the Merger and the Bank Merger, or those the
failure of which to be obtained would reasonably be likely to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material
Adverse Effect on United Bancorp or the Surviving Company, shall have been obtained and shall remain in full force
and effect and all statutory waiting periods in respect thereof shall have expired (such approvals and the expiration of
such waiting periods being referred to herein as the “Requisite Regulatory Approvals”). The Requisite Regulatory
Approvals will not contain (i) any conditions, restrictions or requirements that the Board of Directors of United
Bancorp reasonably determines would either, before or after the Effective Time, have a Material Adverse Effect on
United Bancorp and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole after giving effect to the consummation of the Merger, or (ii)
any conditions, restrictions or requirements that are not customary and usual for approvals for such type and which the
Board of Directors of United Bancorp reasonably determines would either before or after the Effective Time be
unduly burdensome.
(f) Federal Tax Opinion.   United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall have received the opinion of Shumaker, Loop &
Kendrick, LLP, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the parties, dated as of the Closing Date, to the effect
that, on the basis of facts, representations and assumptions set forth or referred to in such opinion, the Merger will
qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. In rendering such opinion, counsel shall
require and rely upon, and United Bancorp and Powhatan Point shall supply, the Tax Representation Letters.
7.2 Conditions to Obligations of United Bancorp.   The obligation of United Bancorp to effect the Merger is also
subject to the satisfaction or waiver by United Bancorp, at or prior to the Effective Time, of the following conditions:
(a) Representations and Warranties.   The representations and warranties of Powhatan Point set forth in this
Agreement shall not be in breach, subject to the standard set forth in Article III, as of the date of this Agreement and
(except to the extent such representations and warranties speak as of an earlier date) as of the Closing Date as though
made on and as of the Closing Date. United Bancorp shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Powhatan
Point by the Chief Executive Officer of Powhatan Point to the foregoing effect.
A-42

Edgar Filing: Edenbrook Capital, LLC - Form 4

Explanation of Responses: 140



TABLE OF CONTENTS​
(b) Performance of Obligations of Powhatan Point.   Powhatan Point shall have performed in all material respects the
obligations required to be performed by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date, and United Bancorp
shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of Powhatan Point by the Chief Executive Officer of Powhatan Point
to such effect.
(c) Real Estate.   United Bancorp shall not have terminated this Agreement pursuant to Section 6.4 of this Agreement.
(d) Consents.   Powhatan Point shall have obtained the consent or approval of each person (other than the Requisite
Regulatory Approvals) whose consent or approval shall be required in connection with the transactions contemplated
hereby under any Loan or credit agreement, note, mortgage, indenture, lease, license or other agreement or instrument,
except those for which failure to obtain such consents and approvals would not, individually or in the aggregate, have
a Material Adverse Effect, after the Effective Time, on the Surviving Company.
(e) FIRPTA Certification.   United Bancorp shall have received a statement executed on behalf of Powhatan Point,
dated as of the Effective Time, satisfying the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2(c)(3) (and
complying with Treasury Regulations Section 1.897-2(h)) in a form reasonably acceptable to United Bancorp
certifying that Powhatan Point is a U.S. person, and that the Powhatan Point Shares do not represent United States real
property interests within the meaning of Section 897 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder.
(f) Dissenting Shares.   The holders of not more than 10% of the outstanding Powhatan Point Shares shall have
perfected their dissenters’ rights under Section 1701.84 of the OGCL in connection with the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement.
(g) No Material Adverse Effect.   From the date of this Agreement, there shall not have occurred any event,
circumstance or development that has had or could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on
Powhatan Point.
7.3 Conditions to Obligations of Powhatan Point.   The obligation of Powhatan Point to effect the Merger is also
subject to the satisfaction or waiver by Powhatan Point at or prior to the Effective Time of the following conditions:
(a) Representations and Warranties.   The representations and warranties of United Bancorp set forth in this
Agreement shall not be in breach, subject to the standard set forth in Article IV, as of the date of this Agreement and
(except to the extent such representations and warranties speak as of an earlier date) as of the Closing Date as though
made on and as of the Closing Date. Powhatan Point shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of United
Bancorp by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of United Bancorp to the foregoing effect.
(b) Performance of Obligations of United Bancorp.   United Bancorp shall have performed in all material respects the
obligations required to be performed by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date, and Powhatan Point
shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of United Bancorp by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer of United Bancorp to such effect.
(c) No Material Adverse Effect.   From the date of this Agreement, there shall not have occurred any event,
circumstance or development that has had or could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on
United Bancorp.
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ARTICLE VIII
TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT
8.1 Termination.   This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after
adoption of this Agreement by the shareholders of Powhatan Point:
(a) by mutual consent of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point in a written instrument duly executed by both parties;
(b) by either United Bancorp or Powhatan Point if any Governmental Entity that must grant a Requisite Regulatory
Approval has denied approval of the Merger or the Bank Merger and such denial has become final and nonappealable
or any Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction shall have issued a final nonappealable order, injunction or
decree permanently enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal the consummation of the Merger or the Bank
Merger, unless the failure to obtain a Requisite Regulatory Approval shall be due to the failure of the party seeking to
terminate this Agreement to perform or observe the covenants and agreements of such party set forth herein;
(c) by either United Bancorp or Powhatan Point if the Merger shall not have been consummated on or before March
15, 2019 (the “Termination Date”), unless the failure of the Closing to occur by such date shall be due to the failure of
the party seeking to terminate this Agreement to perform or observe the covenants and agreements of such party set
forth herein;
(d) by either United Bancorp or Powhatan Point, at any time prior to the Effective Time, by written notice to the other
party, if its board of directors so determines by vote of a majority of the members of its board, in the event of either (i)
a breach by the other party of any representation or warranty contained herein (subject to the standard set forth in
Article III or Article IV), which breach cannot be or has not been cured within 30 calendar days after the giving of
written notice to the breaching party of such breach; or (ii) a material breach by the other party of any of the covenants
or agreements contained herein, which breach cannot be or has not been cured within 30 calendar days after the giving
of written notice to the breaching party of such breach; provided, however, that such breach (whether under subsection
(i) or (ii)) would be reasonably likely, individually or in the aggregate with all other breaches, in the reasonable
opinion of the non-breaching party, to result in a Material Adverse Effect;
(e) by United Bancorp, if  (i) prior to such time as the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote is obtained, Powhatan Point or
the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point (A) submits this Agreement to its shareholders without a recommendation
for approval, or otherwise withdraws or materially and adversely modifies (or discloses its intention to withdraw or
materially and adversely modify) its recommendation as contemplated by Section 6.3(a), or recommends to its
shareholders an Acquisition Proposal other than the Merger, or (B) materially breaches its obligations under Section
6.3 or Section 6.11; or (ii) a tender offer or exchange offer for 25% or more of the outstanding Powhatan Point Shares
is commenced (other than by United Bancorp or a Subsidiary thereof), and the Board of Directors of Powhatan Point
recommends that the shareholders of Powhatan Point tender their shares in such tender or exchange offer or otherwise
fails to recommend that such shareholders reject such tender offer or exchange offer within the ten (10) business day
period specified in Rule 14e-2(a) under the Exchange Act; or
(f) Intentionally Omitted.
(g) by United Bancorp if Powhatan Point’s or First National’s ALLL is less than $177,000 (the “Final ALLL”).
(h) Calculation.   For all purposes of this Agreement, Powhatan Point’s Total Shareholders’ Equity and the Final ALLL
shall each be calculated by Powhatan Point consistent with past practices, in consultation with and as agreed to by
United Bancorp and Powhatan Point’s and United Bancorp’s independent auditors, in any case with such agreement not
to be unreasonably withheld, as of the close of business on the Closing Date, using reasonable estimates of revenues
and expenses through the Closing Date where actual amounts are not available. Such calculation shall be subject to
verification and approval prior to the Closing by United Bancorp’s independent auditors, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.
The party desiring to terminate this Agreement pursuant to clause (b), (c), (d), (e), (f) or (g) of this Section 8.1 shall
give written notice of such termination to the other party in accordance with Section 9.5, specifying the provision or
provisions hereof pursuant to which such termination is affected.
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8.2 Effect of Termination.
(a) In the event of termination of this Agreement by either United Bancorp or Powhatan Point as provided in Section
8.1, this Agreement will become void and have no effect, and none of United Bancorp, Powhatan Point, any of their
respective Subsidiaries or any of the officers or directors of any of them shall have any liability of any nature
whatsoever hereunder, or in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, except that (i) this Section 8.2 and
Article IX shall survive any termination of this Agreement, and (ii) notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in this Agreement, neither United Bancorp nor Powhatan Point shall be relieved or released from any liabilities or
damages arising out of its fraud or willful and material breach of any provision of this Agreement.
(i) In the event that after the date of this Agreement and prior to the termination of this Agreement, a bona fide
Acquisition Proposal shall have been made known to Powhatan Point or shall have been made directly to its
shareholders generally or any person shall have publicly announced (and not withdrawn) a bona fide Acquisition
Proposal with respect to Powhatan Point and (A) thereafter this Agreement is terminated by either United Bancorp or
Powhatan Point pursuant to Section 8.1(c) without the Requisite Powhatan Point Vote having been obtained or (B)
thereafter this Agreement is terminated by United Bancorp pursuant to Section 8.1(d), and (C) prior to the date that is
six (6) months after the date of such termination, Powhatan Point enters into a definitive agreement or consummates a
transaction with respect to an Acquisition Proposal (whether or not the same Acquisition Proposal as that referred to
above), then, Powhatan Point shall, on the earlier of the date of execution of such definitive agreement or the date of
consummation of such transaction, pay United Bancorp, by wire transfer of same day funds, a fee equal to $300,000
(the “Termination Fee”).
(ii) In the event that this Agreement is terminated by United Bancorp pursuant to Section 8.1(e), then Powhatan Point
shall pay United Bancorp, by wire transfer of same day funds, the Termination Fee as promptly as reasonably
practicable after the date of termination (and in any event, within ten (10) business days thereafter).
(b) Each of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point acknowledges that the agreements contained in this Section 8.2 are
an integral part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and that, without these agreements, the other
party would not enter into this Agreement; accordingly, if Powhatan Point fails promptly to pay the Termination Fee
due pursuant to this Section 8.2, and, in order to obtain such payment, United Bancorp commences a suit which results
in a judgment against Powhatan Point for the Termination Fee or any portion thereof, Powhatan Point shall pay the
costs and expenses of United Bancorp (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) in connection with such suit.
In addition, if Powhatan Point fails to pay the amounts payable pursuant to this Section 8.2, then Powhatan Point shall
pay interest on such overdue amounts (for the period commencing as of the date that such overdue amount was
originally required to be paid and ending on the date that such overdue amount is actually paid in full) at a rate per
annum equal to the “prime rate” (as announced by JPMorgan Chase & Co. or any successor thereto) in effect on the date
on which such payment was required to be made for the period commencing as of the date that such overdue amount
was originally required to be paid. The amounts payable by Powhatan Point pursuant to Section 8.2(a) constitute
liquidated damages and not a penalty, and, except in the case of fraud or willful and material breach, shall be the sole
monetary remedy of United Bancorp in the event of a termination of this Agreement specified in such section.
ARTICLE IX
GENERAL PROVISIONS
9.1 Nonsurvival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements.   None of the representations, warranties, covenants
and agreements in this Agreement or in any instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement (other than the
Confidentiality Agreement, which shall survive in accordance with its terms) shall survive the Effective Time, except
for Section 6.7 and for those other covenants and agreements contained herein and therein which by their terms apply
or are to be performed in whole or in part after the Effective Time.
9.2 Amendment.   Subject to compliance with applicable law, this Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto,
by action taken or authorized by their respective Boards of Directors, at any time before or after approval of the
matters presented in connection with the Merger by the shareholders of Powhatan
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Point; provided, however, that after the adoption of this Agreement by the shareholders of Powhatan Point, there may
not be, without further approval of such shareholders, any amendment of this Agreement that requires further
shareholder approval under applicable law. This Agreement may not be amended, modified or supplemented in any
manner, whether by course of conduct or otherwise, except by an instrument in writing specifically designated as an
amendment hereto, signed on behalf of each of the parties in interest at the time of the amendment.
9.3 Extension; Waiver.   At any time prior to the Effective Time, the parties hereto, may, to the extent legally allowed,
(a) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other parties hereto, (b) waive any
inaccuracies in the representations and warranties contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto, and
(c) waive compliance with any of the agreements or satisfaction of any conditions contained herein; provided,
however, that after adoption of this Agreement by the shareholders of Powhatan Point, there may not be, without
further approval of such shareholders, any extension or waiver of this Agreement or any portion thereof that requires
further shareholder approval under applicable law. Any agreement on the part of a party hereto to any such extension
or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in a written instrument signed on behalf of such party, but such extension or
waiver or failure to insist on strict compliance with an obligation, covenant, agreement or condition shall not operate
as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any subsequent or other failure.
9.4 Expenses.   Except as otherwise provided in Section 8.2, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such fees or expenses,
whether or not the Merger is consummated.
9.5 Notices.   All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given (a)
on the date of delivery if delivered personally, or if by facsimile or email, upon confirmation of receipt, (b) on the first
(1st) business day following the date of dispatch if delivered utilizing a next-day service by a recognized next-day
courier or (c) on the earlier of confirmed receipt or the fifth (5th) business day following the date of mailing if
delivered by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. All notices hereunder shall be
delivered to the addresses set forth below, or pursuant to such other instructions as may be designated in writing by
the party to receive such notice:
If to Powhatan Point, to:
Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc.
345 Highway 7 North
Powhatan Point, Ohio 43942
Attention:   William V. Busick, President
Facsimile:    (740) 795-4652
Email:        fnbpp@1st.net
With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
Dinsmore & Shohl LLP
191 West Nationwide Blvd, Suite 300
Columbus, OH 43215
Attention:   Christian Gonzalez, Esq.
Direct:        (614) 628-6921
Facsimile:    (614) 628-6890
Email:        christian.gonzalez@dinsmore.com
and
If to United Bancorp, to:
United Bancorp, Inc.
201 South Fourth Street
Martins Ferry, Ohio 43935
Attention:   Scott A. Everson, CEO and President
Facsimile:   (740) 633-1448
Email:        severson@unifiedbank.com
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With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP
1000 Jackson Street
Toledo, Ohio 43604
Attention:   David J. Mack, Esq.
Direct:        (419) 321-1396
Facsimile:    (419) 241-6894
Email:        dmack@slk-law.com
9.6 Interpretation.   The parties have participated jointly in negotiating and drafting this Agreement. In the event that
an ambiguity or a question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by
the parties, and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the
authorship of any provision of this Agreement. When a reference is made in this Agreement to Articles, Sections,
Exhibits or Schedules, such reference shall be to an Article or Section of or Exhibit or Schedule to this Agreement
unless otherwise indicated. The table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes
only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. Whenever the words “include,”
“includes” or “including” are used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation.”
References to “the date hereof” shall mean the date of this Agreement. As used in this Agreement, the “knowledge” of
Powhatan Point means the knowledge of any officer of Powhatan Point or First National with the title of Chief
Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, or Chief Lending Officer, and the
“knowledge” of United Bancorp means the knowledge of any officer of United Bancorp or Unified Bank with the title of
Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial Officer, or Executive Vice President. An officer shall be deemed
to have “knowledge” of a particular fact or matter if such officer is actually aware of such fact or matter or a prudent
individual would be reasonably expected to discover or otherwise become aware of such fact or matter in the ordinary
course of such officer’s duties. As used herein, (i) “business day” means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a
day on which banks in Martins Ferry or Powhatan Point, Ohio are authorized by law or executive order to be closed,
(ii) the term “person” means any individual, corporation (including not-for-profit), general or limited partnership,
limited liability company, joint venture, estate, trust, association, organization, Governmental Entity or other entity of
any kind or nature, (iii) an “affiliate” of a specified person is any person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, such specified person and (iv) the term “made available” means any document or
other information that was (a) provided by one party or its representatives to the other party and its representatives
prior to the date hereof, (b) included in the virtual data room of a party prior to the date hereof or (c) filed by a party
with the SEC and publicly available on EDGAR prior to the date hereof. The Powhatan Point Disclosure Schedule and
the United Bancorp Disclosure Schedule, as well as all other schedules and all exhibits hereto, shall be deemed part of
this Agreement and included in any reference to this Agreement. All references to “dollars” or “$” in this Agreement are to
United States dollars. This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to require any person to take any action, or
fail to take any action, if to do so would violate any applicable law, regulation and/or bank regulatory guidance. No
disclosure, representation or warranty shall be required to be made (or any other action taken) pursuant to this
Agreement that would involve the disclosure of confidential supervisory information of a Governmental Entity by any
party hereto to the extent prohibited by applicable law, and, to the extent legally permissible, appropriate substitute
disclosures or actions shall be made or taken under circumstances in which the limitations of this sentence apply.
9.7 Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (including by facsimile or other
electronic means), all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when
counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties, it being understood that all
parties need not sign the same counterpart.
9.8 Entire Agreement.   This Agreement (including the documents and the instruments referred to herein) together
with the Confidentiality Agreements constitutes the entire agreement among the parties and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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9.9 Governing Law; Jurisdiction.
(a) This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio, without regard
to any applicable conflicts of law.
(b) Each party agrees that it will bring any action or proceeding in respect of any claim arising out of or related to this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby exclusively in any federal or state court of competent jurisdiction
located in the State of Ohio (the “Ohio Courts”), and, solely in connection with claims arising under this Agreement or
the transactions that are the subject of this Agreement, (i) irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Ohio
Courts, (ii) waives any objection to laying venue in any such action or proceeding in the Ohio Courts, (iii) waives any
objection that the Ohio Courts are an inconvenient forum or do not have jurisdiction over any party and (iv) agrees
that service of process upon such party in any such action or proceeding will be effective if notice is given in
accordance with Section 9.5.
9.10 Waiver of Jury Trial.   EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY
WHICH MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND
DIFFICULT ISSUES, AND THEREFORE EACH SUCH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY
RIGHT SUCH PARTY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY SUIT, ACTION OR OTHER
PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR
THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY CERTIFIES AND
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT: (I) NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY
HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE
EVENT OF ANY SUIT, ACTION OR OTHER PROCEEDING, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING
WAIVER, (II) EACH PARTY UNDERSTANDS AND HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS OF THIS
WAIVER, (III) EACH PARTY MAKES THIS WAIVER VOLUNTARILY, AND (IV) EACH PARTY HAS BEEN
INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS
AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 9.10.
9.11 Assignment; Third-Party Beneficiaries.   Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations
shall be assigned by any of the parties hereto (whether by operation of law or otherwise) without the prior written
consent of the other party. Any purported assignment in contravention hereof shall be null and void. Subject to the
preceding sentence, this Agreement will be binding upon, inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the parties and
their respective successors and assigns. Except as otherwise specifically provided in Section 6.8, which is intended to
benefit each Powhatan Point Indemnified Party and his or her heir and representatives, this Agreement (including the
documents and instruments referred to herein) is not intended to and does not confer upon any person other than the
parties hereto any rights or remedies hereunder, including the right to rely upon the representations and warranties set
forth herein. The representations and warranties in this Agreement are the product of negotiations among the parties
hereto and are for the sole benefit of the parties. Any inaccuracies in such representations and warranties are subject to
waiver by the parties hereto in accordance herewith without notice or liability to any other person. In some instances,
the representations and warranties in this Agreement may represent an allocation among the parties hereto of risks
associated with particular matters regardless of the knowledge of any of the parties hereto. Consequently, persons
other than the parties may not rely upon the representations and warranties in this Agreement as characterizations of
actual facts or circumstances as of the date of this Agreement or as of any other date. Notwithstanding any other
provision in this Agreement to the contrary, no consent, approval or agreement of any third-party beneficiary will be
required to amend, modify or waive any provision of this Agreement.
9.12 Specific Performance.   The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur if any provision of this
Agreement were not performed in accordance with its specific terms or were otherwise breached. Accordingly, the
parties shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms of this Agreement, including an injunction or injunctions
to prevent breaches of this Agreement or to enforce specifically the performance of the terms and provisions hereof 
(including the parties’ obligation to consummate the
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Merger), in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity. Each of the parties hereby
further waives (a) any defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate and (b)
any requirement under any law to post security or a bond as a prerequisite to obtaining equitable relief.
9.13 Severability.   Whenever possible, each provision or portion of any provision of this Agreement shall be
interpreted in such a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision or portion of any
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law or
rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision or portion of
any provision in such jurisdiction, and this Agreement shall be reformed, construed and enforced in such jurisdiction
such that the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision or portion thereof shall be interpreted to be only so broad as is
enforceable.
9.14 Delivery by Facsimile or Electronic Transmission.   This Agreement and any signed agreement or instrument
entered into in connection with this Agreement, and any amendments or waivers hereto or thereto, to the extent signed
and delivered by means of a facsimile machine or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, shall be treated in all
manner and respects as an original agreement or instrument and shall be considered to have the same binding legal
effect as if it were the original signed version thereof delivered in person. No party hereto or to any such agreement or
instrument shall raise the use of a facsimile machine or e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file to deliver a signature
to this Agreement or any amendment hereto or the fact that any signature or agreement or instrument was transmitted
or communicated through the use of a facsimile machine or e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file as a defense to
the formation of a contract and each party hereto forever waives any such defense.
[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers
thereunto duly authorized as of the date first above written.
UNITED BANCORP, INC.
By:
/s/ Scott A. Everson
​
​
Name: Scott A. Everson
Title:  President and Chief Executive Officer
POWHATAN POINT COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
By:
/s/ William V. Busick
​
​
Name: William V. Busick
Title:   President
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EXHIBIT A
 
AGREEMENT OF MERGER
THIS AGREEMENT OF MERGER (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of June 14, 2018, by and between Unified
Bank (“Unified Bank”), an Ohio bank, and The First National Bank of Powhatan Point (“First National”), a nationally
chartered commercial bank.
R E C I T A L S:
WHEREAS, Unified Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Bancorp, Inc. (“United Bancorp”), an Ohio
corporation, and First National is a wholly owned subsidiary of Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc.
(“Powhatan Point”), an Ohio corporation;
WHEREAS, United Bancorp and Powhatan Point have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 14,
2018, (the “Parent Merger Agreement”), which provides for the merger of Powhatan Point with and into United Bancorp
and the subsequent merger of First National with and into Unified Bank; and
WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors of each of the parties hereto have authorized, adopted and approved this
Agreement;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual premises and mutual agreements contained herein, the parties
hereto have agreed as follows:
ARTICLE I
 
THE MERGER
Section 1.01.   At the Effective Time (as defined in Article III below), First National shall merge with and into Unified
Bank (the “Merger”) pursuant to Ohio Rev. Code §§1115.11 and 1701.78, and the applicable regulations of the Division
of Financial Institutions of the Ohio Department of Commerce (the “Division”) and the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency (“OCC”). Upon consummation of the Merger, the separate corporate existence of First National shall cease
and Unified Bank shall continue as the surviving institution (the “Surviving Institution”).
Section 1.02.   The name of the Surviving Institution shall be Unified Bank.
ARTICLE II
 
CONVERSION OF SECURITIES
Section 2.01.   Unified Bank Stock.   The shares of common stock of Unified Bank issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be unaffected by the Merger and shall constitute the only outstanding
shares of capital stock of the Surviving Institution at and after the Effective Time.
Section 2.02.   First National Stock.   At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the
part of Unified Bank or First National, all of the common shares of First National, $25.00 par value per share, that are
issued and outstanding immediately prior thereto shall thereupon be canceled.
ARTICLE III
 
EFFECTIVE TIME
Section 3.01.   The Merger shall become effective immediately following and contingent upon the occurrence of the
Closing (as defined in Article I of the Parent Merger Agreement) at the date and time specified in the Certificate of
Merger to be filed by the Division with the Ohio Secretary of State (the “Effective Time”); provided, however, that such
filing shall not occur and the Merger shall not be effective until all of the following events have taken place: (a)
Powhatan Point shall have been merged with and into
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United Bancorp; (b) the sole shareholders of Unified Bank and First National shall have adopted this Agreement; (c)
the Merger shall have been approved by all regulatory authorities, including the Division; and (d) all applicable
regulatory waiting periods shall have expired.
ARTICLE IV
 
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND CODE OF REGULATIONS
OF SURVIVING INSTITUTION
Section 4.01.   The Articles of Incorporation and Code of Regulations of Unified Bank as in effect at the Effective
Time shall be the Articles of Incorporation and Code of Regulations of the Surviving Institution at and after the
Effective Time.
ARTICLE V
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF SURVIVING INSTITUTION
Section 5.01.   The executive officers of Unified Bank immediately before the Effective Time shall serve in the same
capacities as executive officers of the Surviving Institution at and after the Effective Time.
ARTICLE VI
 
DIRECTORS OF RESULTING INSTITUTION
6.01 Subject to Section 6.10 of the Parent Merger Agreement, the board of directors of Unified Bank immediately
before the Effective Time shall serve in the same capacities as the board of directors of the Surviving Institution at and
after the Effective Time.
ARTICLE VII
 
EFFECTS OF MERGER
Section 7.01.   At the Effective Time, First National shall merge with and into Unified Bank, with Unified Bank as the
Surviving Institution. The business of the Surviving Institution shall be that of an Ohio-chartered bank, as provided for
in its charter. All assets, rights, interests, privileges, powers, franchises and property (real, personal and mixed) of
Unified Bank and First National shall be automatically transferred to and vested in the Surviving Institution by virtue
of the Merger without any deed or other document of transfer.
Section 7.02.   The Surviving Institution, without any order or action on the part of any court or otherwise and without
any documents of assumption or assignment, shall hold and enjoy all of the assets, rights, privileges, powers,
properties, franchises and interests, including, without limitation, appointments, powers, designations, nominations
and all other rights, interests and powers as agent or fiduciary, in the same manner and to the same extent as such
rights, interests and powers were held or enjoyed by Unified Bank and First National, respectively.
Section 7.03.   The Surviving Institution shall be responsible for all of the liabilities, restrictions and duties of every
kind and description of both Unified Bank and First National immediately prior to the Merger, including, without
limitation, liabilities for all savings accounts, deposits, debts, obligations and contracts of Unified Bank and First
National, respectively, matured or unmatured, whether accrued, absolute, contingent and otherwise and whether or not
reflected or reserved against on balance sheets, books of accounts or records of either Unified Bank or First National.
Deposit accounts shall be deemed issued in the name of the Surviving Institution in accordance with applicable
regulations. All rights of creditors and other obligees and all liens on property of either Unified Bank or First National
shall be preserved, shall be assumed by the Surviving Institution and shall not be released or impaired.
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ARTICLE VIII
 
OFFICES OF SURVIVING INSTITUTION
Section 8.01.   After the Effective Time, the principal office of the Surviving Institution will be located at 201 South
Fourth Street, Martins Ferry, Ohio 43935. The other offices of the Surviving Institution shall be the existing offices of
Unified Bank and First National, and such other branches as may be duly authorized and established from time to
time.
ARTICLE IX
 
OTHER TERMS
Section 9.01.   All terms used in this Agreement shall, unless defined herein, have the meanings set forth in the Parent
Merger Agreement.
Section 9.02.   Subject to applicable law, at any time prior to the consummation of the Merger, this Agreement may be
amended by an instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of the parties hereto.
Section 9.03.   This Agreement shall terminate and become null and void, and the transactions contemplated herein
shall thereupon be abandoned, upon any occurrence of a termination of the Parent Merger Agreement pursuant to
Article VIII thereof.
Section 9.04.   This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio.
Section 9.05.   This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all of such counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written.
​ATTEST: ​​Unified Bank ​

​​Name:  
Title:    

​​

By:
​
Scott A. Everson
President and Chief Executive Officer

​

​ATTEST: ​​The First National Bank of Powhatan Point ​

​​Name:  
Title:  

​​

By:
​
William V. Busick
President

​
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EXHIBIT B
 
VOTING AGREEMENT
THIS VOTING AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of June 14, 2018, by and among United Bancorp,
Inc., a bank holding company incorporated under Ohio law (“United Bancorp”), and each of the undersigned
shareholders (collectively, the “Shareholders”) of Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc., a bank holding
company incorporated under Ohio law (“Powhatan Point”).
WHEREAS, the Shareholders collectively own, either solely or jointly, or otherwise control the power to vote, 7,931
shares of common stock, no par value, of Powhatan Point (such common shares, together with all shares of Powhatan
Point which may hereafter be acquired by the Shareholders prior to the termination of this Agreement, shall be
referred to herein as the “Shares”);
WHEREAS, United Bancorp and Powhatan Point propose to enter into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of
the date hereof  (the “Merger Agreement”), which provides, among other things, that Powhatan Point will merge with
and into United Bancorp pursuant to the Merger (this and other capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall
have the meanings given to such terms in the Merger Agreement); and
WHEREAS, United Bancorp and Powhatan Point have made it a condition to their entering into the Merger
Agreement that the Shareholders agree to vote the Shares in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein,
and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereby agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1
Voting of Shares
1.1 Voting Agreement.   Each Shareholder, individually and not jointly, solely in such Shareholder’s capacity as a
shareholder, hereby agrees that, during the time this Agreement is in effect, at any meeting of the shareholders of
Powhatan Point, however called, and in any action by consent of the shareholders of Powhatan Point, such
Shareholder will be present (in person or by proxy) at such meeting so that all of their Shares will be counted for the
purpose of determining the presence of a quorum and will vote their Shares (except Shares held in a fiduciary
capacity): (i) in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement (as amended from time to time) and (ii) against any
proposal for any recapitalization, merger, sale of assets or other business combination between Powhatan Point or any
of its Subsidiaries and any person or entity other than United Bancorp or any of its Subsidiaries, or any other action or
agreement that would result in a breach of any covenant, representation or warranty or any other obligation or
agreement of Powhatan Point under the Merger Agreement or that would result in any of the conditions to the
obligations of Powhatan Point under the Merger Agreement not being fulfilled. The parties hereto acknowledge and
agree that nothing contained herein is intended to restrict any Shareholder from voting or otherwise acting in the
Shareholder’s capacity as a director of Powhatan Point or First National with respect to any matter.
ARTICLE 2
Representations and Warranties
Each of the Shareholders, individually and not jointly, hereby represents and warrants to United Bancorp as follows:
2.1 Authority Relative to this Agreement.   He or she has all necessary power and authority or capacity, as the case
may be, to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform his or her obligations hereunder. This Agreement has
been duly and validly executed and delivered by the Shareholder and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation
of such Shareholder, enforceable against such Shareholder in accordance with its terms.
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2.2 No Conflict.
(a) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Shareholder does not, and the performance of this Agreement
by him or her will not (i) conflict with or violate any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree applicable to him
or her or by which the Shares are bound, or (ii) result in any breach of or constitute a default (or event that with notice
or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment,
acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a lien or encumbrance on any of the Shares held by him or
her pursuant to, any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, contract, agreement, lease, license, permit, franchise or other
instrument or obligation to which he or she is a party or by which he or she or any Shares of him or her are bound,
except, in the case of clauses (i) and (ii), for any such conflicts, violations, breaches, defaults or other occurrences
which would not prevent or delay the performance by such Shareholder of his, her or its obligations under this
Agreement.
(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by him or her does not, and the performance of this Agreement by
him or her will not, require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any
federal, state, local or foreign regulatory body.
2.3 Title to the Shares.   Such Shareholder is the owner of the number and class of Shares specified as owned by such
Shareholder on Annex I hereto, free and clear of all security interests, liens, claims, pledges, options, rights of first
refusal, agreements, limitations on voting rights, charges and other encumbrances of any nature whatsoever except as
otherwise specified on Annex I. Such Shareholder has not appointed or granted any proxy, which appointment or
grant is still effective, with respect to the Shares. Such Shareholder has sole voting power with respect to his or her
Shares, except as otherwise specified on Annex I.
ARTICLE 3
Additional Covenants
3.1 Transfer of the Shares.   Each of the Shareholders, individually and not jointly, hereby covenants and agrees that,
during the term of this Agreement, the Shareholder will not, without the prior written consent of United Bancorp, sell,
pledge, transfer, or otherwise voluntarily dispose of any of the Shares that are owned by the Shareholder (except
Shares held in a fiduciary capacity) or take any other voluntary action which would have the effect of removing the
Shareholder’s power to vote his, her or its Shares or which would otherwise be inconsistent with this Agreement.
ARTICLE 4
Miscellaneous
4.1 Termination.   This Agreement will terminate on the earlier to occur of  (i) the date of consummation of the Merger
and (ii) the date of termination of the Merger Agreement for any reason whatsoever.
4.2 Specific Performance.   The Shareholders agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event any provision of
this Agreement was not performed in accordance with the terms hereof and that United Bancorp shall be entitled to
specific performance of the terms hereof, in addition to any other remedy at law or in equity.
4.3 Entire Agreement.   This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.
4.4 Amendment.   This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed by all the parties
hereto.
4.5 Severability.   If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by
any rule of law or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full
force and effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in
any manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such
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determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible
in an acceptable manner to the end that the transactions contemplated hereby are fulfilled to the fullest extent possible.
4.6 Governing Law.   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Ohio.
4.7 Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original,
but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement.
4.8 Assignment.   This Agreement shall not be assigned by operation of law or otherwise.
4.9 Parties in Interest.   This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of each party hereto, and
nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other person any right, benefit
or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.
4.10 Transfers, Successors and Assigns.   The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is
intended to confer upon any party other than the parties hereto or their respective successors and assigns any rights,
remedies, obligations, or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement, except as expressly provided in this
Agreement.
4.11 Spousal Consent.   If any Shareholder who is a natural person is married on the date of this Agreement, such
Shareholder shall request the Shareholder’s spouse to execute and deliver to Powhatan Point a consent of spouse in the
form of Annex II hereto (“Consent of Spouse”), within 5 days of the date of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
execution and delivery thereof, such consent shall not be deemed to confer or convey to the spouse any rights in such
Shareholder’s shares of capital stock that do not otherwise exist by operation of law or the agreement of the parties.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed on the day first written above.
​SHAREHOLDERS ​​UNITED BANCORP, INC. ​

​​
H. Melvin Bigler, Jr.

​​

By:

​
​
Scott A. Everson, President & CEO

​

​​
William V. Busick

​​​ ​

​​
Dennis D. Hendershot

​​​ ​

​​
Dr. Carl A. Novak, DDS

​​​ ​

​​
Theresa L. Stillion

​​
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ANNEX I

​Shareholder ​​Address ​​

Number of Shares
(Include all shares over which
Shareholder has sole or shared
ownership or voting control)

​

​H. Melvin Bigler, Jr. ​​​ ​​560 ​
​William V. Busick ​​​ ​​453 ​
​Dennis D. Hendershot ​​​ ​​3,750 ​
​Dr. Carl A. Novak, DDS ​​​ ​​2,943 ​
​Theresa L. Stillion ​​​ ​​250 ​
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ANNEX II
 
CONSENT OF JOINT-OWNER
I, [    ], spouse of, or joint-owner of shares with, [    ], acknowledge that I have read the Voting Agreement, dated as of June
14, 2018, to which this Consent is attached as Annex II (the “Agreement”), and that I know the contents of the
Agreement. I am aware that the Agreement contains provisions regarding the voting and transfer of shares of capital
stock of Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc. which my spouse or co-owner may own, including any interest
I might have therein.
I hereby agree that my interest, if any, in any shares of capital stock of Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc.
subject to the Agreement shall be irrevocably bound by the Agreement and further understand and agree that any
community property interest I may have in such shares of capital stock of Powhatan Point Community Bancshares,
Inc. shall be similarly bound by the Agreement.
I am aware that the legal, financial and related matters contained in the Agreement are complex and that I am free to
seek independent professional guidance or counsel with respect to this Consent. I have either sought such guidance of
counsel or determined after reviewing the Agreement carefully that I will waive such right.
​Dated:  ​​

​​ ​​​
Signature

​

​​ ​​​
 Print Name

​
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ANNEX B
June 12, 2018
Board of Directors
Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc.
345 Highway 7 North
Powhatan Point, Ohio 43942
Re: Fairness Opinion, specific to the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between United Bancorp, Inc. an Ohio
corporation and Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc., an Ohio corporation.
Members of the Board:
CAMELS Consulting Group, LLC (“CAMELS”) is providing an opinion at your request as to the fairness, from a
financial point of view, to the holders of the outstanding shares of common stock of Powhatan Point Community
Bancshares, Inc. (“Powhatan Point”) of the consideration (the “Merger Consideration”) to be received by Powhatan Point
with and into United Bancorp, Inc., (United Bancorp”) specific to the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between
United Bancorp and Powhatan Point (the “Agreement”).
According to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, United Bancorp transaction is based on a combination
of both an exchange of shares (identified formula) and cash on a per share basis. Specifically, the Merger
Consideration identifies that each share of Powhatan Point common stock (52,955) is to be exchanged for 6.9233
shares of United Bancorp plus $38.75 cash for each share of Powhatan Point to complete described Merger
Consideration. Total Merger Consideration is calculated at $6,840,180 for 133 percent of Powhatan Point shareholder’s
equity of  $5,143,000, as of December 31, 2017/$129.17 per share.
Possible Merger Consideration adjustment:
•
The aggregate amount of Cash Consideration of the transaction is subject to off-setting of a certain portion of
expenses associated with the transaction equal to 50% of identified transaction expenses up to $1.0 million and all
amounts of the Powhatan Point Transaction Related Expenses (“TRE Adjustment”) over $1.0 million. Specific details in
Agreement and Plan of Merger.
​
•
Inclusion of additional TREs of Powhatan Point transaction (subject to finalization of compensation expense accruals
and after-tax transaction benefits) could impact the cash component of the Total Merger Consideration reducing
payout to Powhatan Point shareholders. Analysis based on increased TREs is calculated based on an estimated
additional $250,000 of TREs above the determined $1.0 million would effectively lower Total Merger Consideration
to 118 percent (TREs expensed against transaction cash) (reduction of 11.0 percent of negotiated initial Merger
Consideration) of Powhatan Point shareholder equity providing for a per share payout of  $115.00.
​
•
Quantitative analysis of Midwest whole bank M&A transactions over the past two years of similar asset size ranges of
Powhatan Point price to book ranges from 108% to 130%. Average deal value of 119%/$56.8 million in assets.
​
•
Provided analysis notes that based on existing M&A market transactions the calculated Total Merger Consideration
range of 118 to 133 percent to Powhatan shareholders are both deemed equitable payouts.
​
As directed by the board, this opinion in conjunction with our review of the proposed transaction, CAMELS has
among other things:
•
Reviewed the terms of the Agreement including the Merger Consideration;
​
•
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Reviewed certain publicly available financial statements, both audited (based on availability) and un-audited, and
related financial information of First National Bank of Powhatan Point (“FNBPP”) and Unified Bank, including those
included in their respective annual reports/annual statements for the past two years and their respective quarterly
reports for the same period;
​
​
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Board of Directors
Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc.
•
Reviewed the historical financial performance, current financial position and general prospects of each of United
Bancorp and Powhatan Point and reviewed certain financial records of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point as well
had discussions with the respective management teams of United Bancorp and Powhatan Point.
​
•
Reviewed and analyzed the stock performance and trading history of publicly traded United Bancorp (trading symbol.
NASDAQ: UBCP and privately held Powhatan Point;
​
•
Determined the financial and market benefits to United Bancorp and to shareholders of Powhatan Point based on
acquisition of Powhatan Point;
​
•
Met and communicated with members of executive and senior management and financial advisor of United Bancorp
and executive management of Powhatan Point concerning the past and current financial results of operations of each
respective company and including future prospects;
​
•
Reviewed various aspects of the financial performance of United Bancorp and compared such financial performance
of United Bancorp with similar data available for other financial institutions with specific review of their publicly
traded securities;
​
•
Reviewed the financial terms of other merger transactions, based on publicly available information, involving
financial institutions and financial institution holding companies of similar size, markets, and operating performance
deemed appropriate;
​
•
Prepared and reviewed the pro-forma financial analysis of the impact of the merger on United Bancorp; and
​
•
Conducted such other financial analyses and considered such other factors as CAMELS deemed appropriate.
​
In providing this fairness opinion, CAMELS has assumed and relied, without independent verification upon the
accuracy and completeness of all of the financial and other information that has been provided by Powhatan Point and
United Bancorp, and their respective representatives, and of the publicly available information that has been reviewed
in support of this merger. CAMELS is not an expert in the evaluation of allowances for loan losses and have not
independently verified such allowances. CAMELS assumes that the aggregate allowance for loan losses set forth in
the financial statements of Unified Bank and that of and FNBPP identified in the financial statements of Unified Bank
and FNBPP is adequate to cover such losses and institutions complied with applicable law, regulatory policy and
sound banking practices, as of the date of respective financial statements. CAMELS was not retained to and did not
conduct a physical inspection of any of the properties or facilities of United Bancorp and/or Unified Bank, nor make
any independent evaluation or appraisal of the assets, liabilities or prospects of United Bancorp or was CAMELS
provided with any such evaluation or appraisal, and did not review any individual credit files.
CAMELS opinion is based on economic, market, and other conditions as in effect on, and the information made
available to us as of, the date of this fairness opinion. Accordingly, it is important to note that although subsequent
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developments may affect provided opinion, CAMELS does not have any obligation to further update, revise, or affirm
provided opinion. CAMELS expresses no opinion on matters of a legal, regulatory, tax or accounting perspective
regarding the identified merger, as detailed in the Agreement and Plan of Merger to be completed. CAMELS offers no
opinion as to whether any alternative transaction might be more favorable to holders of Powhatan Point common stock
than the Merger.
CAMELS, as part of its financial advisory services to community banks is regularly engaged in the valuation of banks
and bank holding companies, thrifts and thrift holding companies, in connection with mergers and acquisitions and
valuations for other purposes. In providing this fairness opinion, CAMELS has acted on behalf of the Board of
Directors of Powhatan Point and will receive a fee for this service, which is payable, upon delivery of this opinion and
is not tied to the success of this merger transaction.
B-2
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Board of Directors
Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc.
CAMELS fairness opinion as expressed is limited to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the merger
consideration to be received by the holders of Powhatan Point common stock in the Merger and does not address
Powhatan Point’s underlying decision to proceed with the Merger. CAMELS has been retained on behalf of the Board
of Directors of Powhatan Point, and CAMELS opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any director of
Powhatan Point as to how such director should vote with respect to the amount or nature of any compensation, to any
officers, directors, or employees of Powhatan Point, or any class of such persons relative to the consideration to be
received by the holders of common stock of Powhatan Point in the transaction or with respect to the fairness of any
such compensation.
CAMELS, prior to the issuance of this opinion, provided stock valuation services and financial advisory services to
Powhatan Point for which it was paid a fee for its services. Prior to the referenced services provided Powhatan point
CAMELS had not been engaged by Powhatan Point.
Except as hereinafter provided, this opinion may not be disclosed, communicated, reproduced, disseminated, quoted
or referred to at any time, to any third part or in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever without our prior written
consent, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld, based upon review by us of the content of any such public
reference, which shall be satisfactory to us in our reasonable judgement. This letter is addressed and directed to the
Board of Directors of Powhatan Point in your consideration of the Agreement and Plan of Merger and is not intended
to be and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder as to how such shareholder should vote with
respect to the Agreement and Plan of Merger.
Specific to this opinion summation and based on CAMELS experience in performing stock valuations for community
banks both publicly and privately held, performing financial advisory services to community banks and other factors
deemed relevant, CAMELS is of the opinion as of this date hereof that the Merger Consideration to be received by the
holders of Powhatan Point common stock is fair, from a financial point of view.
Sincerely,
/s/ Edward E. Schmidt
​
Edward E. Schmidt
President and CEO
B-3
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ANNEX C
 
Dissenters’ Rights Under Section 1701.85 of the Ohio Revised Code
 
R.C. §1701.85
Qualifications of and procedures for dissenting shareholders
(A) (1) A shareholder of a domestic corporation is entitled to relief as a dissenting shareholder in respect of the
proposals described in sections 1701.74, 1701.76, and 1701.84 of the Revised Code, only in compliance with this
section.
(2) If the proposal must be submitted to the shareholders of the corporation involved, the dissenting shareholder shall
be a record holder of the shares of the corporation as to which the dissenting shareholder seeks relief as of the date
fixed for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of a meeting of the shareholders at which the proposal is
to be submitted, and such shares shall not have been voted in favor of the proposal.
(3) Not later than twenty days before the date of the meeting at which the proposal will be submitted to the
shareholders, the corporation may notify the corporation’s shareholders that relief under this section is available. The
notice shall include or be accompanied by all of the following:
(a)
A copy of this section;
​
(b)
A statement that the proposal can give rise to rights under this section if the proposal is approved by the required vote
of the shareholders;
​
(c)
A statement that the shareholder will be eligible as a dissenting shareholder under this section only if the shareholder
delivers to the corporation a written demand with the information provided for in division (A)(4) of this section before
the vote on the proposal will be taken at the meeting of the shareholders and the shareholder does not vote in favor of
the proposal.
​
(4) If the corporation delivers notice to its shareholders as provided in division (A)(3) of this section, a shareholder
electing to be eligible as a dissenting shareholder under this section shall deliver to the corporation before the vote on
the proposal is taken a written demand for payment of the fair cash value of the shares as to which the shareholder
seeks relief. The demand for payment shall include the shareholder’s address, the number and class of such shares, and
the amount claimed by the shareholder as the fair cash value of the shares.
(5) If the corporation does not notify the corporation’s shareholders pursuant to division (A)(3) of this section, not later
than ten days after the date on which the vote on the proposal was taken at the meeting of the shareholders, the
dissenting shareholder shall deliver to the corporation a written demand for payment to the dissenting shareholder of
the fair cash value of the shares as to which the dissenting shareholder seeks relief, which demand shall state the
dissenting shareholder’s address, the number and class of such shares, and the amount claimed by the dissenting
shareholder as the fair cash value of the shares.
(6) If a signatory, designated and approved by the dissenting shareholder, executes the demand, then at any time after
receiving the demand, the corporation may make a written request that the dissenting shareholder provide evidence of
the signatory’s authority. The shareholder shall provide the evidence within a reasonable time but not sooner than
twenty days after the dissenting shareholder has received the corporation’s written request for evidence.
(7) The dissenting shareholder entitled to relief under division (A)(3) of section 1701.84 of the Revised Code in the
case of a merger pursuant to section 1701.80 of the Revised Code and a dissenting shareholder entitled to relief under
division (A)(5) of section 1701.84 of the Revised Code in the case of a merger pursuant to section 1701. 801 of the
Revised Code shall be a record holder of the shares of the corporation as to which the dissenting shareholder seeks
relief as of the date on which the agreement of merger was adopted by the directors of that corporation. Within twenty
days after the dissenting shareholder has been sent the notice provided in section 1701.80 or 1701.801 of the Revised
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Code, the dissenting shareholder shall deliver to the corporation a written demand for payment with the same
information as that provided for in division (A)(4) of this section.
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(8) In the case of a merger or consolidation, a demand served on the constituent corporation involved constitutes
service on the surviving or the new entity, whether the demand is served before, on, or after the effective date of the
merger or consolidation. In the case of a conversion, a demand served on the converting corporation constitutes
service on the converted entity, whether the demand is served before, on, or after the effective date of the conversion.
(9) If the corporation sends to the dissenting shareholder, at the address specified in the dissenting shareholder’s
demand, a request for the certificates representing the shares as to which the dissenting shareholder seeks relief, the
dissenting shareholder, within fifteen days from the date of the sending of such request, shall deliver to the
corporation the certificates requested so that the corporation may endorse on them a legend to the effect that demand
for the fair cash value of such shares has been made. The corporation promptly shall return the endorsed certificates to
the dissenting shareholder. A dissenting shareholder’s failure to deliver the certificates terminates the dissenting
shareholder’s rights as a dissenting shareholder, at the option of the corporation, exercised by written notice sent to the
dissenting shareholder within twenty days after the lapse of the fifteen-day period, unless a court for good cause
shown otherwise directs. If shares represented by a certificate on which such a legend has been endorsed are
transferred, each new certificate issued for them shall bear a similar legend, together with the name of the original
dissenting holder of the shares. Upon receiving a demand for payment from a dissenting shareholder who is the record
holder of uncertificated securities, the corporation shall make an appropriate notation of the demand for payment in its
shareholder records. If uncertificated shares for which payment has been demanded are to be transferred, any new
certificate issued for the shares shall bear the legend required for certificated securities as provided in this paragraph.
A transferee of the shares so endorsed, or of uncertificated securities where such notation has been made, acquires
only the rights in the corporation as the original dissenting holder of such shares had immediately after the service of a
demand for payment of the fair cash value of the shares. A request under this paragraph by the corporation is not an
admission by the corporation that the shareholder is entitled to relief under this section.
(B) Unless the corporation and the dissenting shareholder have come to an agreement on the fair cash value per share
of the shares as to which the dissenting shareholder seeks relief, the dissenting shareholder or the corporation, which
in case of a merger or consolidation may be the surviving or new entity, or in the case of a conversion may be the
converted entity, within three months after the service of the demand by the dissenting shareholder, may file a
complaint in the court of common pleas of the county in which the principal office of the corporation that issued the
shares is located or was located when the proposal was adopted by the shareholders of the corporation, or, if the
proposal was not required to be submitted to the shareholders, was approved by the directors. Other dissenting
shareholders, within that three-month period, may join as plaintiffs or may be joined as defendants in any such
proceeding, and any two or more such proceedings may be consolidated. The complaint shall contain a brief statement
of the facts, including the vote and the facts entitling the dissenting shareholder to the relief demanded. No answer to a
complaint is required. Upon the filing of a complaint, the court, on motion of the petitioner, shall enter an order fixing
a date for a hearing on the complaint and requiring that a copy of the complaint and a notice of the filing and of the
date for hearing be given to the respondent or defendant in the manner in which summons is required to be served or
substituted service is required to be made in other cases. On the day fixed for the hearing on the complaint or any
adjournment of it, the court shall determine from the complaint and from evidence submitted by either party whether
the dissenting shareholder is entitled to be paid the fair cash value of any shares and, if so, the number and class of
such shares. If the court finds that the dissenting shareholder is so entitled, the court may appoint one or more persons
as appraisers to receive evidence and to recommend a decision on the amount of the fair cash value. The appraisers
have power and authority specified in the order of their appointment. The court thereupon shall make a finding as to
the fair cash value of a share and shall render judgment against the corporation for the payment of it, with interest at a
rate and from a date as the court considers equitable. The costs of the proceeding, including reasonable compensation
to the appraisers to be fixed by the court, shall be assessed or apportioned as the court considers equitable. The
proceeding is a special proceeding and final orders in it may be vacated, modified, or reversed on appeal pursuant to
the Rules of Appellate Procedure and, to the extent not in conflict with those rules, Chapter 2505. of the Revised
Code. If, during the pendency of any proceeding instituted under this section, a suit or proceeding is or has been
instituted to enjoin or otherwise to prevent the carrying out of the action as to which the shareholder has dissented, the
proceeding instituted under this section shall be
C-2
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stayed until the final determination of the other suit or proceeding. Unless any provision in division (D) of this section
is applicable, the fair cash value of the shares that is agreed upon by the parties or fixed under this section shall be
paid within thirty days after the date of final determination of such value under this division, the effective date of the
amendment to the articles, or the consummation of the other action involved, whichever occurs last. Upon the
occurrence of the last such event, payment shall be made immediately to a holder of uncertificated securities entitled
to payment. In the case of holders of shares represented by certificates, payment shall be made only upon and
simultaneously with the surrender to the corporation of the certificates representing the shares for which the payment
is made.
(C) (1) If the proposal was required to be submitted to the shareholders of the corporation, fair cash value as to those
shareholders shall be determined as of the day prior to the day on which the vote by the shareholders was taken and, in
the case of a merger pursuant to section 1701. 80 or 1701.801 of the Revised Code, fair cash value as to shareholders
of a constituent subsidiary corporation shall be determined as of the day before the adoption of the agreement of
merger by the directors of the particular subsidiary corporation. The fair cash value of a share for the purposes of this
section is the amount that a willing seller who is under no compulsion to sell would be willing to accept and that a
willing buyer who is under no compulsion to purchase would be willing to pay, but in no event shall the fair cash
value of a share exceed the amount specified in the demand of the particular shareholder. In computing fair cash
value, both of the following shall be excluded:
(a)
Any appreciation or depreciation in market value resulting from the proposal submitted to the directors or to the
shareholders;
​
(b)
Any premium associated with control of the corporation, or any discount for lack of marketability or minority status.
​
(2) For the purposes of this section, the fair cash value of a share that was listed on a national securities exchange at
any of the following times shall be the closing sale price on the national securities exchange as of the applicable date
provided in division (C)(1) of this section:
(a)
Immediately before the effective time of a merger or consolidation;
​
(b)
Immediately before the filing of an amendment to the articles of incorporation as described in division (A) of section
1701.74 of the Revised Code;
​
(c)
Immediately before the time of the vote described in division (A)(1)(b) of section 1701.76 of the Revised Code.
​
(D) (1) The right and obligation of a dissenting shareholder to receive fair cash value and to sell such shares as to
which the dissenting shareholder seeks relief, and the right and obligation of the corporation to purchase such shares
and to pay the fair cash value of them terminates if any of the following applies:
(a)
The dissenting shareholder has not complied with this section, unless the corporation by its directors waives such
failure;
​
(b)
The corporation abandons the action involved or is finally enjoined or prevented from carrying it out, or the
shareholders rescind their adoption of the action involved;
​
(c)
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The dissenting shareholder withdraws the dissenting shareholder’s demand, with the consent of the corporation by its
directors;
​
(d)
The corporation and the dissenting shareholder have not come to an agreement as to the fair cash value per share, and
neither the shareholder nor the corporation has filed or joined in a complaint under division (B) of this section within
the period provided in that division.
​
(2) For purposes of division (D)(1) of this section, if the merger, consolidation, or conversion has become effective
and the surviving, new, or converted entity is not a corporation, action required to be taken by the directors of the
corporation shall be taken by the partners of a surviving, new, or converted partnership or the comparable
representatives of any other surviving, new, or converted entity.
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(E) From the time of the dissenting shareholder’s giving of the demand until either the termination of the rights and
obligations arising from it or the purchase of the shares by the corporation, all other rights accruing from such shares,
including voting and dividend or distribution rights, are suspended. If during the suspension, any dividend or
distribution is paid in money upon shares of such class or any dividend, distribution, or interest is paid in money upon
any securities issued in extinguishment of or in substitution for such shares, an amount equal to the dividend,
distribution, or interest which, except for the suspension, would have been payable upon such shares or securities,
shall be paid to the holder of record as a credit upon the fair cash value of the shares. If the right to receive fair cash
value is terminated other than by the purchase of the shares by the corporation, all rights of the holder shall be restored
and all distributions which, except for the suspension, would have been made shall be made to the holder of record of
the shares at the time of termination.
C-4
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PART II
Item 20.   Indemnification of Directors and Officers
United Bancorp Amended and Restated Code of Regulations
Section 29 of United Bancorp’s Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation provides that the corporation shall
indemnify any current or former director or officer and any such director or officer who is or has served at the request
of the corporation as a director, officer or trustee of another entity against expenses, including attorney’s fees,
judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incurred by him by reason of the fact that he
is or was such director, officer or trustee in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative to the full extent permitted by applicable law.
Ohio General Corporation Law
The OGCL provides broad authority for an Ohio corporation to indemnify its current or former directors, officers,
employees or agents. Section 1701.13(E) of the Ohio Revised Code more specifically provides:
(1) A corporation may indemnify or agree to indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made
a party, to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or
investigative, other than an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason of the fact that he is or was a
director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a
director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager, or agent of another corporation, domestic or foreign, nonprofit
or for profit, a limited liability company, or a partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, against expenses,
including attorney’s fees, judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in
connection with such action, suit, or proceeding, if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be
in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if he
had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by
judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself,
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not
opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, he had
reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.
(2) A corporation may indemnify or agree to indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made
a party, to any threatened, pending, or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a
judgment in its favor, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation,
or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager, or
agent of another corporation, domestic or foreign, nonprofit or for profit, a limited liability company, or a partnership,
joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, against expenses, including attorney’s fees, actually and reasonably incurred by
him in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, if he acted in good faith and in a manner he
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, except that no indemnification
shall be made in respect of any of the following:
(a) Any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person is adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the
performance of his duty to the corporation unless, and only to the extent that, the court of common pleas or the court
in which such action or suit was brought determines, upon application, that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in
view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses
as the court of common pleas or such other court shall deem proper;
(b) Any action or suit in which the only liability asserted against a director is pursuant to section 1701.95 of the
Revised Code.
II-1
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(3) To the extent that a director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager, or agent has been successful on the
merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit, or proceeding referred to in division (E)(1) or (2) of this section, or
in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, he shall be indemnified against expenses, including attorney’s fees,
actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the action, suit, or proceeding.
(4) Any indemnification under division (E)(1) or (2) of this section, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the
corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the director, trustee,
officer, employee, member, manager, or agent is proper in the circumstances because he has met the applicable
standard of conduct set forth in division (E)(1) or (2) of this section. Such determination shall be made as follows:
(a) By a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors of the indemnifying corporation who were not and are not
parties to or threatened with the action, suit, or proceeding referred to in division (E)(1) or (2) of this section;
(b) If the quorum described in division (E)(4)(a) of this section is not obtainable or if a majority vote of a quorum of
disinterested directors so directs, in a written opinion by independent legal counsel other than an attorney, or a firm
having associated with it an attorney, who has been retained by or who has performed services for the corporation or
any person to be indemnified within the past five years;
(c) By the shareholders;
(d) By the court of common pleas or the court in which the action, suit, or proceeding referred to in division (E)(1) or
(2) of this section was brought.
Any determination made by the disinterested directors under division (E)(4)(a) or by independent legal counsel under
division (E)(4)(b) of this section shall be promptly communicated to the person who threatened or brought the action
or suit by or in the right of the corporation under division (E)(2) of this section, and, within ten days after receipt of
such notification, such person shall have the right to petition the court of common pleas or the court in which such
action or suit was brought to review the reasonableness of such determination.
(5) (a) Unless at the time of a director’s act or omission that is the subject of an action, suit, or proceeding referred to in
division (E)(1) or (2) of this section, the articles or the regulations of a corporation state, by specific reference to this
division, that the provisions of this division do not apply to the corporation and unless the only liability asserted
against a director in an action, suit, or proceeding referred to in division (E)(1) or (2) of this section is pursuant to
section 1701.95 of the Revised Code, expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by a director in defending the
action, suit, or proceeding shall be paid by the corporation as they are incurred, in advance of the final disposition of
the action, suit, or proceeding, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director in which he agrees to do
both of the following:
(i) Repay such amount if it is proved by clear and convincing evidence in a court of competent jurisdiction that his
action or failure to act involved an act or omission undertaken with deliberate intent to cause injury to the corporation
or undertaken with reckless disregard for the best interests of the corporation;
(ii) Reasonably cooperate with the corporation concerning the action, suit, or proceeding.
(b) Expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by a director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager, or agent
in defending any action, suit, or proceeding referred to in division (E)(1) or (2) of this section, may be paid by the
corporation as they are incurred, in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit, or proceeding, as authorized by
the directors in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, trustee, officer,
employee, member, manager, or agent to repay such amount, if it ultimately is determined that he is not entitled to be
indemnified by the corporation.
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(6) The indemnification authorized by this section shall not be exclusive of, and shall be in addition to, any other
rights granted to those seeking indemnification under the articles, the regulations, any agreement, a vote of
shareholders or disinterested directors, or otherwise, both as to action in their official capacities and as to action in
another capacity while holding their offices or positions, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a
director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager, or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors,
and administrators of such a person.
(7) A corporation may purchase and maintain insurance or furnish similar protection, including, but not limited to,
trust funds, letters of credit, or self-insurance, on behalf of or for any person who is or was a director, officer,
employee, or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, trustee,
officer, employee, member, manager, or agent of another corporation, domestic or foreign, nonprofit or for profit, a
limited liability company, or a partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against
him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the corporation
would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under this section. Insurance may be purchased from or
maintained with a person in whom the corporation has a financial interest.
(8) The authority of a corporation to indemnify persons pursuant to division (E)(1) or (2) of this section does not limit
the payment of expenses as they are incurred, indemnification, insurance, or other protection that may be provided
pursuant to divisions (E)(5), (6), and (7) of this section. Divisions (E)(1) and (2) of this section do not create any
obligation to repay or return payments made by the corporation pursuant to division (E)(5), (6), or (7).
(9) As used in division (E) of this section, “corporation” includes all constituent entities in a consolidation or merger and
the new or surviving corporation, so that any person who is or was a director, officer, employee, trustee, member,
manager, or agent of such a constituent entity, or is or was serving at the request of such constituent entity as a
director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager, or agent of another corporation, domestic or foreign, nonprofit
or for profit, a limited liability company, or a partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, shall stand in the
same position under this section with respect to the new or surviving corporation as he would if he had served the new
or surviving corporation in the same capacity.
Insurance
United Bancorp has purchased insurance coverage under policies that insure directors and officers against certain
liabilities that they may incur in their capacities as directors and officers.
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Item 21. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules
(a) Exhibits

​ExhibitNo. ​​Description ​

​2 ​​
Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 14, 2018, by and between United Bancorp, Inc. and
Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc. (included as Annex A to the Prospectus/Proxy
Statement included in this Registration Statement)†

​

​ 3.1 ​​Amended Articles of Incorporation (Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to the registrant’sDefinitive Proxy Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14, 2001) ​

​ 3.2 ​​
Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of United Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 18, 2016)

​

​4 ​​Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders (See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2) ​

​5 ​​Opinion of Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP regarding legality of the United Bancorp stock beingregistered (filed herewith) ​

​8 ​​Opinion of Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP as to federal income tax matters (filed herewith) ​

​10.1 ​​Change in Control agreement with Randall M. Greenwood (Incorporated by reference to theregistrant’s 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2003) ​

​10.2 ​​Change in Control agreement with Scott A. Everson (Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2003) ​

​10.3 ​​
Change in Control agreement with Matthew F. Branstetter (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 19, 2014)

​

​10.4 ​​
United Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries Director Supplemental Life Insurance Plan (Incorporated by
reference to the registrant’s 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29,
2004)

​

​10.5 ​​
United Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries Senior Executive Supplemental Life Insurance Plan
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the registrant’s 10-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 29, 2004)

​

​10.6 ​​

Amended and Restated United Bancorp, Inc. and United Bancorp, Inc. Affiliate Banks Directors and
Officers Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 19,
2014)

​

​10.7 ​​

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among United Bancorp, Inc. as Depository, Wilmington
Trust Company, as Property Trustee, Wilmington Trust Company, as Delaware Trustee, and
Administrative Trustees, dated as of November 17, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s
10-K filed with the Securities and Exchanges Commission on March 30, 2006)

​

​10.8 ​​
Junior Subordinated Indenture between United Bancorp, Inc. and Wilmington Trust Company, as
Trustee, dated as of November 17, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s 10-K filed with
the Securities and Exchanges Commission on March 30, 2006)

​

​10.9 ​​
Guaranty Agreement between United Bancorp, Inc., as Guarantor, and Wilmington Trust Company,
as Guarantee Trustee, dated as of November 17, 2005 (Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s
10-K filed with the Securities and Exchanges Commission on March 30, 2006)

​
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​ 10.10 ​​United Bancorp, Inc. 2008 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s 8-Kfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 22, 2008) ​

​ 10.11 ​​United Bancorp, Inc. 2018 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s 10-Qfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2018) ​
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​23.1 ​​Consent of BKD, LLP (filed herewith) ​
​23.2 ​​Consent of Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP (included in Exhibits 5 and 8) ​
​24   ​​Director’s Power of Attorney (filed herewith) ​
​99.1 ​​Form of Proxy for Powhatan Point Community Bancshares, Inc. (filed herewith) ​
​99.2 ​​Consent of CAMELS Consulting Group LLC (filed herewith) ​
​99.3 ​​Consent of Director Nominee (filed herewith) ​

​EX101.INS ​​XBRL Instance Document (filed herewith) ​

​EX101.SCH ​​XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed herewith) ​

​EX101.CAL ​​XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document (filed herewith) ​

​EX101.DEF ​​XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document (filed herewith) ​

​EX101.LAB ​​XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document (filed herewith) ​

​EX101.PRE ​​XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document (filed herewith) ​

​
†
Annexes, schedules, and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. United Bancorp
agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted attachment to the Securities and Exchange Commission on a
confidential basis upon request.
​
(b) Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission are not required under related instructions or are inapplicable and, therefore, have been omitted.
Item 22.   Undertakings
The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:
(i)
To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
​
(ii)
To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most
recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in
the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in
volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered)
and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of
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prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the
changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth
in the “Calculation of Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement; and
​
(iii)
To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration
statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.
​
​
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(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which
remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
(4) That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant’s
annual report pursuant to section 13(a) or section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where
applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan’s annual report pursuant to section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to
be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
(5) That prior to any public reoffering of the securities registered hereunder through use of a prospectus which is a part
of this registration statement, by any person or party who is deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of Rule
145(c), the issuer undertakes that such reoffering prospectus will contain the information called for by the applicable
registration form with respect to reofferings by persons who may be deemed underwriters, in addition to the
information called for by the other Items of the applicable form.
(6) That every prospectus (i) that is filed pursuant to paragraph (5) immediately preceding, or (ii) that purports to meet
the requirements of Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933 and is used in connection with an offering of
securities subject to Rule 415, will be filed as a part of an amendment to the registration statement and will not be
used until such amendment is effective, and that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of
1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities
offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.
(7) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has
been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a
director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is
asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant
will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the
Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
(8) To respond to requests for information that is incorporated by reference into the prospectus pursuant to Item 4,
10(b), 11 or 13 of this Form, within one business day of receipt of such request, and to send the incorporated
documents by first class mail or other equally prompt means. This includes information contained in documents filed
subsequent to the effective date of the registration statement through the date of responding to the request.
(9) To supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information concerning a transaction, and the company
being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in the registration statement when it became
effective.
II-6
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Martins Ferry, State of Ohio, on
August 20, 2018.
United Bancorp, Inc.
By:
/s/ Scott A. Everson
​
​
Scott A. Everson,
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities indicated on August 20, 2018.

​

By
/s/ Scott A. Everson
​
​
Scott A. Everson,
Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer

​​

By
/s/ Richard L. Riesbeck*
​
​
Richard L. Riesbeck,
Chairman of the Board

​

​

By
/s/ Randall M. Greenwood
​
​
Randall M. Greenwood,
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

​​

By
/s/ Gary W. Glessner*
​
​
Gary W. Glessner,
Director

​

​

By
/s/ John M. Hoopingarner*
​
​
John M. Hoopingarner,
Director

​​

​
*
For each of the above directors pursuant to power of attorney filed with the Registration Statement
​
​
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